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State of Ohio - Office of Budget and Management
30 East Broad Street - Columbus, Ohio 432660411

November 15, 1991
To the Governor, the Honorable Members of the General Assembly, and the Citizens of Ohio:

It is my privilege to issue the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) on the financial condition
of the State of Ohio for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991. The report is prepared in conformity with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board.

This report was prepared by the Ohio Office of Budget and Management pursuant to Section 126.21 of the
Ohio Revised Code, which requires that an official financial report of the State be issued annually. The
report includes General Purpose Financial Statements, which provide an overview of the State's financial
position and the results of financial operations by fund type.

The Office of Budget and Management is responsible for the accuracy of the data presented and the
completeness and fairness of its presentation, including all disclosures. To the best of our knowledge and
belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner designed to
present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of the
State of Ohio. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the State's
financial activities have been included.

The State's General Purpose Financial Statements include all funds and account groups for which the State
exercises "oversight respons1b1]1ty We followed the cntena estabhshed in the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board's C ; : : ards, Section
2100, to determine the funds and account groups over Wthh the State has thlS respons1b1hty NOTE 1A.
to the financial statements explains more fully which financial activities are included in and which are
excluded from the State's reporting entity.

The CAFR includes the following: introductory information; financial information that presents the
General Purpose Financial Statements, combining financial statements, supporting schedules, and fund
descriptions; and a statistical section that presents financial, economic, and demographic data for the State.

FINANCIAL PRESENTATION

The data in the financial statements are presented in accordance with a fund classification system prescribed
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The purpose of this system is to improve the
comparability of the financial reports of different governmental units. The system has three categones of
funds: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Each category is divided into several "fund types."

Governmental fund types are those through which State functions are financed. There are four
governmental fund types: General, special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds.

Proprietary fund types are used to account for activities that are commercial in nature — similar to those
often found in the private sector. There are two proprietary fund types: enterprise and internal service
funds.



Fiduciary fund types include trust funds, which account for assets held by the State in a trustee capacity, and
agency funds, which account for assets held by the State as an agent for individuals, private organizations,
other governments, and/or other funds.

The reporting format for our CAFR is significantly different from the way the State more typically presents
its finances on a budgetary basis. The most obvious difference is that the "General Fund" in the CAFR
includes more than just the State's General Revenue Fund. The General Fund also includes the Budget
Stabilization Fund and reimbursement-supported funds used for activities administered by State agencies
and departments for which special revenue or proprietary fund classifications were considered to be
inappropriate.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT RESULTS

The General Purpose Financial Statements have been audited by the Office of Auditor of State, Thomas E.
Ferguson. The outcome of the audit conducted by the Auditor of State, in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, was an unqualified auditor's report. Such an opinion indicates there was no
limitation on the scope of the auditor's examination and the financial statements were prepared in
conformity with GAAP.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND BUDGETARY CONTROL

The State's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure
designed to ensure that the State's assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate
accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP.
Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should
not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates
and judgments by management.

The State's Central Accounting System (CAS) achieves budgetary control over the various accounts of the
State's funds. Ohio's bicameral legislature, the General Assembly, authorizes expenditures by appropriating
funds in biennial and supplemental appropriation acts. The Office of Budget and Management uses CAS
to control subsequent departmental obligation and expenditure activity to ensure that authorized
appropriations are not exceeded.

The State's budgetary financial statements are prepared on a modified cash basis of accounting. This means
that revenues are recognized when cash is received and expenditures are recognized when cash is paid.
Encumbrances, reservations of appropriation authority, as of June 30, the end of the State fiscal year, are
reflected as expenditures on the budgetary basis of accounting.

The State's GAAP financial statements for the governmental and expendable trust funds have been prepared
on a modified accrual basis of accounting. This means that revenues are recognized when measurable and
available; expenditures are recognized when goods or services are received or liabilities are incurred. The
proprietary and pension trust funds are accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. This means that
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Additional discussion of the budgetary and GAAP bases of accounting is provided in NOTE 1 to the
financial statements.
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CAS maintains all budgetary-basis transactions and most GAAP-basis adjustments. In addition to the
information obtained from the CAS for financial reporting, selected financial information provided by the
State's agencies and departments is compiled to complete the GAAP-basis financial statements.

Differences between the two bases of accounting (GAAP vs. budgetary) include: (1) entity differences —the
GAAP reporting entity may include organizations such as financing authorities and other component units
that are not included in the State's budget; (2) basis differences —the GA AP basis results in the reporting of
accruals while the budgetary basis results in the reporting of cash transactions; and (3) timing differences
— for example, GAAP recognizes expenditures for payables for goods and services received, whereas the
budgetary basis considers unliquidated encumbrances as expenditures. A reconciliation between the
GAAP-basis and budgetary-basis financial statements is presented in NOTE 3 to the financial statements.

CASH MANAGEMENT

In Ohio, with the exception of certain component units of the State that have independent powers to manage
and invest their funds, the Treasurer of State is responsible for investing the State's cash pool. During fiscal
year 1991, cash management and investment transactions made by the Treasurer of State's Office, in
accordance with the Uniform Depository Act, were limited to checking accounts and certificates of deposit
with qualified public depositories, U.S. government and agency obligations, commercial paper, and
repurchase agreements. For fiscal year 1991, investment earnings on the State's cash pool managed by the
Treasurer of State, including the portion dedicated to the Ohio Lottery Commission, totaled $297 million.

Quarterly, the Office of Budget and Management allocates the interest income earned on the undedicated
portion of the cash pool to the various funds designated by law to receive the earnings. The allocation is
calculated in accordance with a formula that is based on average daily cash balances invested during the
quarter.

o [W—— FW— FA——" S— [ Pawr ————— (R [

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONS

The following schedule presents a summary of revenues, recorded on the modified accrual basis, for the
governmental fund types (General, special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds) for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1991, and the amount and percentage increases and decreases in relation to prior-year
, revenues (amounts expressed in thousands).

Percentage
Increase Increase/

1 FY 1991 Percent {Decrease) (Decrease)
Revenues Amount of Total from FY 1990 from FY 1990
INCOME TAXES .eoveeveeveirvrcrreerereerereeesaeessens $ 4,241,483 24.0% $ 163,112 4.0%
SalES TAXES .ooovvieieriiecreriierareereceeeesesseane 3,573,995 20.3 (29,927 ) ( .8)

} Corporate and Public Utility Taxes .............. 1,437,142 8.1 (55,504) (3.7)
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes ..........ccccviveiennnnne 1,052,504 6.0 58,892 5.9
Other TAXES ..ooioecerieecreererreesrcesonersarsrenenans 724,942 4.1 18,592 2.6

, Licenses, Permits and Fees .........ccccccevennee 679,447 3.9 43,657 6.9

j Sales, Services and Charges ........cccoeeeeeee. 46,873 3 (3,329) (6.6)
Federal Government ..........cccceeeciminnninneneen 5,204,395 29.5 650,440 14.3
OBE .o ee et esnaes 676,419 3.8 {31,888) (4.5)

7 Total s $ 17,637,200 100.0% $ 814,047 4.8

The only significant change noted was in federal government revenue, which increased 14.3 percent over
1 fiscal year 1990. The change is principally due to a significant increase in the Medicaid Program, under
i which approximately 60 percent of eligible costs paid by the State are reimbursed by the federal
government.

}
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Expenditures for governmental fund types, presented on the modified accrual basis, for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1991, and the amount and percentage increases and decreases in relation to prior-year expenditures
are shown below for the functions of general government (amounts expressed in thousands).

Percentage
Increase Increase/
FY 1991 Percent (Decrease) (Decrease)
Expenditures Amount of Total from FY 1990 from FY 1990
Current:
Primary, Secondary and
Other Education ..........cooovivvveiviin . $ 4,158,997 21.5% $ 186,949 4.7%
Higher Education Support ..........c.c.c.......... 1,549,614 8.0 47,004 3.1
Public Assistance and Medicaid .............. 5,530,500 28.6 634,664 13.0
Health and Human Services .................... 1,648,319 8.5 38,402 2.4
Justice and Public Protection ................. 932,001 4.8 126,102 15.7
Environmental Protection and
Natural Resources ...........ccccovvevevvennnn... 222,507 1.1 10,139 4.8
Transportation ..........ccooveeeeeeeveineeeenn, 1,365,769 7.1 235,789 20.9
General Government .........ccccovveeeevennennn, 325,530 1.7 30,545 10.4
Community and Economic Development . 360,215 1.9 22,240 6.6
Intergovernmental .............ooeveieeeiiiieee, 1,908,442 9.9 74,212 4.0
Capital Oulay .....c..oovoeeeeeeeee e, 678,812 35 243,350 55.9
Debt Service ........coovveeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeee 653.309 3.4 18.011 2.8
Total e $19,334 015 100.0% $ 1,667,407 9.4

Public assistance and Medicaid expenditures increased by $635 million or 13 percent. Increases in the
Medicaid Program comprise the largest portion of the public assistance and Medicaid expenditure increase.

Justice and public protection expenditures increased $126 million or 15.7 percent in fiscal year 1991. This
increase is primarily attributed to the expansion of Ohio's rehabilitation and correction's program.

Transportation expenditures grew $236 million or 20.9 percent over fiscal year 1990 for the State's highway
construction and maintenance projects.

General government expenditures increased approximately $31 million or 10.4 percent in fiscal year 1991.
Overall spending for operations and programs increased at various State agencies, with the majority of the
increase reported for the Departments of Commerce and Taxation, the Auditor of State, and the Public
Utilities Commission.

Capital outlay expenditures increased by $243 million or 55.9 percent mainly for improvements in local
government infrastructure and capital improvements for the Departments of Mental Health and
Transportation.

An additional analysis of revenues and expenditures for all governmental funds reported for fiscal year
1991 1s shown in the graphic presentation that follows this letter.

GENERAL FUND

Many State programs are accounted for in the General Fund. The General Fund reported an unreserved/
undesignated fund balance of $232.4 million, as of June 30, 1991, compared to $540.8 million, as of
June 30, 1990, a 57 percent decrease. Revenues for the General Fund increased by 3.9 percent to
$12.15 billion in fiscal year 1991 from $11.69 billion in fiscal year 1990. Expenditures for the General
Fund increased by 8.4 percent to $12.2 billion in fiscal year 1991 from $11.25 billion in fiscal year 1990.
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{ PROPRIETARY AND FIDUCIARY FUNDS

1 The State's enterprise funds reported a retained earnings deficit of $2.3 billion, as of June 30, 1991, as
compared to $2.05 billion, as of June 30, 1990, a 12.2 percent increase. These results were caused primarily

} by the Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund, which reported a retained earnings deficit of $2.4 billion,
as of June 30, 1991, as compared to $2.2 billion, as of June 30, 1990, an 11.5 percent increase. Operating
revenues for the enterprise funds increased to $4.7 billion in fiscal year 1991 from $4.4 billion in fiscal year

g 1990; operating expenses increased to $4.3 billion in fiscal year 1991 from $3.1 billion in fiscal year 1990.

The State's internal service funds reported retained earnings of $126.6 million, as of June 30, 1991, as

} compared to $78.1 million, as of June 30, 1990, a 62.1 percent increase. Operating revenues for the internal
service funds increased to $229 million in fiscal year 1991 from $171 million in fiscal year 1990; operating
expenses also increased to $215.8 million in fiscal year 1991 from $158.6 million in fiscal year 1990.
During fiscal year 1991, nonoperating federal revenue in the amount of $32.9 million was reported for
the Water Pollution Control Loan Internal Service Fund, representing a 100 percent increase since
June 30, 1990.

The fund balance of the expendable trust fund decreased by 11.8 percent to $903 million, as of
}June 30, 1991, from $1.02 billion, as of June 30, 1990. Revenues for the expendable trust fund decreased
by 5.3 percent to $806.7 million in fiscal year 1991 from $851.6 million in fiscal year 1990 while
expenditures increased 40.5 percent to $927.2 million in fiscal year 1991 from $660.2 million in fiscal year
}1990.

The fund balance of the pension trust fund was $218.1 million, as of June 30, 1991, as compared to $195.5
}million, as of June 30, 1990, a 11.6 percent increase. Operating revenues for the pension trust fund
1

increased to $31.9 million in fiscal year 1991 from $29.9 million in fiscal year 1990; operating expenses
increased to $9.3 million in fiscal year 1991 from $8 million in fiscal year 1990.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

~10hio's credit ratings by both Moody's Investors Service, Inc. (Moody's) and Standard & Poor’s Corporation
1(S&P) for certain State general obligation bonds are Aa and AA, respectively, except that S&P rates the
State's Highway Obligations AAA. Obligations issued by the Ohio Building Authority (OBA) and the Ohio
1Public Facilities Commission (OPFC) are rated A by Moody's and A+ by S&P.

As of June 30, 1991, the State reported a total of $4.2 billion in outstanding debt issues in its General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Percentage
} Qutstanding Balance, Increase/ (Decrease)
as of June 30, 1991 Since June 30, 1990
General Obligation Bonds.........cccocovvnvininc $ 644,615 (8.85)%
I Revenue Bonds .......c...ccoccciicinieniciniicniiccns 139,145 (7.23)
Special Obligation Bonds........ccccoeniivviviinnnc 3,401,046 4.11

TOtal oo $ 4,184,806 1.47

e ]

Ohio also reported $10 million in special obligation bond anticipation notes in the capital projects funds,
representing a 40.8 percent decrease since June 30, 1990, and $54.5 million in revenue bonds outstanding
i(net of unamortized discounts of $3.2 million), as of June 30, 1991, for the proprietary funds, representing
‘a three percent increase since June 30, 1990.

|



RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

State employees may be eligible to participate in the Public Employees Retirement System, the State
Teachers Retirement System, or the State Highway Patrol Retirement System. Further information on the
State's participation in the retirement systems can be found in NOTE 9 to the financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

As discussed in NOTE 1 O. to the financial statements, the State is self-insured for claims arising from
health care, workers' compensation, vehicle liability, public fidelity blanket bonds, property losses, and tort
liability.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

National economic growth over the past year and a half has been mired by the recession that started in the
summer of 1990. After eight years of expansion, the U.S. economy finally slipped into negative growth in
late 1990. Real GNP, the overall measure of the nation's total output of goods and services, adjusted for
inflation, declined at an annual rate of 1.6 percent in the fourth quarter of 1990. However, the recession
was mild and short by postwar standards. After three consecutive quarters of decline, the national economy
increased at an annual rate of 2.4 percent in the third quarter of 1991. The economic recovery is expected
to be slow and moderate. Real GNP is expected to decline by 0.4 percent in 1991 and then recover at the
near trend rate of three percent in 1992 and 1993.

National economic conditions will have an impact on Ohio's economic growth and fiscal condition. It is
expected that economic growth in Ohio will be just as strong if not stronger than the nation's. Ohio's past
economic growth has lagged behind the national economy, and recessions have hit Ohio much harder. This
was due mainly to Ohio's dependence upon manufacturing. In recent years, however, employment growth
in Ohio has been concentrated largely in the service and nonmanufacturing sectors. Since 1983, Ohio's
heavy industry and manufacturing concerns have revitalized plant and equipment, which have contributed
to improvements in productivity, production capacity, and competitiveness. These developments have
provided Ohio with a more diversified and solid economic base.

During the 1990 recession, Ohio's economy fared better than the national economy. Despite the mixed
signals and the recent evidence of a weak U.S. economy, Ohio is expected to share in the predicted gradual
economic recovery. As of November 1991, Ohio's unemployment rate dropped to 5.5 percent while the
U.S. unemployment rate still hovers around 6.8 percent.

JOBS AND BUSINESS IN OHIO
Some recent highlights on jobs and business in Ohio include the following:

* Ohio is the third largest exporting state in the nation, with exports totaling more than $25 billion
annually, according to U.S. Department of Commerce statistics.

* Ohio ranks sixth nationally in the number of patents issued and third nationally in the number of
research and development facilities.

* According to projections by the U.S. Department of Commerce, Ohio will outpace the nation in job,
population, and personal and total income growth through the year 2000.

* Proctor & Gamble plans to build a $280 million health care research center in Warren County by
1995.

* Wal-Mart Stores is locating a 1.3 million square-foot distribution center in Franklin County.
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OTHER FISCAL YEAR 1991 HIGHLIGHTS
« In early calendar year 1991, the Operations Improvement Task Force (OITF), a group comprised of 250
of Ohio's top business executives, studied and evaluated the operations at most State agencies. The
OITF culminated its work with written recommendations for improving the efficiency of State
government.

« The Bureau of Workers' Compensation (BWC) commissioned McKinsey & Co., a national consulting
firm, to conduct a five-month study of Ohio's workers' compensation system. The management study
unveiled a reform plan that recommended the establishment of regional claims teams, privatization of
some services, reduction of government oversight, adjusted rates and benefits, and reorganization of the
BWC and Ohio Industrial Commission.

Councils were created to identify ways to improve the State's education system and federally funded job
training programs, respectively.

} » During fiscal year 1991, the Governor's Education Management and Human Resources Advisory
1 CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT
The Government Finance Officers Assocation of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
} Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the State of Ohio for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1990. The Certificate
of Achievement is the highest form of recognition for excellence in state and local government financial
} reporting.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and
l efficiently organized CAFR whose contents conform to program standards. The CAFR must satisfy both
" generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

3 A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. This was the first year the State of
Ohio has received a Certificate of Achievement. We believe our current report continues to conform to the
y Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
In conclusion, I wish to express my appreciation to the staffs of the various State agencies whose time and
dedicated efforts made this report possible.

Sincerely,

} R. GREGORY BROWNING
Director
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Certificate of

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to
State of Ohio

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 1990

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFR’s) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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THOMAS E. FERGUSON
AUDITOR OF STATE
P.O.Box 1140 + Columbus, Ohio 43266-0040 + [614]466-4514

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable George V. Voinovich, Governor
State of Ohio
Columbus, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the State of Ohio, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 1991, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the State's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the following component units:
the Ohio Air Quality Development Authority, the Ohio Water Development Authority, the Ohio Housing
Finance Agency, the Economic Development Financing Division, the Minority Development Financing
Commission, the Ohio Public Facilities Commission, the Ohio Turnpike Commission, the Ohio Building
Authority, the State Parking Commission, the Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation and Industrial
Commission of Ohio, the Ohio Lottery Commission, the Petroleum Underground Storage Tank Release
Compensation Board, and the State Highway Patrol Retirement System. In addition, we did not audit the
financial statements of the following retirement systems whose assets held by the Treasurer of State are
included as part of the State's agency fund type: the Public Employees Retirement System, the State
Teachers Retirement System, the School Employees Retirement System, and the Police and Firemen's
Disability and Pension Fund System. These statements reflect the following percent of total assets or
liabilities and revenues of the indicated fund type and account groups:

Percent of Total Percent of Total
Assets/(Liabilities) Revenues
Special Revenue fund type 16% 2%
Debt Service fund type 76% 22%
Capital Projects fund type 33% 28%
Enterprise fund type 99% 92%
Internal Service fund type 50% 13%
Trust and Agency fund type 92% ——-
General Fixed Assets account group 17% ——-
General Long-Term Obligations account group (75% ) —--
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The Honorable George V. Voinovich, Governor

The financial statements of these component units and the assets of the retirement systems were audited by
other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts
of these component units and funds included in the fund types and account groups comprising the general
purpose financial statements is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and reports of other auditors, the general purpose financial statements
referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the State of
Ohio at June 30, 1991, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its enterprise and internal
service fund types for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements
taken as a whole. The combining financial statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial
statements of the State of Ohio. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
our audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material
respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not examine the data included in the statistical section of this report and, therefore, express no
opinion thereon.

[ f/,ﬁam

THOMAS E. FERGUSON
Auditor of State

November 8, 1991
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

SPECIAL DEBT
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE
REVENUES:
Income Taxes . . . . . . . ... ... ... ... .. 3 3,750,847 $ 490,636 $ —
Sales Taxes . . . ... . .. . ... ... ... ... 3,378,515 195,480 -
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . . . . .. .. ... ..., . 1,351,791 85,351 —
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . . . .. . . . ... ... ... .... — 1,020,908 31,596
Unemployment Taxes . . . . . .. . ... ... ... ....... — e —
Other Taxes . . .. .. . . . . ... . .. .. ... 598,417 68,060 58,465
Licenses, Permits and Fees . . . . . . . ... ... ... .... 73,741 568,898 36,808
Sales, Services and Charges . . . ... ............. 25,751 21,122 —
Federal Government. . . . . . . . .. . . ... ... ... ... . 2,718,754 2,485,193 448
Other. . . . . . . . .. 254,098 331,044 50,451
TOTAL REVENUES . . . . . . . . . . . . ... ... ....... 12,151,914 5,266,692 177,768
EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education . . .. .. ... ... 2,982,273 1,176,724 -
Higher Education Support. . . . .. .. ... .. ... ...... 1,474,777 74,837 -
Public Assistance and Medicaid . . . . . .. ... ... .. ... 5,147,010 383,490 _
Health and Human Services . . . . . . . . ... ... ..... . 773,882 874,437 e
Justice and Public Protection . . . . .. ... ... ....... 674,667 257,334 —
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources . . . . . . . . 95,004 127,503 -_
Transportation. . . . . . . . . . ... .. ... 36,104 1,300,739 —
General Government. . . . . . . ... . ... .. .. ... .. .. 231,551 93,979 —
Community and Economic Development . . . . . . . ... ... 104,809 255,406 —
INTERGOVERNMENTAL . . . . . . . . .. ... ... . ... ..... 661,452 1,246,990 —_
CAPITAL OUTLAY . . . . . . . . e e . 21,810 44,935 -
DEBT SERVICE. . . . . . . . . . . .. . ittt — — 652,209
TOTAL EXPENDITURES . . . . .. . . . . ... ... ...... 12,203,339 5,836,374 652,209
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES . . . . . . .. (51,425) (569,682) (474,441)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond and Certificate of Participation Proceeds . . . . . . . .. — — 3,443
Refunding Bond Proceeds . . . . ... . .. ... ... ..... —_— — 123,270
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agents. . . .. ... ... — — (104,197)
Operating Transfers-in. . . . . .. .. . . . ... .. ....... 92,012 1,222,150 513,121
Operating Transfers-out . . . .. . . ... ... ... ....... (499,842) (718,207) (22,985)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . . . ... . .. (407,830) 503,943 512,652
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES . . . . . . . . ... .. . ... . ... ..... (459,255) (65,739) 38,211
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1. . . . . . . . . .. ... ... ... ..... 1,154,780 1,466,897 612,265
INCREASE (DECREASE) FOR CHANGES IN INVENTORIES . . . . . 1,117 (230) —
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30. ... .. . . . . ... . .. $ 696,642 $§ 1,400,928 § 650,476

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPE

CAPITAL EXPENDABLE
PROJECTS TRUST

TOTAL
(MEMORANDUM
ONLY)

_— $ ——
— 735,172

40,826 71,503

$ 4,241,483
3,573,995
1,437,142
1,052,504

735,172
724,942
679,447
46,873
5,204,395
747,922

40,826 806,675

18,443,875

—_ 927,165

612,067 -
1,100 -

4,158,997
1,549,614
5,530,500
2,575,484
932,001
222,507
1,365,769
325,530
360,215
1,908,442
678,812

653,309

642,093 927,165

20,261,180

(601,267) (120,490)

(1,817,305)

398,977 -

94,719 —
(26,879) —

402,420
123,270
(104,197)
1,922,002
(1,267,913)

466,817 -

1,075,582

(134,450) (120,490)

514,202 1,023,449

(741,723)
4,771,593

887

379,752 $ 902,959

$ 4,030,757
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)
GENERAL, SPECIAL REVENUE AND DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES:

Income Taxes . . . . ... . ... ... .. ... ... .
Sales Taxes . . ... ... ... . ... ... ... . ... .
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . . . . . . . ... ... .
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . . .. . . .. . ... .. ... ..
Other Taxes . . ... e

Sales, Services and Charges . . .. ... .. ... ... ..
Federal Government. . . . . . . . .. .. ... .. ..... .

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:

Primary, Secondary and Other Education . . . . ... . ..
Higher Education Support. . . . . . . .. . ... ... ....
Public Assistance and Medicaid . . . . .. .. ... .. ...
Health and Human Services . . . . . . .. ... ... . ...

Transportation. . . . . .. .. ... ... ... ... ... ...
General Government. . . . . .. .. .. ... ... .. ... .
Community and Economic Development . . . . . . . . . ..
INTERGOVERNMENTAL . . . . . . . ... ... . .... e
CAPITAL OUTLAY . . . . . . . . .
DEBT SERVICE. . . . . . . . . . . .. .. .. ..

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . . .. .. ..

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Bond Proceeds. . . . ... ... ... ... .. ........
Operating Transfers-in. . . . .. .. ... ... ... .....
Operating Transfers-out . . . . . . ... ... ... .. ....
Encumbrance Reversions . . . . . .. .. .. ... ..... .

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER FINANCING USES. . . . . . . .. ... .. .....

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES

(DEFICITS), JULY 1 . . . . . . . .. . ... .. . . ... .. ...
Decrease in Designated for Budget Stabilization . . . . .. . . .
Decrease in Designated for Capital Reserve . . . . ... .. ..

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES

(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 . . . . . ... ... . ... .........
Designated for Budget Stabilization, June 30 . . . . . . . .

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS),

JUNE 30 ... ... ... .. ... ... . ... ... .

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GENERAL FUND

VARIANCE

FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
3805000 § 3728304 § (76,696)
3,380,000 3,379,042 (958)
1,341,800 1,347,179 5,379
589,100 598,535 9,435
83,917 80,691 (3,226)
42,910 44,386 1,476
2,604,570 2,664,235 59,665
412,325 397,613 (14,712)
12,259,622 12,239,985 (19,637)
3,120,367 3,030,370 89,997
1,475,552 1,475,351 201
5,109,590 5,079,379 30,211
813,250 800,642 12,608
693,138 680,136 13,002
116,292 113,521 2,771
34,466 34,438 28
327,674 304,890 22,784
102,633 99,332 3,301
702,830 661,536 41,294
61,173 13,502 47,671
583,736 477,321 106,415
13,140,701 12,770,418 370,283
(881,079) (530,433) 350,646
132,745 156,508 23,763
(16,006) (38,952) (22,946)
— 34,890 34,890
116,739 152,446 35,707
(764,340) (377,987) 386,353

492,563 492,563 —

64,000 64,000 —

22217 22217 —
(185,560) 200,793 386,353

300,363 300,363 —
114803 § 501,156 § 386,353

v vehwas
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

§ VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFA VORABLQ BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFA VOFIABLEL
} § 487693 $ 487693 % —  $ — s —  $ -
195.3¢3 15,383 - — - —_
85.139 85,139 - — —
1,006,858 1.006,858 — 28,634 28,634 -
80,622 80,622 — 48,396 48,396 —
571.842 Cas 24,297 24,297
15,223 —_ — —
2.576,90 . ; — - -
35 7 — 82,743 82,743 —
] 8,874 E.874 — 184,070 184,070 —
4,191 — - —
} &0 o 1,451 - - -
/ 24 592,624 21,400 — - _
i 1 910,438 97,856 — - —
0. 260,318 42,099 — — -
i 159,33L 131,790 27,540 — — —
1.670.820 47810 182,676 - _ —_
1 19,66 ¢ 15,591 — — —_
58,050 64,151 - — —
1,400,261 - 331,101 134,160 — — —
144.913 33,522 110,991 - —_ —_
17700 0000 — 211,809 180,584 31,225
b | 7.08 6185521 702,106 211,809 180,584 31,225
1
| (LT eEm 702,106 (27,739) 3,486 31,225
_ — — 468 468 —
1,304,719 1,304,719 - — — —_
(744,114) (744,114) _ —_ — -
135,630 15,630 — — — —
696,235 696,235 — 468 468 —
1
s (982,618) (280512) § 702,106 § (27.271) 3954 § 31,225
i (83,577) 112,954
(364,089) 116,908
$  (364,089) $ 116,908
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND PENSION TRUST FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

{amounts expressed in thousands)

PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPE
INTERNAL PENSION
ENTERPRISE SERVICE TRUST
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and Services. . . . ... ... .. .. ... . $ 1,930,780 $ 222,911 £ —
Premium and Assessment income . . . .. ... ... . . . 2,054,187 — o
Investment Income. . . ... .. ... . ... ... ... .. . 715,027 892 16,060
Employer Contributions . . . . . ... . . .. ... .. —_ —_ 10,999
Employee Contributions . . . . . . . ... .. ... ... ... . . - - 4,696
Other. . . . . . . 33,636 5,380 172
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES. . . . . . . .. ... ...... 4,733,630 229,183 31,927
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Costs of Sales and Services. . . . . ... .. ... . .. .. . 217,426 102,466 —_
Administration. . . . ... ... 253,391 93,080 503
Prizes and Claims . . . . . .. ... ... .. ... .. ... ... 842,620 — -
Benefit Payments and Refunds . . . .. ... .. ... .. . . 2,595,775 - 8.808
Depreciation. . . . . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 23,144 11,900 —_
Other. . . . ... .. ... ... 399,395 8,374 —
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES . . . . . . . . ... ... ... . 4,331,751 215,820 9,311
OPERATING INCOME . . . . . . . . . ... .. .. ... .. . 401,879 13,363 22,616
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment Income. . . . . .. . ... ... ... ... ... .. . 1,276 2,197 —
Interest Expense . . . . .. ... ... ... ... ... ... .. —_ (7,307) —
Federal Grants . . . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. . —_ 32,894 -
Other. . . . ... ... ... .. 80 (1,690) —
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES). . . . . . . . 1,356 26,094 —
INCOME BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS . . . ... ... . ... 403,235 39,457 22,616
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating Transfers-in. . . . .. .. ... . ... . ... . . . . . - 40,394 _
Operating Transfers-out . . . . .. . ... ... .. ... ... .. (659,203) (31,411) —
TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS-IN our). ........ ... (659,203) 8,983 —
NET INCOME . . . . . . . . ... .. . (255,968) 48,440 22,616
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICITS)
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 (as restated) . . . . . . .. . . . .. (2,045,538) 78,133 195,471
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICITS)/
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 .. .. . .. .. . . .. $ (2301,506) $ 126,573  § 218,087

The notes to the financial stalements are an integral part of this statement.

26

R ——

L

. il

ol sl o

——



-

[ A

-

TOTAL
(MEMORANDUM
ONLY)

$§ 2153691
2,054,187
731,979

10,999

4,696

39,188

4,994,740

319,892
346,974
842,620
2,604,583
35,044
407,769

4,556,882
437,858

3,473
(7,307)
32,894

(1,610)

27,450

465,308

40,394
(690,614)
(650,220)

(184,912)

(1,771,934)

$_ (1,956,846)
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COIN AN ST Ny JUNE 30, 1991
NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the State of Ohio present the financial position of the various
fund types and account groups, the results of operations of the various fund types, and the cash flows of
the proprietary funds. The financial statements are presented, as of June 30, 1991, and for the year then
ended, and have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as
applied to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles, which are
primarily set forth in the GASB's Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards (GASB Codification). The State's significant accounting policies are described below.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the State includes all funds, account groups, elected offices, departments,
and agencies of the State, as well as bureaus, boards, commissions, and authorities over which the State's
executive, legislative, or judicial branches exercise oversight responsibility. Oversight responsibility is
defined in GASB Codification Section 2100 and includes the following considerations: financial
interdependency, selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly
influence operations, and accountability for fiscal matters. Also considered are the scope of an
organization's public service and special financing relationships.

Based on the application of the GASB Codification criteria, the following additional organizations meet
the oversight criteria and are also included in the accompanying financial statements:

Ohio Public Facilities Commission Ohio Student Loan Commission

Ohio Building Authority Ohio Lottery Commission

State Parking Commission Ohio Tuition Trust Authority

Ohio Housing Finance Agency Minority Development Financing Commission
Ohio Air Quality Development Authority Ohio Petroleum Underground Storage Tank
Ohio Water Development Authority Release Compensation Board

State Highway Patrol Retirement System (SHPRS)
Ohio Tumpike Commission

The following organizations have been determined not to be part of the reporting entity after applying
the manifestations of oversight responsibility criteria of GASB Codification Section 2100:

All State-assisted universities and colleges

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

School Employees Retirement System (SERS)

State Teachers Retirement System (STRS)

Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund (PFDPF)

Ohio Public Employees Deferred Compensation Board (PEDCB)

The financial activities of the State-assisted universities and colleges are not included in the reporting
entity because their trustees are not authoritatively appointed, and they designate management; exercise
autonomy over fiscal, personnel, and institutional matters; are responsible for financing deficits; and
generally can issue bonds secured by student receipts.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

RS

}The PERS. SERS, STRS, PFDPFE, and PEDCB are not included in the reporting entity because the
majority of the boards are not authoritatively appointed but rather are elected by plan members and the
boards designate management; exercise autonomy over fiscal, investment, and personnel matters; and

} are responsible for financing deficits. The financial position and results of operations for PERS, SERS,
STRS. PFDPF, and PEDCB are reported ‘in their respective, separately published annual financial

‘ reports.

i
For the retirement systems listed above, only assets held in the Treasurer of State's custody are reported

1 in the agency funds.

H

3

PEDCB assets that represent State employees' participation in the deferred compensation plan, as described
in NOTE 17, are reported in the Deferred Compensation Agency Fund. Other PEDCB assets temporarily
held in the Treasurer of State's custody are reported in the Other Agency Fund along with the assets of
other entities.

B. Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting

}The State of Ohio uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position and results of its
operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and aid financial management
5 by segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities.
A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. An account group is a
A financial reporting entity designed to provide accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not
recorded in the funds because they do not directly affect expendable available financial resources.
Funds are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Each category, in
turn, is divided into separate "fund types."

[

+ A description of each fund type and account group follows.
1. Governmental Fund Types

1 General — The General Fund accounts for current financial resources traditionally associated with
government, which are not required legally or by sound financial management practices to be accounted
for in another fund.

Special Revenue — The special revenue funds account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditure for designated purposes. The general administrative activities of the Ohio Turnpike
Commission, Ohio Water Development Authority, and Ohio Air Quality Development Authority are
included in the special revenue funds for their fiscal years ended December 31, 1990.

Debt Service — The debt service funds account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of
.general long-term debt principal and interest. The debt service activities of the Ohio Turnpike Commission

Vare included in the debt service funds for its fiscal year ended December 31, 1990.

3
i
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JUNE 30, 1991

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital Projects — The capital projects funds account for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities and for major repairs and replacements other than those financed by proprietary funds
and trust funds. The capital projects activities of the Ohio Turnpike Commission are included in the
capital projects funds for its fiscal year ended December 31, 1990.

2. Proprietary Fund Types

Enterprise — The enterprise funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises — where the State's intent is that the cost of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges; or where the State has decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for
accountability purposes. The Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation and the State Parking Commission
are included in the enterprise funds for their fiscal years ended December 31, 1990.

Internal Service — The internal service funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by
a State department or agency to other State agencies and to other government units, on a cost-
reimbursement basis. The Water Pollution Control Loan Program of the Ohio Water Development
Authority is included in the internal service funds for its fiscal year ended December 31, 1990.

3. Fiduciary Fund Types

Trust funds account for assets held by the State in a trustee capacity. Trust funds included in the State's
general purpose financial statements are expendable and pension trust. The State Highway Patrol
Retirement System is included as a pension trust fund for its fiscal year ended December 31, 1990.

Agency funds account for assets held by the State as an agent for individuals, private organizations,
other governments, and/or other funds. Assets of the Public Employees Retirement System and the
Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund held by the Treasurer of State are included in the
agency funds for their fiscal years ended December 31, 1990.

4. Account Groups

General Fixed Assets — The General Fixed Assets Account Group accounts for fixed assets acquired or
constructed for use by the State for general governmental purposes. All fixed assets are included except
those accounted for in the proprietary and trust funds.

General Long-Term Obligations — The General Long-Term Obligations Account Group accounts for

the State’s unmatured general obligation bonds and other long-term obligations not required to be
accounted for in the proprietary and pension trust funds.
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FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus.

Governmental and expendable trust funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. Under this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally
are presented on the balance sheet; increases (i.e., revenue and other financing sources) and decreases
(i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets are presented in these funds' operating
statements.

Proprietary and pension trust funds are accounted for using a flow of economic resources measurement
focus. Under this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operations of these
funds are presented on the balance sheet; fund equity (i.e., net assets) is segregated on the balance sheet
into two components, contributed capital and retained earnings/fund balance. Increases (e.g., revenues)
and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net assets are presented in these funds' operating statements.

The modified accrual basis of accounting has been applied to all governmental, expendable trust, and
agency funds. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible
to accrual, that is, when they become both measurable and available. "Measurable” means the amount
of the transaction can be determined, and "available" means the amount is collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The State considers
revenues as available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund labilities are incurred. Principal and interest on
general long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated
in the debt service funds for payments to be made in the subsequent fiscal year.

Significant revenue sources susceptible to accrual under the modified accrual basis of accounting
follow:

Sales and use taxes

Personal income taxes

Motor vehicle fuel taxes

Charges for goods and services

Licenses, permits, fees, and certain other miscellaneous revenues are not susceptible to accrual because
generally they are not measurable until received in cash. The "Other" revenue account is comprised of
refunds, reimbursements, recoveries, investment earnings, and other miscellaneous income. In the
capital projects funds, "Other" revenue primarily includes investment earnings.

Deferred revenue, as reported on the State's combined balance sheet, represents resources received
before the State has a legal claim to them, such as the receipt of federal grant monies prior to the
incurrence of qualifying expenditures. When the State has a legal claim to the resources, the revenue 1s
recognized.
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NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The accrual basis of accounting has been applied to proprietary and pension trust funds. Under this
method, revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when incurred.

D. Budgetary Process

As required by the Ohio Revised Code, the Governor submits biennial operating and capital budgets to
the General Assembly. The particular budget, which includes those funds of the State subject to
appropriation pursuant to State law, is composed of all proposed expenditures for the State and of
estimated revenues and borrowings for a biennium.

The General Assembly enacts the budget through passage of specific departmental line-item appropriations,
the legal level of budgetary control. Line-item appropriations are established within funds by program
or major object of expenditure. The governor may veto any item in an appropriation bill, subject to
legislative override.

Biennially, the Ohio General Assembly approves operating and capital appropriations. Operating
appropriations are provided in annual amounts while capital appropriations are provided in two-year
amounts. Because capital projects funds' appropriations are not made on an annual basis, budgetary
basis financial statements for these funds are not presented.

Transfers of appropriations between years of a biennium and budget revisions during a year, reflecting
program changes or intradepartmental transfers of an administrative nature, may be effected with certain
executive and legislative branch approval. Only the General Assembly, however, may transfer or
authorize the conditions under which appropriations may be transferred between departments.

All governmental funds are budgeted except the following activities within the fund types:

Special Revenue Fund: Capital Projects Fund:
Ohio Tumpike Commission Ohio Turnpike Commission
Ohio Building Authority

Expositions Commission

Debt Service Fund:

Economic Development Bond Service

Ohio Turnpike Commission Bond Service

Ohio Public Facilities Commission

Ohio Building Authority

Salt Fork Bond Retirement

Enterprise Bond Retirement

For budgeted funds, the State's Central Accounting System controls expenditures by appropriation line-
item, so at no time can expenditures exceed appropriations, and financial-related legal compliance is
assured. A modified cash basis of accounting is used for budgetary purposes. Encumbrance accounting,
under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for expenditures are recorded as a
reserve of the applicable appropriations, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in
the State's accounting system. Encumbrances outstanding in the General, special revenue, and capital
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VOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

rojects funds at fiscal year end are reported as reservations of fund balance for expenditure in subsequent
rears. Operating encumbrances are generally canceled five months after fiscal year end while capital
encumbrances are automatically reappropriated. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of the
siennium, for which they were appropriated. More comprehensive accounting of activity on the budgetary

»asis is provided in the separately published annual Ohio Budgetary Financial Report, which is available
upon request, and the "Detailed Appropriation Summary by Fund," which is available for public inspection.

n the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and
Actual (Budgetary Basis), budgeted revenues for the General Fund represent periodically updated revenue
udgets. For other budgeted funds, the original budgeted revenues, as submitted by the Govemor, do
not represent actual forecasts of revenues and are not amended to coincide with any legislative changes
+o the original expenditure budget. Accordingly, budgeted revenues and other financing sources and
ises for budgeted funds other than the General Fund are reported at actual amounts, since the State does
not have updated, budgeted revenue and other financing sources and uses amounts for use in the
.ccompanying budgetary basis financial statements. In addition, budgetary expenditures include cash
lisbursements against fiscal year 1991 appropriations and outstanding encumbrances, as of June 30,
1991, that were committed during fiscal year 1991. Encumbrance reversions represent lapses of prior
‘cars’ appropriations.

None of the State's trust funds are legally required to adopt a budget. For budgeted proprietary funds,
he State is not legally required to report budgetary data and comparisons for such funds.

Because the State budgets on a modified cash basis of accounting, which differs from GAAP, a
cconciliation of the differences between the GAAP-basis and the budgetary-basis of reporting is presented
in NOTE 3.

¢. Cash Equity with Treasurer/Cash with Custodian

Tash equity with Treasurer is carried at cost, which approximates market. All cash deposited with the
reasurer of State to the credit of appropriated funds, including the cash float, consists of pooled
investments primarily composed of demand deposits, and short-term investments. Cash with custodian
s comprised of amounts on deposit with financial institutions. Cash equity with Treasurer, including
e portion reported under "Restricted Assets,” and cash with custodian are considered to be cash
cquivalents for purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows.

r. Investments

nvestments include long-term investments that may be restricied by law or other legal instruments.
Investments are carried at cost or amortized cost (which does not exceed market) except those of the
3ureau of Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund and Deferred Compensation Agency Fund, which
re reported at market. No investments are considered to be cash equivalents for purposes of the
Statement of Cash Flows.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G. Intergovernmental Revenues/Receivables

Intergovernmental revenues primarily represent resources from reimbursement-type grants received from
the federal government. Intergovernmental receivables and revenues are recorded when the related
grant expenditures/expenses are incurred.

H. Inventories

For governmental funds, the costs of inventories acquired are recorded as expenditures when purchased,
except those of the Employment Services and Ohio Turnpike Commission Special Revenue Funds,
which are reported as expenditures when consumed. For budgetary purposes, inventories acquired for
the Employment Services Special Revenue Fund are recorded as expenditures when purchased. At year
end, physical counts are taken of significant inventories for the governmental fund types and are
generally reported on the balance sheet at weighted-average cost. Proprietary fund inventories are
valued at cost, which approximates market, principally on a first-in, first-out consumption method.

I. Restricted Assets

Assets restricted for the payment of severance pay to eligible employees covered under the Ohio
Turnpike Commission's Employee Severance Anticipation Compensation Plan are reported in the special
revenue funds.

Assets restricted for payment of deferred prize awards (Ohio Lotto) and tuition benefits are reported in
the enterprise funds for the Ohio Lottery Commission and the Ohio Tuition Trust Authority, respectively.

Assets held by a trustee in connection with the State's certificate of participation financing arrangements
are classified in the internal service funds as restricted assets, since their use is limited by applicable
leases and trust agreements (See NOTE 14).

Additionally, covenants for the Ohio Building Authority's bonds require its pledged receipts also be held
and invested in a reserve account placed with a trustee financial institution. These restricted assets are
reported in the internal service funds.

J. Fixed Assets

General Fixed Assets — General fixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used to acquire or construct
them. Instead, capital acquisition and construction are reflected as expenditures in governmental funds,
and the related assets are reported in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. All purchased fixed
assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at estimated historical cost where no
historical records exist. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value at acquisition
date. The costs o1 normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend
an asset's useful life are not capitalized. The cost of major improvements is capitalized while interest
vosts associated with the acquisition of general fixed assets are not capitalized.
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§NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

! . . "we " . . . .
'Public domain ("infrastructure") general fixed assets consisting of among other assets, roads, bridges,
‘curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, and lighting systems are not capitalized, since
these assets are immovable and of value only to the government.

Assets in the General Fixed Assets Account Group are not depreciated.

Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Fixed Assets — Fixed assets are stated at cost or, for donated assets, at
fair market value at acquisition date. Fixed assets, excluding land, are depreciated on the straight-line
‘method over estimated service lives. Material interest is capitalized on proprietary fund fixed assets
_acquired through the issuance of debt.

?( Sureties

Sureties include various assets placed by their owners in safekeeping with the Treasurer of State, as

}equired by applicable statutes.

L. Long-Term Obligations

A long-term obligation is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due. Only that portion
xpected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a liability of a
yovernmental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations is reported in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group. Included among these liabilities are the noncurrent portions of liabilities
Fesulting from debt issuances, a certificate of participation financing arrangement, compensated absences,
judgments, settlements, and claims, contingencies, leases, and workers' compensation benefits. Long-
term liabilities expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those

{unds.

As discussed in NOTES 11 and 12, bonds issued by the Ohio Building Authority (OBA) to finance the
onstruction of State-related projects are reported as special obligation bonds in the General Long-Term
bligations Account Group while OBA bonds issued to finance the construction of facilities leased to
local government are reported as revenue bonds in the internal service funds.

M. Compensated Absences

State employees earn vacation leave, sick leave, and personal leave at various rates within limits
specified under collective bargaining agreements or under law. Such leave is liquidated in cash, under
certain restrictions, either annually in December, or at the time of termination from State employment.
“or governmental funds, the noncurrent portion of the liability for compensated absences is reported in
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. For proprietary fund types, the liability for
§ompensated absences is reported as a current accrued liability.

Tn accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 43, Accounting
‘or Compensated Absences, no liability is recorded for nonvesting accumulated rights to receive sick
;;ay benefits. However, a liability is recognized for that portion of accumulated sick leave benefits that
‘s estimated to be taken as "terminal leave" prior to retirement.

i
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NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

N. Reservations/Designations of Fund Equity

Reservations
Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure/expense or which are ]

legally restricted to a specific future use.

DQSig!lQH‘Q!lS F

Designated fund balances represent tentative plans for future use of financial resources.

0. Self-Insurance J
In general, the State is self-insured for health care claims, workers' compensation, vehicle liability,
public fidelity blanket bonds, property losses, and tort liability. Estimates for significant incurred but:

not reported claims are included in accrued liabilities. }

P. Interfund Transactions

The State records the following types of transactions among funds: ]
Operating Transfers — Legally required transfers are reported when incurred as "operating transfers-in"-
by the receiving fund and as "operating transfers-out" by the disbursing fund. i

Transfers of Expenditures (Reimbursements) — Reimbursements of expenditures made by one fund for 2

another are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures/: 4
expenses in the reimbursed fund.

Residual Equity Transfers — Nonroutine or nonrecurring transfers between funds are reported as additions I
to or deductions from fund equity. j

Quasi-external Transactions — Charges or collections for services rendered by one fund to another are
recorded as revenues of the receiving fund and expenditures/expenses of the disbursing fund.

A summary of the State's interfund receivables and payables and operating transfers, as of June 30,
1991, is presented in NOTE 7. ]
!

Q. Memorandum Only —Total Columns

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are captioned "Memorandum Only" to indicate 4
that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows in conformity with GAAP. Neither are such data !
comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this
data.

[ N
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NOTE 2 RESTATEMENTS , RECLASSIFICATIONS, AND CHANGES IN REPORTING
PRACTICES

The retained earnings deficit, as previously reported for the Enterprise Fund, has been restated as
follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Enterprise Fund

Retained Earnings Deficit, as of June 30, 1990
As Previously Reported $ (2,053,836)

Adjustment for Restatement 8,298

Retained Earnings Deficit, as of July 1, 1990
As Restated $ (2,045,538)

The beginning retained earnings for the Petroleum Underground Storage Tank Enterprise Fund was
increased by $8.3 million. This adjustment was necessary since financial position and results of operations,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 1990, for the Petroleum Underground Storage Tank Release
Compensation Board, a component unit established during fiscal year 1990, had not been determined at
the time of publication of the 1990 Ohio Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Certain significant reclassifications, which have been made in the 1991 financial statements, are
summarized as follows:

« The Other Special Revenue Fund, a separate column in the June 30, 1990 report, has been
combined with the Community and Economic Development Special Revenue Fund.

. Amounts due to other governments, previously included and reported under the "Accrued
Liabilities" and "Refund and Other Liabilities" balance sheet accounts, have been reclassified
and are reported under the "Intergovernmental Payable" account.

Other minor reclassifications were made as necessary to comply with current reporting practices.

In addition to the restatements and reclassifications reflected above, the State has changed its accounting
policy to include assets held in the Treasurer of State’s custody in the Agency Fund for the following
entities (See NOTE 1 A.):

Public Employees Retirement System

School Employees Retirement System

State Teachers Retirement System

Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund
Ohio Public Employees Deferred Compensation Board
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NOTE 3 GAAP vs. BUDGETARY BASIS

Actual revenues, operating transfers-in, expenditures, encumbrances, and operating transfers-out on the
budgetary basis do not equal those reported on the GAAP basis in the Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust
Fund. This inequality results primarily from basis differences in the recognition of accruals, deferred
revenue, interfund transactions, and loan transactions, and from timing differences in the budgetary basis
of accounting for encumbrances. On the budgetary basis, encumbrances are recognized as expenditures
in the year encumbered, while on the modified accrual basis, expenditures are recognized when goods or
services are received regardless of the year encumbered.

Budgetary expenditures in the accompanying Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) represent original appropriations modified by
supplemental and amended appropriations.

A reconciliation of the fund balances recorded under the two bases for the General, special revenue, and
debt service funds is presented on the following page.

..:‘

[ —— [ Se— ——— oy

[

[P



i N IR SRR AU IR DIETE B SP I S U JUNE 30, 1991
;VOTE 3 GAAP vs. BUDGETARY BASIS (Continued)

l Reconciliation of GAAP Basis Fund Balances to Budgetary Basis Fund Balances
June 30, 1991
(amounts expressed in thousands)
} Special Debt
General Revenue Service
!‘otal Fund Balances - GAAP Basis ......ccccceeviiiieniinannns $ 696,642 $1,400,928 $650,476
ess: Unbudgeted Fund Balances ..........coocerunmienncsnaces — 317,018" 498,074
otal Budgeted Fund Balances - GAAP Basis ..covvecereiiinns 696,642 1,083,910 152,402
1ess: Reserved Fund Balances ... 163,923 1,481,845 152,402
Less: Designated Fund Balances ... 300,363
jJnreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances -
TEAAP BaASIS c.oveeerereeeririeereercesrecssien et 232,356 (397,935)
}ASIS DIFFERENCES
Revenue Accruals/Adjustments:
Taxes Receivable ... (648,669) {193,753) -
1 Intergovernmental Receivable ... (381,485) (118,166
J Loans Receivable ..o (781) (45,204)
Other Receivables .......ccceeerimniiimeirnenneieninne (9,158) (4,886) -
Due from Other FUNAS ...cccveiiii i (4,805) (45,921) —
] DEfErred REVENUES .......cvveverererecereeesaesissmssissessssssesaeses 10,215 41,322
SUDBLOLAE 1 eeeeeeeeeeeeeresreeesreeereesitsnensas s sesansnieenns {1,034,683) (366,608)
Expenditure Accruals/Adjustments:
B AcCOUNtS Payable ... 50,631 128,303
i Medicaid Claims Payable ..........cocoerimeminmnninisenes 523,703 e -
Accrued Liabililies ......cooovrevriinii e 55,274 37,378 -
, Intergovernmental Payable ... 104,069 283,618
} Due to Other FUNAS ....cceecermirieieieniaresiniisieiiisnieee 23,815 10,302
1 Refund and Other Liabilities .......ccooovvvvenniniiiiinnns 334,856 95,520
SUBDLOIAL o.eveeeeerereerevercreereeseesesr s ssesiesstnas s snnsanas 1,092,348 555,121
}Other Adjustments:
1 Fund Balance Reclassifications:
From Undesignated (Budgetary Basis)
; to Designated for Budget Stabilization ............ccc...... 300,363 -
i Other Reclassifications ......ccvveeeirenenininnn (432) 116,908
OUNOE oeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees et ereeeneerens s b e st e ses s s s isars b {1,452) (638)
SUDLOLAD ovveeeereveereeerirerie oo seesasermnsnsarbesiessne s srnens 298,911 (1,070) 116,908
};Tota| Basis Differences ....cocoveeervieiiree s 356,576 187,443 116,908
TIMING DIFFERENCES
ENCUMDTANCES ....cocoreiereciimeinssess s s (87,778) (153,597)

!

ljJnreserved/Undesignated and Designated for
Budget Stabilization Fund Balances (Deficits) -
} BUdgetary Basis .......ccocewrenmiinminiins s $ 501,156 $ (364,089) $116,908
i fomama—— e ——— o v———

« |n addition to the Ohio Turnpike Commission, this amount includes certain unbudgeted activities within the Community and Economic
% Development, Employment Services, and Student Loan Commission Special Revenue Funds.

} 41
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NOTE 4 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

A. Legal Requirements

The deposit and investment policies of the Treasurer of State and the State Board of Deposit are
governed by the Uniform Depository Act, Chapter 135, Ohio Revised Code, which requires that monies
held by the State be maintained in one of the following three classifications:

Active Deposits — Those monies required to be kept in a cash or near-cash status to meet current

demands. Such monies must be maintained either as cash in the State's treasury or in any of the
following:

* A commercial account that is payable or withdrawable, in whole or in part, on demand;
* A negotiable order of withdrawal account;

* A money market deposit account; or

* A designated warrant clearance account.

Inactive Deposits — Those monies not required for use within the current two-year period of designation .

of depositories. Inactive monies may be deposited or invested only in certificates of deposit maturing
not later than the end of the current period of designation of depositories.

Interim Deposits — Those monies not required for immediate use, but needed before the end of the
current period of designation of depositories. Interim deposits may be deposited or invested in the
following instruments:

* Bonds, notes, or other obligations of or guaranteed by the United States, or those for which the
faith of the United States is pledged for the payment of principal and interest:

* Bonds, notes, debentures, or other obligations or securities issued by any federal government
agency, or the Export-Import Bank of Washington;

* Repurchase agreements in the securities enumerated above;

* Interim deposits in the eligible institutions applying for interim monies;
* Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio;

¢ The Treasurer of State's investment pool;

* Linked deposits, reduced-rate deposits at financial institutions that provide reduced-rate loans to
small businesses, as authorized under Section 135.63, Ohio Revised Code:

* Agricultural linked deposits, reduced-rate deposits at financial institutions placed on or before
June 30, 1987, that provide reduced-rate loans to farmers, as authorized under Section 135.74,
Ohio Revised Code:

| e
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NOTE 4 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

« Reverse repurchase agreements with any eligible financial institution that is a member of the
federal reserve system or federal home loan bank, or any recognized U. S. government securities
dealer;

+  Securities lending agreements with any eligible financial institution that is a member of the
federal reserve system or federal home loan bank, or any recognized U.S. government securities
dealer;

« Commercial paper maturing in 180 days or less, rated in one of the two highest rating categories
by two nationally recognized rating agencies, and not exceeding five percent of the investment
portfolio; and

« Bankers' acceptances maturing in 270 days or less and not exceeding 10 percent of the investment
portfolio.

The State's deposits must be held in insured depositories approved by the State Board of Deposit and
must be fully collateralized.

In some cases, deposit and investment policies of certain individual funds and component units are
established by Ohio Revised Code provisions other than the Uniform Depository Act and by bond trust
agreements. In accordance with applicable statutory authority, the State Highway Patrol Retirement
System Pension Trust Fund, the Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund, and the
Retirement Systems Agency Fund may also invest in common and preferred stocks, domestic and
foreign corporate/government bonds and notes, mortgage loans, limited partnerships, real estate, and/or
other investments.

B. Deposits

As of June 30, 1991 (December 31, 1990, for the Ohio Water Development Authority, Ohio Bureau of
Workers' Compensation, State Highway Patrol Retirement System, State Parking Commission, and Ohio
Tumpike Commission), the carrying amount of the State's deposits was (amounts expressed in thousands)
$344,397 and the bank balance was $332,434. Of the bank balance, $32,885 was fully insured or
collateralized with securities held by the State or its agent in the State's name, $279,691 was collateralized
with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or its agent in the State's
name, and $19,858 although meeting State collateralization requirements was categorized as uninsured
and uncollateralized.

C. Investments

The State categorizes investments to give an indication of the level of credit risk associated with the
State's custodial arrangements at year end. Category | includes investments that are insured, registered,
or held by the State or its agent in the State's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered
investments held by the counterparty’s trust department or its agent in the State's name. Category 3
includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by the counterparty, its trust department, or its
agent, but not in the State's name.
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NOTE 4 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Certain investments have not been categorized because the securities are not used as evidence of the
investment. These uncategorized investments include ownership in mutual funds, real estate, and the
deposits with the federal government and the deferred compensation plan.

The following summary identifies the level of credit risk assumed by the State and the total carrying amount
and market value of the State's investments, as of June 30, 1991 (or December 31, 1990, for those entities/
funds identified in NOTE 1) (amounts expressed in thousands):

Carrying Amount
Market
Category 1 Category2 Category 3 Total Value

U.S. government obligations

and U.S. government agency :

obligations ........ccccovvevieeinveerenrennn, $22,280,259  $1,196,150 $252,454 $23,728,863 $24,201,500
Municipal obligations ..........cccc........ 2,738 e 2,738 2,684
Common and preferred stock .......... 11,284,395 1,859,287 ——-- 13,143,682 15,690,233
Corporate bonds and notes ............. 2,075,219 1,494,954 - 3,570,173 3,580,300
Repurchase agreements.................. 165,178 e 40,333 205,511 205,510
Commercial paper.......cccccocoeeeeneene. 237,982 931,160 4,939 1,174,081 1,174,057
Mortgage loans ........c.cccevceeeenveennen, 5,331,511 1,148,152 ---- 6,479,663 6,535,867
Limited partnerships.......c.c.c.cueeuee... 83,337 609 83,946 84,239
Canadian bonds........c.cccoovrreneanneann, 1,855,861 - n——e 1,855,861 1,836,364
Other investments .........cccccvveevennnn. 921,733 - ---- 921,733 924,066

Total. e, $44,238,213  $6,630,312 $297,726 51,166,251 54,234,820
Real estate ......cccccovvevvviiviiviniinnn. 3,579,051 3,622,781
Mutual funds .......ccocoivviviiiiereree, 21,413 21,317
Deposit with federal government ....... 754,289 754,289
Deposit with deferred

compensation plan .........c..ccoeenee.... 318,394 318,394

Total e $55,839,398 $58,951,601

The total carrying amount of the State's deposits and investments, as of June 30, 1991, reported in the
State's financial statements is $55.9 billion. The total carrying amount of the State's deposits and
investments categorized and/or disclosed in this note is $56.2 billion. A reconciliation of the difference
follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Deposits Investments Total

Cash equity with Treasurer

(Restricted and unrestricted) ..........ccooovveeeveeenn. $ 17,668 $ 2,668,432 $ 2,686,100
Cash with custodian

(Restricted and unrestricted) .............ccccocvvenenn... 77,777 11,363 89,140
INVESIMENTS ... 4512 51,091,930 51,096,442
Deposit with federal government ............................. 754,289 754,289
Deposit with deferred compensation plan ............... 318,394 318,394
Restricted Assets:
INVESIMENES ....vvvreieieeee et eeee e e e eeeienens 41,233 41,233
Dedicated investments ...........cccovvevevvieeeeeeieeeeennn, — 953,057 953,057
Carrying amount per combined balance sheet........ 99,957 55,838,698 55,938,655
Outstanding warrants and other open items ........... 244 440 700 245,140
Total deposits/investments categorized

and/or disclosed..........ocovvevvveiiiiiiiieeeeee e, $344,397 $55,839,398 $56,183,795
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NOTE 5 TAXES

Taxes receivable, as of June 30, 1991, consisted of the following (amounts expressed in thousands):

Special
General Revenue
INCOME TAXES weereerireieeieeeereeerieerenenenens $300,851 $ 39,724
Sales TAXES coovvreeeieeereeeriiieeeevenneosiens 334,212 19,096
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes .....cc.ceeeeees - 131,678
Other TaXeS .covviveeiiiivererierereiireeveareeens 13,606 3,255
L 1017- OO UOR PPN $648,669 $193,753

Debt

Service

6,845

14,076

$20,921

Total

$340,575
353,308
138,523
30,937

$863,343

As of June 30, 1991, refund liabilities related to income and corporation franchise taxes, totaling $371
million, were reported as "Refund and Other Liabilities," of which $333 million was recorded in the

General Fund and $38 million was recorded in the special revenue funds.

NOTE 6 LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable, net of uncollectible amounts, as of June 30, 1991, consisted of the following (amounts

expressed in thousands):

Trust
Special Capital Internal and
General Revenue Projects Service Agency _ Total

Community and Economic Development:
Economic Development ........ccccovnennnee $ - $176,694 $---- $ - $ - $176,694
Minority Business Development ............. e 11,347 o e 11,347
Ohio Housing Finance Agency ............... 13,669 e e - 13,669
Ohio Farm Loans .....c.ccceermenieeiinnncnns -=en 42 e o e 42

Subtotal ... i 201,752 i ~omn ---- 201,752
Education:
Bankruptcy and Port Authority ................ 1,270 e 1,270
Emergency School Advancement .......... 1,615 - 1,615
Public School Building .....c.ccccooiiinirnennn. —-e- 55,913 " e --- 55913
Vocational Education.......c..cccoovinnnnnnnine 2,193 619 — S — 2,812

Subtotal .ooveevee e 3,463 58,147 ---- 61,610
Student Loans .....c.coceeeereeerienniienrencneennns 18,275 e 18,275
Natural Resources .......ccocovuveeeeevicvinennns 164 164
Local Infrastructure Improvements ......... 696 e 696
Ohio Data Network ......ccccovieceiinniinnnnann e 1,023 1,023
Water Pollution Control .....cooooeeeviiiin. 46,911 46,911
Unclaimed Funds ........ooceeeeveiinnnn, o e i --- 13,628 13,628
TOMAL ceeee e $3,463  $278,338 $696 $47,934 $13,628 $344,059
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NOTE 6 LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Other Recejvables

Other receivables, as of June 30, 1991, consisted of the following (amounts expressed in thousands):

Special Debt Capital Internal  Trust and
General Revenue Service Projects Enterprise  Service Agency Total

Accounts Receivable ........... $ 158 $ 4,110 $ - $ - $128,755 $ 1162 $ - $134,185
Interest Receivable............... 9,000 5,945 1,807 1,749 46 3,463 22,010
Leases Receivable .............. - - - - --- 51,717 - 51,717
Receivables from

Lottery Sales Agents ......... 34,812 34,812
Claims and Settlements

Receivable......................... -e- - 26,559 26,559
Unemployment Surcharges

Receivablie...........ccccue..... - 26 - --- --- --- - 26
Miscellaneous

Receivables..........ccccco.c..... 485 1,645 213 441 " 2,784
Total ceveeeeeeeieeeeieeeeeceeee, $9,158  $10,566 $3,452  $1,749  $163,780  $53,366  $30,022 $272,003

The Ohio Building Authority has entered into long-term lease agreements for office space under direct
financing leases with local governments, which are charged a pro-rata share of the buildings' debt service
and operating costs based on square footage occupied. A schedule of future lease amounts due the Ohio
Building Authority Internal Service Fund, net of executory costs, is as follows (amounts expressed in

thousands):

Year Ending June 30,

Lease Amounts Due

$ 6225
6,223
6,229
6,223
6,223

71,562
102,685

(50,968 )

$ 51,717

Nl it
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VOTE 7 INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES/OPERATING TRANSFERS

nterfund receivables and payables, and operating transfers, as of June 30, 1991, are summarized as

ollows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Operating Operating
Fund Type/Fund Due from Due to Transfers-in  Transfers-out

3001OFA] woeeeereeeneeaeieee ettt care s es $ 4,805 $ 23,815 $ 92,012 $ 499,842

Special Revenue:

“ommunity and Economic Development...................... 960 559 7,144 25,095
QUCALION <.ttt ettt s 293 430 585,132 2,145

rlighway Safety ... 13,319 1,888 103,968 439

Highway Operating .........ceccvccerrrereeseereecrenereneenesensensens 1,915 709 459,330 109,156
Yhio Turnpike COMMISSION .......ccovivrvviiiinirenincnnns 23 872 44,444
tevenue Distribution .....ccoovvvvviiivi e 23,740 28 6 523,190

Local Transportation improvements ...........cccoeueeenennee. 135 98 52,998

Other Special Revenue FUNS .....c.ccccvvvevmncricninnenne 5,787 7,005 13,572 13,738

SUBLOtAD .ececiiee e 46,172 11,589 1,222,150 718,207
Jebt Service:

Economic Development Bond Service .........ccccoeneee.e. eee 17,995

“evelopment Bond Retirement ...........ccccoovveevniieeeen. - 18,908 “eee
lighway Obligations Bond Retirement ........................ 12,671 -

rublic Improvements Bond Retirement ....................... —ae- 17,968 -

Local Infrastructure Improvements Bond Retirement... -een R 23,576 e
thio Public Facilities Commission .........ccccovvinniins . 319,312 -
hio Building AUhOTtY ...ccoovriieiieciecne e 98,658 22,985

Other Debt Service FUNdS .......eevevevvveeveveerevecennn 11 16,704

SUDIOIAL oot 12,682 513,121 22,985
“apital Projects:

Jhio Turnpike COMMISSION ..., 288 45,965

Ohio Building AUhOTItY ..o e 22,139 26,270
dministrative Services Building Improvements .......... 19 15,615 e
‘vuth Services Building Improvements .............ccccee... 8 11,000

Other Ca;:ital Projects Funds ........cccoeceevvenneniienecennene 254 812 o 609

SUBLOLAE e 569 812 94,719 26,879
‘nterprise:;

_IQUOT CONMIOL ...ttt 3 37 ——ee 75,539

Ohio Lottery COmMmMISSION .......ccoecvvieerriniinnirceennenncan. 106 1,625 ---- 583,664
“uition Trust AULNOTILY ....eoeveeiiieireccte s -eee 8 "

SUBLOtAl ..o 109 1,670 659,203
internal Service:

Ohio Building AUthOrity ......ooieeiiience e 28,498 31,411
)hio Data NetWOrK ........ccceeeeiiemieneecerce e 10,078 508
hio Penal Industries ......ccoceeeevcinnciinireencnnees 13,317 1,290 -

Water Pollution Control Loan Fund.........cccccovvvevieniines 88 11,896

“ther Internal Service FUNS .....ooeevvveeeie e 8,420 69

SUDLOLAE .o 31,815 1,955 40,394 31,411

Hension Trust:

State Highway Patrol ..o, 1,875
gency :
olding and Distribution ... e 53,599

Payroll Withholding and Fringe Benefits ........c............. 84 12,227

“ther Agency FUNS ..o, 30 — naee o

SUBLOLAL ..ot 114 65,826 - o
Subtotal - Trust and Agency Funds ..o 1,989 65,826

Total per Financial Statements ... 98,141 105,667 1,962,396 1,958,527

econciliation for Timing Differences for Funds with
December 31, 1890 Year Ends ......cccoccevvinnin 8,479 953 (7,869) (4,000)
Reconciled Total ..o $ 106,620 $106,620 $ 1,954 527 $ 1,954,527
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NOTE 8 FIXED ASSETS

A summary of fixed assets by category as of June 30, 1991, follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Enterprise
LANG it sceeereeeresesesre e esressreesne s s e saenes $ 22,263
BUIIHINGS ..oveeeeeveeccererevesenese e eresee e nnanennes 322,430
Land Improvements .........cccennininenennnnienan,
Machinery and Equipment .......c..cccoovviievnnnnnns 102,984
State VehiCles ... 2,196
Construction-in-Progress .......cccccvevvevceviiencennes 5,628
SUDLOTAL 1ot 455,561
Less: Accumulated Depreciation ............c.c... (89,316)

Total. oo $366,245

Internal General Fixed
Service Assets Total
$ - $ 150,971 $ 173,234
3,193 1,630,965 1,956,648
- 103,059 103,059
96,315 158,287 357,586
———- 173,958 176,154
2,022 233,671 241,321
101,530 2,450,911 3,008,002
(52,673) ' (141,989)
$48,857 $2,450,911 $2,866,013

No projects were under construction, for the year ended June 30, 1991, that resulted in capitalized

interest for the proprietary fund types.

State capital appropriations to State-assisted universities and colleges are not reflected in the assets
above, but are generally capitalized and reported in the respective financial statements of those entities.

Changes in general fixed assets for the year ended June 30, 1991, were as follows (amounts expressed in

thousands):
Balance

July 1, 1990
LANA. ..ottt e $ 145,687
BUIAINGS <.eeereeeiireeeieee s re et 1,591,875
Land Improvements .......cccccccerecevvreeereennceenneee 97,678
Machinery and Equipment ..., 153,361
State VehiCles ....cccoveivivieeviiveereeeeerecreeieeeeeevevvnenes 164,798
Construction-in-Progress .........coecvcoevcecnveneenne 120,383

Total .ot $2,273,782

Deletions/ Balance

Additions Net Transfers June 30, 1991
$ 4,551 $ 733 $ 150,971
28,255 10,835 1,630,965
1,700 3,681 103,059
19,972 (15,046) 158,287
18,865 (9,705) 173,958
158,812 (45,524) 233,671
$232,155 $( 55,026 ) $2,450,911

In the proprietary funds, the following estimated useful lives are used to compute depreciation:

Buildings 20 -45 years
Machinery and Equipment 5-20 years

State Vehicles

S years



P EE et i A e JUNE 30, 1991

NOTE 9 PENSION PLANS

All part-time and full-time employees and elected officials of the State are eligible to be covered by one
of the following retirement plans:

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

State Teachers Retirement System (STRS)

State Highway Patrol Retirement System (SHPRS)

The payrolls for State employees covered by PERS, STRS, and SHPRS for the year ended June 30,
1991, were $1.69 billion, $35 million, and $47 million, respectively; the State's total payroll was $2.3
billion.

A. PERS and STRS

Both PERS and STRS are cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement systems.

Participants in PERS, who retire at age 60 with five or more years of service credit or at any age with 30
or more years of service credit, are eligible to receive annual retirement benefits. Persons may retire
with a reduced benefit as early as age 55 with 25 years of service. Retirement benefits vest after five
years of credited service. Law enforcement personnel can retire under the PERS plan at age 52 with 25
years of service credit or as early as age 48 under qualifying circumstances.

PERS benefit payments vary in amount depending on length of public service, final average salary, and
plan of payment selection. For nonlaw enforcement personnel, final salary is determined by taking the
average of ‘he three highest years of earnable salary. For law enforcement officers, the benefit is
calculated by multiplying 2.5 percent of final average salary by the actual years of service for the first 20
years of service and 2.1 percent of final average salary for each year of service over 20 years.

PERS also provides survivor and disability benefits. PERS benefits are established under Chapter 145,
Ohio Revised Code.

Participants in STRS, who retire after 30 years of credited service regardless of age, or at or after age 55
with 25 years of credited service, or at or after age 60 with five years of credited service, are entitled to a
maximum annual retirement benefit, payable in monthly installments for life, equal to the greater of the
"formula benefit" or the "money-purchase benefit" calculation.

Under the "formula benefit" calculation, the maximum annual retirement allowance is equal to 2.1
percent of an average of a member's three highest years' salary multiplied by the member's number of
years of credited service (up to 30 years and 2.5 percent a year for earned Ohio service over 30 years, up
to a maximum allowance of 100 percent of final average salary). Under the "money-purchase benefit"
calculation, a member's lifetime contributions, plus interest at specified rates, are matched by an equal
amount from contributed employer funds. This total is then divided by an actuarially determined
annuity factor to determine the maximum annual retirement allowance. Annually, after retirement,
STRS benefits are increased three percent if the cost of living, as measured by the Consumer Price
Index, has increased at least three percent on a cumulative basis.
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NOTE 9 PENSION PLANS (Continued)

STRS also provides death, survivors', disability, health care, and supplemental benefits. STRS benefits
are established under Chapter 3307, Ohio Revised Code.

Employer and employee required contributions to PERS and STRS are established under the Ohio
Revised Code and are based on percentages of covered employees' gross salaries, which are calculated
annually by the retirement systems' actuaries. Contribution rates for fiscal year 1991 were as follows:

Contribution Rates - Fiscal Year 1991

Employee Share Employer Share
PERS:
Regular Employees 8.50% 13.71%
Law Enforcement Employees 9.50%"* 18.10%"
STRS 9.25% 14.00%

* Effective January 1, 1991, the Law Enforcement employee and employer shares became nine percent
and 16 percent, respectively.

For PERS, 9.23 percent and 12.52 percent of the employer rate is used to fund the pension obligations of
regular and law enforcement employees, respectively. For STRS, 12 percent of the employer rate is
used to fund pension obligations. The difference between the total employer rates and the portion used
to fund pension obligations is the amount used to fund health care programs for retirants covered under
cach plan.

The contribution requirement for the pension obligation under each plan for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1991, is summarized below:
Contributed Amounts — Fiscal Year 1991
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Employee Share Employer Share

PERS:
Regular Employees $141,667 $153,834
Law Enforcement Employees 2,029 2,674
Total $143,696 $156,508
STRS $ 3,250 $ 4,216

The "pension benefit obligation" is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension
benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases and any step-rate benefits, estimated to be
payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. The measure, which is the actuarial present
value of credited projected benefits, is intended to assist financial statement users in assessing a pension
plan's funding status on a going-concern basis and progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to
pay benefits when due and in making comparisons among public employee retirement systems and
employers. The PERS and STRS do not make separate measurements of assets and pension benefit
obligation for individual employers.



AR U S S0
OTES PO TR FINASULAL o T TN JUNE 30, 1991
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Therefore, the pension benefit obligation determined through the most recent actuarial valuation, the net
assets available for benefits, and the unfunded pension benefit obligation for PERS and STRS, as a
whole, are presented below (amounts expressed in thousands):

PERS, STRS,
as of December 31, 1989 as of July 1, 1990
Pension benefit obligation $16,699,000 $23,744,659
Net assets available for benefits
(valued at cost) 14,730,000 17,902,141
Unfunded pension benefit obligation* $ 1,969,000 $ 5,842,518

*Excludes health care benefits

The market value of net assets available for pension benefits for PERS was $16.05 billion at December
31, 1989; the market value of net assets available for pension benefits for STRS at July 1, 1990, was
unavailable. Actuarial valuations are calculated annually by the retirement systems' actuaries.

Occasionally, the General Assembly increases benefit payments to the current PERS and STRS retirees.
In certain instances, concurrent with the passage of such legislation, a provision for payment of these
benefits through State appropriations is made. During the year ended June 30, 1991, the State paid $2.8
million and $4.9 million to PERS and STRS, respectively, for benefit increases. Funding for these
benefit increases is on a pay-as-you-go basis by the State.

The State's actuarially determined contribution requirement for PERS represented approximately 28
percent of total PERS actuarially determined contribution requirements during calendar year 1990 for
all participating entities. Information from STRS to determine the State's actuarially determined
contribution requirement as a percentage of total STRS actuarially determined contribution requirements
of all participating entities for its fiscal year ended June 30, 1991 was not available at the time of
publication of this report; during fiscal year 1990, the State's required contribution to STRS represented
less than one percent of total STRS contributions of all participating entities.

Four-year historical trend information showing PERS's progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due is presented in the PERS financial report, as of December 31, 1990, the most recent
data available. Ten-year historical trend information for STRS is presented in the STRS financial report,
as of June 30, 1990, the most recent data available.

B. SHPRS

SHPRS was established in 1944 by the General Assembly as a single-employer, defined benefit pension
plan. SHPRS is authorized under Chapter 5505, Ohio Revised Code, to provide retirement and disability
benefits to retired members and survivor benefits to qualified dependents of deceased members of the
Ohio State Highway Patrol.
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SHPRS's general administration and management is vested in a six-member retirement board, which
consists of three elected members and three statutory members. The board appoints an executive
director, actuary, investment advisor, investment monitor, and other employees.

SHPRS membership consisted of the following, as of December 31, 1990:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving
benefits and terminated employees entitled to

benefits but not yet receiving them ..., 671
Current employees:
VESTEA ...eiiiiiioeiieinirieer s st ee e s e e e s bee e s aee s s n s s et e s st e s e e nraaeensaraeeenns 309
NOMVESTIEA ..ot s e e s s s e e e s e e s e e s ee e e anneareses 992
TOtAL aveeiiieie ettt ettt e b e et e srr e e ra e e s raeereaeeeareraanns 1,972
Contributions to SHPRS

Chapter 5505, Ohio Revised Code, requires contributions by active members and the Ohio State Highway
Patrol. The employee contribution rate is cstablished by the General Assembly, and any change in the
rate requires legislative action. The employer contribution rate is established by the SHPRS Retirement
Board and certified to the State of Ohio every two years. By law, the employer rate may not exceed
three times the employee contribution rate. Active members and the Ohio State Highway Patrol are
required to contribute 10.5 percent and 24.39 percent, respectively, of active member payroll.
Contributions may be refunded to a member who terminates employment with the Ohio State Highway
Patrol ur to the member's beneficiary following the member’s death.

SHPRS Benefits

Members are eligible for normal retirement benefits upon reaching age 52 and accumulating at least 20
years of Ohio State Highway Patrol service credit. The benefits are a percentage of the member's final
average salary, the average of the member's three highest salaried years. The percentage is determined
by multiplying 2.5 percent times the first 20 years of service plus two percent times the next five years
plus 1.5 percent for each year in excess of 25 years of service. A member's pension cannot exceed 72
percent of the final average salary. Early retirement with reduced benefits is available upon reaching
age 48 with 20 years of service credit. Early retirement with normal benefits is available upon reaching
age 48 with 25 years of service credit.

In addition to the retirement benefits, SHPRS also provides for disability, survivors', and health care
benefits. Qualified dependents of a deceased member are eligible for monthly survivors' benefits. All
members receiving a benefit from SHPRS are eligible to receive medical insurance.

Members with credited service from prior Ohio State Highway Patrol service, military service time prior
to employment, military service interrupting Ohio State Highway Patrol service, and full-time police or
fire service are eligible to purchase SHPRS service credit accumulated in one or all of the retirement
plans related to the above services. Members of the SHPRS with prior participation in Ohio's State
Teachers Retirement System, School Employees Retirement System, Public Employees Retirement
System, or Cincinnati Retirement System are eligible to purchase service credit for one or all of the
related retirement plans.
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NOTE

SHPRS Funding Status and Progress

The amount shown as "pension benefit obligation” is a standardized disclosure measure of the present
value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases estimated to be payable in
the future as a result of employee service to date. The measure is the actuarial present value of credited
projected benefits and is intended to help financial statement users in assessing SHPRS's funding status
on a going-concern basis and its progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due and
in making comparisons among public employee retirement systems. The measure is independent of the
actuarial funding method used to determine contributions to SHPRS.

The pension benefit obligation was determined as part of an actuarial valuation, as of December 31,
1990. Actuarial valuations are calculated annually by SHPRS's actuaries. Significant actuarial assumptions

used in the valuation include the following:

» Rate of return on the SHPRS investments of 7.75 percent, compounded annually, net of admin-
istration expenses;

» Projected salary increases of 5.5 percent, compounded annually, attributable to inflation;

» Additional projected salary increases ranging from 0 to 4.2 percent a year attributable to seniority
and merit;

+ Post-retirement mortality life expectancies of members based on the 1971 Group Annuity
Moi:ality Male and Female Tables, projected to 1984;

« Rates of withdrawal from active service before retirement for reasons other than death and, rates
of disability and expected retirement ages developed on the basis of actual plan experience;

« Health care premiums are assumed to increase 5.5 percent annually;

* Health care benefit recipients are eligible for Medicare on attainment of age 65, or immediately,
if retired for disability;

« Employer contributions paid in equal installments throughout the employer fiscal year; and

Pension benefits will increase after retirement in accordance with valuation assumptions.

Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution requirements were the same as those
used to compute the standardized measure of the pension benefit obligation.
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The total unfunded pension benefit obligation at December 31, 1990 was $70.7 million as follows
(amounts expressed in thousands):

Pension Benefit Obligation:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits and terminated
employees not receiving benefits ... $99,323

Current employees:

Accumulated employee contributions,

including allocated investment iNCOME ........ccccei i 33,450
Employer-financed Vested ... 61,902
Employer-financed nonvested ... 56,451
Total pension benefit obligation ..., $251,126

Net Assets Available for Pension Benefits:

Net assets available for pension benefits

(estimated market value is $202 million) ........ceooeviieierciicee e 180,456
Unfunded pension benefit obligation ...........ccccevviviiincii i $ 70,670

Certain changes in plan benefits caused the pension benefit obligation to increase approximately $1.4
million during calendar year 1990.

SHPRS's funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined rates
that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are sufficient to accumulate assets to pay
benefits when due. Level percentage of payroll employer contribution rates are determined using the
entry age actuarial funding method. SHPRS also uses the level percentage of payroll method to
amortize the unfunded liability over a closed, 40-year period through the year 2019.

During calendar year 1990, contributions were made in accordance with actuarially determined contribution

requirements determined through actuarial valuations performed at December 31, 1990. Total employer
and employee contributions consisted of the following (amounts expressed in thousands):

Percent of Active

Amount Member Payroll
NOIMAL COSES .eviiiiie it $11,830 26.21%
Amortization of the unfunded
actuarial accrued liability .........ccoooiiiiicin 3,865 8.56

TOtAl o $15,695 34.77%
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Trend information gives an indication of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay
pension benefits when due. Three-year trend information for SHPRS follows:

1990 1989 1988
Net assets available for benefits as a
percentage of pension benefit obligation 71.9% 72.2% 73.9%
Unfunded pension benefit obligation as a
percentage of annual covered payroll 156.6% 148.3% 126.1%
Employer contributions as a percentage
of annual covered payroll 20.0% 20.0% 20.6%

SHPRS maintains its own accounting system separately from the State's and publishes a separate
publicly available component unit financial report. The available required 10-year historical trend
information showing the fund's progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is
presented in that report, as of December 31, 1990.

SHPRS Health Care Benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, SHPRS pays health insurance claims on behalf of all persons
receiving a monthly pension or survivor benefit and Medicare Part B basic premiums for those eligible
benefit recipients upon proof of coverage. The cost of retiree health care benefits is recognized as
claims are incurred and premiums are paid. The calendar year 1990 expense was $1.2 million.

Health care benefits are funded on an actuarial basis. During calendar year 1990, average rates of 3.21
percent and 1.16 percent of active member payroll were allocated to fund health care normal costs and
the amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability, respectively, and employer and employee
contributions for health care benefits during 1990 are included in the total contribution balances disclosed
above. The net assets available for benefits allocated to health care costs at December 31, 1990 was
$37.6 million.

The actuarial accrued liability for health care benefits, the portion of the present value of plan promises
to pay benefits in the future that are not covered by future normal cost contributions, was $47.6 million,
as of December 31, 1990.

NOTE 10 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

The State has pledged its faith and credit for the payment of principal and interest on general obligation
bonds accounted for and included with obligations in the General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group.

At various times since 1921, Ohio voters, by 12 constitutional amendments (the last adopted in 1987),
have authorized the incurrence of general obligation debt for the construction and improvement of State
facilities and highways, research and development of coal technology, and local infrastructure
improvements. In practice, general obligation bonds are retired over periods of 10 to 35 years.
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NOTE 10 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (Continued)

As of June 30, 1991, $2.7 billion in general obligation debt (excluding Highway Obligations and
Infrastructure Bonds discussed below) had been authorized by constitutional amendment of which $2.4
billion had been issued and $128 million was outstanding; the authorization to issue $233 million had
expired.

Coal Development bonds may be issued as long as the outstanding principal amount does not exceed
$100 mi! ion.

High Oblig: = nay be issued as long as the outstanding principal amount does not exceed $500
mi! The -  General Assembly authorizations, as of June 30, 1991, for Highway Obligations,
wi -.341  on ch $1.14 billion had been issued and $293 million was outstanding. Additional
Highway €. ga! ay be issued from time to time, as authorized by the General Assembly, as
cutstanding High "o oag are retired.
ATCTT O stitut .ment authorized the issuance of $1.2 billion of general obligation bonds for
VPRRSTRURIRYS (L 1o s (Infrastruct:re Bonds), of which no more than $120 million may be issued
in anv year n >neral Assembly has only authorized $480 million of these

- « deen issued and $223 million was outstanding.

Genera) sdligeno oo nds ouetanding, and bonds authorized but unissued, as of June 30, 1991, were as
fr toywe (- :

Average
Net

Interest Maturing Qutstanding Authorized
Turp 3 ‘zsued Rates Through Balance But Unissued
i T 1971-90 4.3-7.4% 1998 $293,210 $ 196,025
Impr.. .. e 1971 5.1-5.2 1992 9,300 -
Public Improve:. cveneee o 1972-75 4.3-6.0 1995 21,850 e
Development.... ... 1968-72 4.3-59 1995 65,705 —eee
Zoal Research/l’ i G 1986 6.2 1996 31,100 50,000
infre : 3 cvveererens 1988-89 6.6-7.2 2009 223,450 240,000
Total oovvevvreeee =~ e $644,615 $ 486,025

Changes in general ciligation bonds during the year ended June 30, 1991 are summarized in NOTE 16.
Future general obligation debt service requirements, as of June 30, 1991, were as follows (amounts
expressed in thousands):

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
1992 .ot $119,035 $ 35,418 $154,453
1993 e 95,115 28,540 123,655
1994 L. 81,870 23,274 105,144
1995 e 84,545 18,316 102,861
1996 .ot e 66,031 15,768 81,799
Thereafter..........ccocceevviinencrennnn 198,019 100,906 298,925
Total oeeveeeecee $644,615 $222,222 $866,837
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NOTE 11 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS AND NOTES

Special obligation bonds reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group have been
authorized and issued by the Ohio Building Authority (OBA), the Ohio Public Facilities Commission
(OPFC), and the Department of Natural Resources (DNR). OBA bonds finance the capital costs of
categories of facilities including correctional facilities and office buildings for State departments and
agencies and, in some cases, related facilities for local governments. OPFC bonds finance the cost of
capital facilities for State-supported and State-assisted institutions of higher education, mental hygiene
and retardation, and parks and recreation. DNR bonds finance the costs of improvements at Salt Fork
State Park.

OBA bonds issued for State agencies are reflected as special obligation bonds, and OBA bonds issued
for related local government facilities are shown as revenue bonds (See NOTE 12).

OBA and OPFC bonds are secured by pledges of lease rental payments from General Fund appropriations,
funds held by trustees pursuant to related trust agreements, and other receipts, as required by the
respective bond documents.

Special obligation bonds outstanding, and bonds authorized but unissued, as of June 30, 1991, were as
follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Average

Net

Interest Maturing Qutstanding Authorized
Organization Issued Rates Through Balance But Unissued
Ohio Building Authority.....ccccececaeene 1979-91 5.0-9.8% 2014 $1,065,061 $ 455,820
(and variable
rates)
Ohio Public Facilities

COMMISSION ...eevcreiiniiriierieesnnenes 1970-91 5.0-13.1 2006 2,332,875 911,160
Department of Natural Resources... 1969 7.0 1999 3,110 e
Total uveeiereeecerre e $3,401,046 $1,366,980

Changes in special obligation bonds reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group for
the year ended June 30, 1991 are summarized in NOTE 16. Future special obligation bond service
requirements, as of June 30, 1991, were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
1992 1ot $ 223,430 $ 243,662 $ 467,092
1993 e 238,855 222,869 461,724
1994 . e 249,966 205,383 455,349
1995 i 261,362 187,571 448,933
TGOB coveriienreereeiree e esis st ere e 266,806 169,183 435,989
Thereafter ....cocooeereeeivecciiiseiinene 2,160,627 864,369 3,024,996

Total oo $3,401,046 $1,893,037 $5,294,083
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NOTE 11 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS AND NOTES (Continued)

In fiscal year 1991, the OBA advance refunded certain Transportation Facilities and Correctional Facilities
bonds with two separate special obligation refundings. The OBA issued $49.2 million and $58.7 million
of special obligation refunding bonds to advance refund $46.8 million of Transportation Facilities bonds
and $51.2 million of Correctional Facilities bonds, respectively.

The net proceeds of $46.8 million from the Transportation Facilities refunding issue plus an additional
$1.5 million of existing debt service monies were deposited with a fiscal agent in an amount sufficient to
pay the balance of outstanding bonds and all other sums payable to enable early redemption of said
bonds before maturity. The net proceeds of $57.4 million from the Correctional Facilities refunding
issue plus an additional $393 thousand of existing debt service monies were used to purchase U.S.
government securities, which were placed in irrevocable trusts with an agent to provide for all future
debt service payments on the refunded principal. As a result, the refunded bonds are no longer considered
to be outstanding and the corresponding principal amounts have been removed from the total OBA
special obligation bond liability balance in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

The OBA advance refunded the Transportation Facilities bonds at fixed rates below the maximum
variable rates permitted under the original issue. The OBA advance refunded the Correctional Facilities
bonds to reduce its debt service payments over the next 14 years by approximately $5.1 million and to
obtain an economic gain (the difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the
old and new debt) of approximately $3.2 million.

During fiscal year 1991, the OBA issued $10 million of bond anticipation notes, which mature
on February 16, 1992. Total interest in the amount of approximately $244 thousand on the notes, which
are reported as "Special Obligation Notes" in the Ohio Building Authority Capital Projects Fund, is also
scheduled to be paid in fiscal year 1992.

In prior years, OBA and OPFC defeased certain bond issues by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an
irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust
account's assets and the liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the State's financial
statements. As of June 30, 1991, $381 million and $194 million of OBA and OPFC bonds outstanding,
respectively, are considered defeased.

NOTE 12 REVENUE BONDS

The State Constitution permits State agencies and authorities to issue bonds that are not supported by the
faith and credit of the State. These bonds pledge income derived from user fees and rentals on the
acquired or constructed assets to pay the debt service. Issuers include the Ohio Turnpike Commission
(OTC), Treasurer of State for the Ohio Department of Development's Economic Development Financing
Division (EDFD), State Parking Commission (SPC), and Ohio Building Authority (OBA).

OTC bonds financed the construction and acquisition of roadways (the Ohio Turnpike) and equipment.
OTC bonds are payable from OTC revenues, including tolls and other user charges.
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Economic development bonds, issued by the Treasurer of State for the EDFD's Direct Loan Program,
provide financing for loans and loan guarantees to businesses within the State, which cannot obtain
conventional financing for economic development projects that create or retain jobs in the State. The
bonds are secured with profits derived from the sale of spirituous liquor by the Ohio Department of
Liquor Control and pledged monies and related investment earnings held in reserve under a trust
agreement with a financial institution.

Additionally, taxable economic development bonds in the amount of $9 million, issued by the Treasurer
of State in connection with the Ohio Enterprise Bond Program, were outstanding, as of June 30, 1991.
Proceeds from this bond issuance in fiscal year 1988 were placed in a reserve with trustee and are
pledged to secure, in part, the repayment of other economic development bonds issued under this
program.

During fiscal year 1991, $18.5 million of Ohio Enterprise bonds were issued under the authority of
Section 166.09, Ohio Revised Code, to provide private entities with capital financing for economic
development projects. The Ohio Enterprise Bonds, which are reported as "no commitment” debt in
NOTE 13, are primarily secured by the property financed, and payments by the borrowing entities are
used to retire the debt and to service interest payments.

SPC bonds financed the construction of the parking facility located under the statehouse grounds in
Columbus. SPC revenues, after provision for operation and maintenance of the facility, are pledged to
repay the bonds.

Some OBA revenue bonds finance the costs of office buildings and related facilities for shared use by
local governments. The principal and interest requirements on these bonds are paid from rentals
received under the long-term lease agreements discussed in NOTE 6.

Revenue bonds outstanding, as of June 30, 1991 (December 31, 1990, for the SPC and OTC), net of
unamortized discounts as applicable to the proprietary fund types only, were as follows (amounts
expressed in thousands):

Interest Maturing Qutstanding
Organization Issued Rates Through Balance
General Long-Term Obligations:
Ohio Turnpike Commission...........ccceueuiens 1984 8.5% 1992 $ 4,810
Treasurer of State/
Economic Development ........cccoeciniiis 1988-89 6.4-9.7 2001 134,335
Subtotal ...veoveeer 139,145
Enterprise:
State Parking Commission..........coceeeenee. 1989 6.9-7.3 2008 2,793
Internal Service:
Ohio Building Authority ... 1985 55-9.8 2007 51,717
Total v $193,655
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The balance of revenue bonds outstanding for the proprietary fund types, as reported in this note for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1991, include unamortized bond discounts of approximately $3.2 million.

Changes in revenue bonds reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group for the year
ended June 30, 1991, are summarized in NOTE 16.

Future bond service requirements for all revenue bonds, as of June 30, 1991 (December 31, 1990, for the
SPC and OTC), were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

General Long-
Term Obligations

Account Group Enterprise Internal Service
Principal Interest  Principal  Interest  Principal Interest
Year Ending June 30,

1992 e $ 16,395 $8369 $ - $ 199 $ 2025 $ 4200
1993 i 12,430 7,160 95 196 2,175 4,048
1994 .o 13,335 6,331 100 190 2,349 3,881
1995 e 14,255 5,414 105 183 2,529 3,695
1996 ... 15,240 4,427 115 175 2,734 3,490
Thereafter .....c..cccvvvveiienicinnnnns 67,490 23,114 2,410 1,601 43,112 28,447
Total ..o $139,145 $54,815  $2,825 $2,544 $54,924  $47,761

In July 1989, the Treasurer of State defeased outstanding Economic Development Bonds, Series 1983,
issued for the EDFD Direct Loan Program by placing the proceeds of the Liquor Profits Refunding
Bonds, Series 1989, in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old
bonds. Accordingly, the trust account's assets and the liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included
in the State's financial statements. As of June 30, 1991, $144 million of the Series 1983 bonds are
‘considered defeased.

NOTE 13 NO COMMITMENT DEBT (not included in the financial statements)

The State of Ohio by action of the General Assembly created various financing authorities for the
expressed purpose of making available to non-profit and, in some cases, for-profit private entities lower
cost sources of capital financing for facilities and projects found to be for a public purpose. Fees are
assessed to recover related processing and application costs incurred. The authorities' debt instruments
represent limited obligations payable solely from payments made by the borrowing entities. Most of the
bonds are secured by the property financed. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of acquired
property transfers to the entity served by the bond issuance. This debt is not deemed to constitute a debt
of the State or pledge of the faith and credit of the State. Accordingly, these bonds are not reflected in
the accompanying financial statements.



TR
R S L

DR JUNE 30, 1991

B S NI
EARVS IRV N VI L RN

NOTE 13 NO COMMITMENT DEBT (not included in the Jinancial statements)) (Continued)

As of June 30, 1991 (December 31, 1990, for the Ohio Air Quality Development Authority and the
Ohio Water Development Authority), revenue bonds, net of advance refunded bonds of $625 million,
and notes outstanding, as reported in the following organizations' financial statements that represented
"no commitment" debt for the State were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Outstanding
Organization Amount
Ohio Department of Development/Economic Development
FINANCING DIVISION .....cocereiiieeieitetece et $ 53,820
Ohio Air Quality Development AUthOTItY ..........cocvveeveeeeeeeeeeeeeveeeee e, 1,642,357
Ohio Housing Finance Agency (net of discount) ..........cccoeueevvveeeesrevevennnn. 2,223,261
Ohio Water Development Authority (net of discount) ..........ccoeeevveereuennnnn.. 856,019
TOMAL. oottt er et $4,775,457

NOTE 14 CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION

As of June 30, 1991, $10 million and $19.8 million of obligations (including accrued interest and net of
discount) were payable from the Ohio Data Network and the Telecommunications internal service funds,
respectively, for the purchase of data-processing equipment and software, and a telecommunications
system upgrade, financed through the sale of certificates of participation.

Additionally, during fiscal year 1991, the Ohio Expositions Commission entered into a certificate of
participation financing arrangement for the construction of the Celeste Center on the Ohio State
Fairgrounds, and accordingly, $6.1 million of obligations were payable from the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group, as of June 30, 1991.

Under a certificate of participation arrangement, the State is required to make payment subject to

biennial appropriations that approximate the interest and principal payments made by a trustee to
certificate holders. :

Future commitments in connection with which certificates of participation that have been issued, as of
June 30, 1991, were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

General Long-Term

Obligations Account Group Internal Service
Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
Year Ending June 30,

1992, $ 157 $ 445 $ 602 $ 7,990 $2,121 $10,111
1993 i, 204 453 657 8,290 1,538 9,828
1994 ..., 230 427 657 6,365 924 7,289
1995 .., 250 407 657 7,255 290 7,545
1996 ..., 270 387 657 -ees
Thereafter ............ 4,994 1,630 6,624 o

Total......covevnecnnnn. $6,105 $3,749 $9,854 $29,900 $4,873 $34,773
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NOTE 14 CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION (Continued)

Changes in certificate of participation obligations reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group for the year ended June 30, 1991 are summarized in NOTE 16.

In November 1985, the State defeased outstanding Series 1983 certificates of participation related to the
microwave telecommunications system, by placing the proceeds of the new Series 1985 certificates in
an irrevocable trust to provide for all future service payments on the Series 1983 certificates. Accordingly,
$4.6 million of the Series 1983 certificates, which are not included in the State's financial statements,
were outstanding, as of June 30, 1991.

Certificates of participation obligations are reported in the internal service funds as "Accrued Liabilities"
in the amount of $342 thousand, "Certificates of Participation” in the amount of $21.4 million, and
"Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets” in the amount of $8.1 million.

NOTE 15 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

As of June 30, 1991, other general long-term obligations of the State reported in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Compensated Absences (A) ... $183,814
Lease Agreements (B) ..o 11,253
Judgments, Settlements, and Claims (C) .......c..cooeeenn 259,859
Litigation Liabilities (C) ..cceverererincnmiiiiniiiinn 66,348
Workers' Compensation Obligation (D) .......cccovvcrnnn 409,611
Employee Severance Anticipation

Compensation Plan (E) ... 7,874
Total Other General Long-Term Obligations ................ $938.759

A. Compensated Absences

Generally, employees accrue vacation leave at a rate of 3.1 hours every two weeks for the first five years
of employment, up to a maximum rate of 7.7 hours every two weeks after 20 years of employment.
Employees may accrue a maximum of three years vacation leave credit. At termination or retirement,
employees are paid at their full rate 100 percent of unused vacation leave, personal leave, and compensatory
time and 50 percent of unused sick leave.

In order to lessen the impact of terminal leave pay on a given State agency's budget, an accrued leave
funding program was instituted by law in 1982. State agencies must contribute a percentage of gross
payroll to a common pool of resources from which terminal leave expenditures/expenses are paid. The
amount of cash equity with Treasurer and related interest receivable available to satisfy terminal pay
claims at June 30, 1991, was $35 million. These and related assets are reported as part of the Payroll
Withholding and Fringe Benefits Agency Fund.

The compensated absence liability for proprietary funds is reported net of their portion of accrued leave
funding and is reflected in accrued liabilities. The compensated absence liability for governmental
funds is also reported net of their portion of the accrued leave funding and is reported as part of the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.
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NOTE 15 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

The gross compensated absences liability, as of June 30, 1991, was $237 million of which $21 million is
allocable to the proprietary funds and $216 million is allocable to the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group. The net (after reduction of the $35 million) compensated absence liability, as of
June 30, 1991, was $202 million, of which $18 million is reported in the proprietary funds and $184
million is reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

B. Lease Agreements

The State leases office buildings and office and computer equipment. Although the lease terms vary,
most leases are renewable subject to biennial appropriations by the General Assembly. If the likelihood
of the exercise of a fiscal funding clause in the lease agreement is, in the judgment of management,
] remote, then the lease is considered noncancelable for financial reporting purposes and is reported as a
1 fund expenditure/expense for operating leases or in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
_or appropriate proprietary fund types for capital leases.

o

4 Assets acquired through capital leasing are valued at the lower of fair market value or the present value
of the future minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease. The noncurrent portion of capital
lease obligations for the proprietary fund types are reported in those funds as long-term obligations. The

“related assets and depreciation of these assets are included in the proprietary funds. Capital lease

,obligations for the governmental fund types are reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account

{Group and the related assets are reported in the General Fixed Assets Account Group.

aOperating leases (leases on assets not recorded in the combined balance sheet) contain various renewal
Yoptions as well as some purchase options.

1Any escalation clauses, sublease rentals, and contingent rents are considered immaterial to the future
!minimum lease payments and current rental expenditures. Operating lease payments are recorded as
_expenditures or expenses of the related funds when paid or incurred.
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NOTE 15 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

The total operating lease expenditures/expenses for fiscal year 1991 were approximately $98 million.
Future minimum lease commitments for operating leases and capital leases judged to be noncancelable,
as of June 30, 1991, were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

CAPITAL LEASES
General Internal
Operating Long-Term Service
Leases Obligations Funds Total
Fiscal year ending June 30,

1992 i e $15,137 $ 6,057 $ 6,466 $12,523
1993 e 12,631 4,115 5,420 9,535 j
1994 oo e 5,576 1,782 5,073 6,855
1995 oot 2,673 869 4,055 4,924
TG .ot e 288 100 936 1,036
Thereafter......ccccoevvvcinereeiniciieicceeee, 146 e e o
Total minimum lease payments .............. $36,451 12,923 21,950 34,873
Less: Amount representing interest....... (1,670) (2,403) {4,073)
Present value of net minimum lease
PAYMENTS .oivieiriaeisreneneeesreeerreenreeeseeeas $11,253 $19,547 $30,800

As of June 30, 1991, the State had the following fixed assets (net of accumulated depreciation for
proprietary funds) under capital leases, which are reported under "Accrued Liabilities” in the proprietary |
funds (amounts expressed in thousands):

General g
Fixed Internal
Assets Service Total
EQUIDMENE ..o $24,670 $20,154 $44,824 5
VEhICIES ..o 321 ---- 321
Total oo $24,991 $20,154 $45,145

Amortization expense for the proprietary funds is included with depreciation expense.

C. Judgments, Settlements, and Claims/Litigation Liabilities

The Ohio Department of Education has been involved with several school desegregation court cases
filed against the State by various local boards of education. In cases where the judgment went against
the State, the courts decided that the State was responsible for sharing in all past and future desegregation
costs. As of June 30, 1991, the State was responsible for an estimated $175 million liability for past
desegregation costs, which is recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

[
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NOTE 15 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

The State has made provision to reimburse Ohio counties in the aggregate up to $81 million for
payments to providers of medical services rendered prior to July 1, 1991 under the State's General
Assistance Medical Program. The estimated liability, which is recorded in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group, resulted when responsibility for the making of direct provider payments
was transferred from the counties to the State's Department of Human Services.

Additionally, the State has accrued approximately $4 million in general long-term obligations payable to
the federal government for an estimated arbitrage rebate amount calculated for State bond issuances and
for indirect cost overcharges.

For information on the State's loss contingencies arising from pending litigation, see NOTE 21.

D. Workers' Compensation Obligation

The State is permitted to pay its workers’ compensation liability on a terminal funding (pay-as-you-go)

7 basis. As a result, the Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund recognized an unbilled premium receivable
, for the State's portion of its actuarially determined liability for compensation, which is recorded in the
{ General Long-Term Obligations Account Group in the amount of $410 million.

E. Employee Severance Anticipation Compensation Plan

The Ohio Tumnpike Commission has adopted by resolution an "Employee Severance Anticipation
Compensation Plan" (Plan), which will provide severance pay to each eligible employee whose
employment by the Commission is terminated in the event the Turnpike Project No. 1 is turned over to
the State of Ohio as a toll-free road. The amounts paid will cover years of service, unused sick leave,
and vacation leave, with such amounts being determined by the Plan's provision. The accrued liability
for vacation leave and unused sick leave, as of December 31, 1990, was approximately $8 million and
is reflected in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

F. Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets

| Deferred Prize Awards

Deferred prize awards payable in installments over future years totaling $960 million, as of
June 30, 1991, are recorded as "Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets" at present value based upon

" interest rates the Treasurer of State provides the Ohio Lottery Commission Enterprise Fund. The

‘nterest rates are reviewed by the Ohio Office of Budget and Management and represent the expected
long-term rate of return on the assets restricted for the payment of deferred prize awards. Once
established for a particular deferred prize award, the interest rate does not change with changes in the
expected long-term rate of return. The difference between the present value and gross amount of the
obligations is amortized into income over the terms of the obligations using the interest method.
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NOTE 15 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

The present value of future payments for unpaid prize awards, as of June 30, 1991, is summarized as
follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Year Ending June 30,

TO9Z e $106,308
1903 e e 105,951
TG4 e 105,936
1008 e 105,076
1906 e 104,596
Therealter ..o e 1,223,891
TOtAL e e 1,751,758
Unamortized DISCOUNt .......ooivvveeeeieeeee e (791,756)
Net Prize Liability ...........oooovviviie e $960,002

Prizes can be claimed within one year of th.= drawing date for on-line games and within one year of the
close of a game for instant games. After the expiration of the statutory one-year period, the prize
liability is reduced for the unclaimed prizes.

Tuition Benefits

The actuarial present value of future tuition benefits payable from the Tuition Trust Authority Enterprise
Fund totaling $18.8 million, as of June 30, 1991, are also recorded as "Liabilities Payable from Restricted
Assets.” The valuation method reflects the present value of estimated tuition benefits that will be paid in
future years and is adjusted for the effects of projected tuition increases at State-assisted universities and
colleges and termination of plan participation.

G. Reserve for Compensation

The Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund provides benefits to employees for losses
sustained from job-related injury, disease, or death. The Bureau has computed a reserve for compensation,
as of December 31, 1990, of $10.68 billion. The reserve, which includes estimates for reported claims
and claims incurred but not reported, is reported as "Workers' Compensation Benefits Payable."
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' NOTE 16  CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
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Changes in general long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 1991, are summarized as follows
(amounts expressed in thousands):

Other
General Special Certificates General
Obligation Obligation Revenue of Long-Term
Bonds Bonds Bonds Participation ~ Obligations
(NOTE 10) (NOTE 11) (NOTE 12)  (NOTE 14) (NOTE 15) Total
Balance, as of July 1, 1990 ............. $707,175 $3,266,865 $149,990 $ - $679,564 $4,803,594
Additions:
DEDE ISSUBS .veeeereemrernresreesemessnnanes 75,000 447,925 s 6,105 529,030
Compensated ADSBNCeS ............... —ees ——-n 24,243 24,243
increase in Lease Qbligations ....... - 4,205 4,205
increase in Judgments,
Settlements, and Claims ............. - 117,535 117,535
Increase in Workers' Compensation
OBHGAtION ...covereenccsrirnrsnseecscaens —ee 95,055 95,055
Increase in Contingent Liabilities ... - 66,348 66,348
Total AdIfIONS ..oevvecireineeeirnees 75,000 447,925 6,105 307,386 836,416
Deductions:
Debt Retirements, Terminations, and
DefEaSANCES ...evvcrerrreraramecessrrenes 137,560 313,744 10,845 —--- 462,149
Decrease in Lease Obligations ..... e 1,650 1,650
Decrease in Judgments,
Seftlements, and Claims ............. - 37,838 37,838
Decrease in Contingent Liabilities . 8,703 8,703
Total Deductions ......cccecerceiiiininens 137,560 313,744 10,845 48,191 510,340
Balance, as of June 30, 1991.......... $644,615 $3,401,046 $139,145 $6,105 $938,759 $5,129,670

Fiscal year 1991 additions to the special obligation bonds and certificates of participation include
discounts of approximately $3.1 million and $244 thousand, respectively. The $4.2 million increase in
lease obligations is considered to be immaterial for the General Fund, and therefore, is not reflected in
the "Other Financing Sources (Uses)" section of the General Fund's operating statement.

NOTE 17 DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The State offers its employees and elected officials a deferred compensation plan created in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code Section 457 that is reported in the Deferred Compensation Agency Fund.
The plan, available to any public employee, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary and the
related tax liability until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.
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NOTE 17 DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN (Continued)

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those
amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made
avatlable to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the State (without being
restricted to the provisions of benefits under the plan), subject only to the claim of the State's general
creditors. Participants' rights under the plan are equal to those of general creditors of the State in an
amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account for each participant. The Plan Agreement
states that the State and the Ohio Public Employees Deferred Compensation Board, the plan administrator,
have no liability for losses under the plan with exception of fraud or wrongful taking,

The State believes that it is unlikely that the assets will be used to satisfy the claims of general creditors
in the future, and no assets have been used in the past to satisfy such claims.

The $318 million balance reported on the Combined Balance Sheet — All Fund Types and Account
Groups as "Deposit with Deferred Compensation Plan" represents State assets actually held by the plan
administrator. Plan assets are carried at market value.

NOTE 18 ENTERPRISE FUNDS

A. Segment Information

The State has six enterprise funds, which provide for state parking facilities, liquor sales, lottery sales,
workers’ compensation insurance services, tuition guarantee program, and reimbursements for clean-up

costs resulting from accidental petroleum underground storage tank releases.

Segment information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991, unless otherwise noted, was as follows
(amounts expressed in thousands):

State Petroleum
Parking Ohio Workers' Tuition  Underground Total
Commission Liquor Lottery Compensation Trust Storage Enterprise
(12/31/90) Control  Commission (12/31/90) Authority ~ Tank Fund Funds
Operating revenues................ $ 1,606 $354,551  $1,664,178 $ 2,701,754  $ 3,749 $ 7792 $4,733,630
Depreciation and
amortization......................... 204 1,040 77,961 20,106 14 99,325
Operating income (loss) ........ 391 75,867 563,566 (247,976) 2,631 7,400 401,879
Operating transfers-out ......... 75,539 583,664 659,203
Net income (loss) .................. 733 337 (20,097) (247,975 2,699 8,336 (255,968 )
Fixed asset additions ............ 4,052 305 8,780 70,476 46 36,235 119,894
Fixed asset disposals ............ 38 29 67
Net working capitat ............... 3,954 14,561 35,166 2,030,259 1,535 16,598 2,102,073
Increase (decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents .. 1,160 4,141 (36,545) 1,946 (134) 672 (28,760)
Total assets......................... 13,152 42,083 1,041,502 9,896,812 20,800 19,948 11,034,387
Bonds and other noncurrent
liabilities payable from
operating revenues ............ 2,793 1,134 10,676,924 10,680,851
Total equity (deficits) ............. 9,900 17,807 57,622 (1,606,799) 1,927 16,634 (1,502,809)
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NOTE 18 ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued)

B. Workers' Compensation Fund

The financial statements of the Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation and the Industrial Commission
of Ohio (Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund), as of and for the year ended December 31, 1990,
were examined by their independent auditors, who issued a report on their examination on
July 19, 1991. As discussed in the audit report, the reserve for compensation is based on historical
claims experience data and the reserve for compensation adjustment expenses is based, in part, on the
reserve for compensation. In addition, new administrative procedures regarding claims adjudication and
processing and other factors may result in the reserve for compensation liability varying significantly
from the amount reported in the financial statements of the Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund.
Furthermore, the ultimate outcome of pending litigation and other uncertainties was not determinable, so
no provision for any liability or adjustments that may result from these matters has been recognized in
the financial statements of the Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund. For additional information,
refer to the separate audit report.

NOTE 19 FUND EQUITY — OTHER RESERVES

Details of "Reserved for Other” in the accompanying financial statements, as of June 30, 1991, in the
governmental funds follow (amounts expressed in thousands):

Reserved for Other:
Special Capital
General Revenue Projects Total
Intergovernmental Receivable:

Advance Payments to Subrecipients............... $24,752 $12,601 $ - $ 37,353
INVENTOMES eveverrerrerniessirnesrmesscansesesnssaunessssssesesaas 3,951 37,271 e 41,222
Other Assets:

PrEPAIAS ..eeeeusrerrssssmsersemismssassisessisinsssssancssesss 5,364 12 5,376
Minority Contractors’ Bonding Program............... e 2,700 L e 2,700
Guaranteed Student Loan Program ...........c...... -—-- 10,334 e 10,334
Capital QUHAY ...oeierrersiirrmnrsenisnsissnsss s e 17,538 17,538
Loan ComMMItMEnts .....covrreemeemmmiimmrieinns o 15,230 15,230
TOUAD «ovveeereeeeeeeeeeneereeeeeseie e ea st ens $34,067 $62,918 $32,768 $129,753

Reserved retained earnings for the Enterprise Fund, as of June 30, 1991, are provided for insurance
claims relating to the Workers' Compensation Fund in the amount of $150 million and for the payment
of deferred lottery prizes relating to the Ohio Lottery Commission Fund in the amount of $4.6 million.
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NOTE 20 FUND BALANCE/RETAINED EARNINGS DEFICITS

A fund balance deficit of $1.1 million is reported for the Highway Obligations Construction Capital
Projects Fund, as of June 30, 1991.

A retained earnings deficit of $2.41 billion is reported for the Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund,
as of December 31, 1990. This represents an 11.5 percent increase in the deficit since December 31,
1989. Management believes improvement in the financial condition of the Workers' Compensation
Fund can be achieved through current and future programs aimed at controlling medical claim costs and
lost time compensation claim expenses. Programs including usual, customary and reasonable care
reimbursement to providers and increased safety reviews for employers with deteriorating claims
experience are expected to reduce claims volume, severity and duration, and lead to improved claims
experience.

NOTE 21 CONTINGENCIES

The State, its units and employees are parties to numerous legal proceedings, which normally occur in
governmental operations. All legal proceedings are not, in the opinion of management after consultation
with the Attorney General, likely to have a material adverse effect on the financial position of any of the
State's fund types and account groups.

In instances when the unfavorable outcome of pending litigation has been assessed to be likely, liabilities
are recorded in the financial statements. As of June 30, 1991, $66.3 million in liabilities has been
recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group for this purpose.

The State of Ohio receives significant financial assistance from the federal government in the form of
grants and entitlements, including non-cash programs (which are not included in the general purpose
financial statements). Receipt of grants is generally conditioned upon compliance with terms and
conditions of the grant agreements and applicable federal regulations, including the expenditure of
resources for eligible purposes. Substantially all grants are subject to either the Federal Single Audit or
to financial and compliance audits by the grantor agencies of the federal government or their designees.
Disallowances and sanctions as a result of these audits may become liabilities of the applicable funds or
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

As a result of the 1990 State of Ohio Single Audit (completed in September 1991), the allowability of
approximately $2.8 billion of federal expenditures is in question due to inadequate grant-specific
accounting records at the Departments of Human Services and Health. This amount will be contested
with the federal agencies involved. The amount of expenditures, which may be ultimately disallowed by
the grantor, cannot be determined at this time, and consequently, no provision for any liability or
adjustments for this matter has been recognized in the State's financial statements for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1991. Management believes the likelihood of a material loss for the State as a result of
this matter is remote.
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NOTE 22 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to June 30, 1991, the State issued the following major debt (amounts expressed in thousands):

Net
Interest
Organization Date of Issue Cost Amount Type of Debt
Commissioners of the Sinking Fund:
Highway Obligations, Series @ N July 11, 1991 5.87% $100,000 General Obigation
Ohio Building Authority:
State Facilities Bond Anticipation Notes:
Adult Correctional Building Fund Projects,
1991 SIS A .oovvrvereeie e July 3, 1991 Variable 5,000 Special Obligation
Ohio Center for the Arts, 1991 Series A ........ August 1, 1991 4.70 5,000 Special Obligation
Ohio Public Faciliies Commission:
Higher Education Facilities, Series 11-1991B...  October 8, 1991 6.06 115,000  Special Obligation
Ohio Housing Finance Agency:
Single Family Mortgage Revenue, 1991
Series A-1, A-2,B-3,B-4,C& Do August 15, 1991 5.60-7.05 No Commitment
and
Variable
Rates 379,100

o) c2| FRUTTTR PR RO P O PPPP PR CRIITEE $604,100

* Nominal Interest Rates on 1991 SeriesC &D

The Ohio Building Authority advance refunded the State Facilities Bonds (Columbus State Office
Tower), 1979 Series A. The advance refunding was completed in October 1991 when the State Facilities
Refunding Bonds (James A. Rhodes State Office Tower), 1991 Series A, were issued in the amount of
$71.1 million. The refunding bonds are special obligations of the State.

Subsequent to December 31, 1990, the Ohio Supreme Court ruled the Intentional Tort Act unconstitutional
in August 1991. The Act provides for the payment of punitive damages and workers' compensation
benefits from the Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund upon court determination that an employee's
injury, occupational disease, or death resulted from an intentional tort of the employers. As a result of
the ruling, it is likely premiums collected under the Act, estimated at an amount between $30 and $40

~: million, will be refunded from the Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund. No provision for any

" liability or adjustments resulting from this matter has been recognized in the financial statements of the

Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund. (See NOTE 18 B.)
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The Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenues that are legally restricted
to expenditure for designated purposes.

The Community and Economic Development Fund accounts for programs administered by
the Department of Development, the Ohio Housing Finance Agency, the Ohio Air Quality
Development Authority, the Ohio Water Development Authority, and other various State
agencies, which are designed to assure the efficient use of resources for the State's economic
growth and development.

The Human Services Fund accounts for public assistance programs primarily administered by
the Department of Human Services, which provide financial assistance, services, and trainin gto
those individuals and families who do not have sufficient resources to meet their basic needs.

The Health Fund accounts for public health programs primarily administered by the Department
of Health, which promote the prevention and treatment of diseases and illnesses through
technical assistance, health education, and research.

The Mental Health and Retardation Fund accounts for mental health care and retardation
programs administered by the Department of Mental Health and the Department of Mental
Retardation and Developmental Disabilities, which provide assistance, services, and medical
care to those individuals with mental health and developmental disability problems.

The Employment Services Fund accounts for programs administered by the Ohio Bureau of
Employment Services, which provide unemployment benefits, job placement services, and
training to eligible individuals.

The Education Fund accounts for programs administered by the Department of Education, the
Ohio Board of Regents, and other various State agencies, which prescribe the State's minimum
educational requirements and which provide funding and assistance to local school districts for
basic instruction and vocational and technical job training and to the State's colleges and
universities for post-secondary education.

The Student Loan Commission Fund accounts for the Federal Guaranteed Student Loan
Program and other programs administered by the Ohio Student Loan Commission, which
provide financial assistance to elj gible individuals attending higher educational institutions,
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The Highway Safety Fund accounts for public safety programs administered by the Department
of Highway Safety, which are designed to enforce traffic-related laws for the purpose of reducing
accidents, deaths, injuries, and property damages on Ohio highways.

The Highway Operating Fund accounts for programs administered by the Department of
Transportation, which provide for the planning and design, construction, and maintenance of
Ohio's highways and roads.

The Ohio Turnpike Commission Fund accounts for the general operations of the Ohio
Turnpike Commission, which is authorized by the Ohio General Assembly to construct,
maintain, repair, police, and operate turnpike projects at such locations approved by the State.

The Natural Resources Fund accounts for environmental programs administered by the
Department ot : -..tural Resources, the Environmental Protection Agency, and other various State
agencies, which promote, protect, and manage the State's natural resources and environment.

aterway Safety Fund accounts for programs administered by the Department
of N . ... ..esou: .- Divisions of Wildlife and Watercraft, which promote, protect, and manage
+ State's 1310 and waterways and which provide technical assistance and education to the

The Revei. . w. wribution Fund accounts for tax relief and aid to local government programs,
which derive funding from tax and other revenues levied, collected, and designated by the State
for these purposes.

The Local Transportation Improvements Fund accounts for the Local Transportation
Improvement Program administered by the Ohio Public Works Commission, which provides
grants to local governments for highway, road, and bridge construction.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . . . . .. ... ......
Cash with Custodian . . . . . . . . . ... ... ......
Investments. . . . . . . . .. ...
Receivables:

TAXES .« o v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e

Intergovernmental . . . . . . . . . .. ...

Loans, Nel . . . . . . . . . . . e

Other . . . . e e e e e e e e e e e
Due from Other Funds . . . . . . . ... ... .. ......
Inventories . . . . . . . . . . . e e
Restricted Assets:

Investments . . . . . . . . . . . e e e e e
Other ASSels . . . . . . . . . . i i

TOTAL ASSETS . . . . . . .. ... . ..........

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable . . . . .. .. .. .. ... ... ... ...
Accrued Liabilities . . . . . .. . .. . ... ... .. ...,
Intergovernmental Payable . . . . ... ... .. .......
Due to Other Funds . . . . . . . . ... . ... ..
Deferred Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . ...
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . . . . .. ... ... ....

Total Liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .. ... ...,

Fund Balances:

Reserved for:
Encumbrances . . . . . . . . .. oo e e
Noncurrent Portion of Loans Receivable . . . . . . . .. ...

Other:

Advance Payments to Subrecipients. . . . . . . .. .. ..
Inventories . . . . . . . . . .. e
Prepaids . . . . . . . . . . . e e
Minority Contractors’ Bonding Program . . . . . . . .. ..
Guaranteed Student Loan Program . . . . . . . . ... ..
Unreserved/Undesignated (Deficits) . . . . . . . .. .. ...

Total Fund Balances. . . . . . .. .. . ... .. .....
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES . .

COMMUNITY
AND ECONOMIC HUMAN
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES HEALTH
$ 158,943 $ 59,851 $ 29,727
1,406 47 —
30,767 — —
1,201 — —
10,080 22,779 9,581
201,752 — —_
2,784 89 —
960 34 416
1,727 — —
$ 409,620 $ 82,800 $ 39,724
$ 22,501 $ 14,125 $ 10,949
3,834 2,704 1,164
5,078 6,918 5,092
559 286 437
1,374 11,515 7,609
6,076 12,755 —
39,422 48,303 25,251
103,095 130,290 7,183
187,144 —_ —
2,700 — —
77,259 (95,793) 7,290
370,198 34,497 14,473
$ 409,620 $ 82,800 $ 39,724

. S

[—
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MENTAL HEALTH
AND

EMPLOYMENT STUDENT LOAN HIGHWAY HIGHWAY
RETARDATION SERVICES EDUCATION COMMISSION SAFETY OPERATING
34,411 29841 § 129,414  § 142 66,567 § 330,300
— 597 — 6,664 — —
— 24,898 165 9,961 — —
— — — — — 31,302
21,153 12,601 31,152 13,856 871 20,993
— — 58,147 18,275 — —
987 2 823 1,272 222 1,577
5,195 23 293 — 13,319 1,915
— 1,116 — — — 36,155
— 20 — 15,371 — —
61,746 69,122 § 219994 § 65,541 80979 § 422242
1,755 10,120 § 1,089 § 132 2686 § 85,316
6,238 3,343 843 249 5,499 14,253
18,004 — 29,563 11,868 145 621
5,675 244 430 18 1,888 709
— 4,904 309 9,246 — 17,095
— — 44,664 15,410 — —
31,672 18,611 76,898 36,923 10,218 117,994
15,410 1,875 189,399 458 8,676 936,949
— - 12,966 17,814 — —
— 12,601 — — — —
— 1,116 — — — 36,155
— — — 10,334 — —
14,664 34,919 (59,269) — 62,085 (668,856)
30,074 50,511 143,096 28,618 70,761 304,248
61,746 69,122 $ 219994 § 65,541 80979 § 422242

(continued)
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)
(continued)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . . .. . . . . ... ... ....
Cash with Custodian . . . . .. . ... ... ... ... ...
INvestments. . . . . . . . . e e
Receivables:

TAXES . .« o o e e e e e e e e e e e e

Intergovernmental . . . . . . . ... ...

Loans, Net . . . . . . . . i e e e

ORI . . o o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
Due from Other Funds . . . . . . . .. ... ... .....
Inventories . . . . . . . . . .. e e
Restricted Assets:

INVestments . . . . . . . . . e e e e e e e e e e e e
Other ASsSelS . . . . . . . v i i i e e e e

TOTAL ASSETS . . . . ... .. ... . ... . ... ..

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable . . . . . . .. ... ... ... ... ...
Accrued Liabilities . . . . . . . . . ..
Intergovernmental Payable . . . . . ... ... ... .....
Due to Other Funds . . . . .. . . .. ... . .......
Deferred Ravenues . . . . . . . . ..« i
Refund and Other Liabilites . . . ... ... ... ......

Total Liabilities . . . . . .. ... ... ... . ... ... .

Fund Balances:

78

Reserved for:
Encumbrances . . . . . . v« o e e e e e e e e e e
Noncurrent Portion of Loans Receivable . . . . . .. .. ...
Other:
Advance Payments to Subrecipients. . . . . . . . . .. ..
Inventories . . . . . . . . . .. e e
Prepaids . . . . . . . . .
Minority Contractors’ Bonding Program . . . . . . . . ...
Guaranteed Student Loan Program . . . . . . . ... ...
Unreserved/Undesignated (Deficits) . . . . . . .. ... ...

Total Fund Balances. . . . . . . . . . .. ... ......
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES . .

WILDLIFE AND

OHIO TURNPIKE NATURAL WATERWAY
COMMISSION RESOURCES SAFETY

$ - $ 135,237 $ 25,262
1,048 401 24
-_ 954 693
- 305 1,252

- 164 —_
1,728 390 108
23 83 36

3,341 - -—

19,084 —_— —_

1,149 — —
3 26,373 3 137,534 $ 27,375
$ 650 $ 4,009 $ 1,854
3,717 2,148 1,122

—_ 149 -
872 313 32

- 632 -
5,239 7,349 3,008
- 34,322 7,462

- 143 -
21,134 95,720 16,905
21,134 130,185 24,367
$ 26,373 3 137,534 $ 27,375




PU——_—Y s o

Lm— ncaisasann et

LOCAL

REVENUE TRANSPORTATION
DISTRIBUTION IMPROVEMENTS TOTAL

$ 167,148 § 86.566 1,253,429
— — 10,187

— — 65.791

159,603 — 193,753

— — 144,623

— — 278,338

153 407 10,566

23,740 135 46,172

— — 40,612

— — 19,084

— — 18,267

§ 350644 S 87,128 2,080,822
$ -  $ 33 155,219
- 8 45,122

214,224 3,824 295,486

28 98 11,589

2,788 — 55,472

38,003 - 117,006

255,043 3,963 679,894

— — 1,435,119

. — 218,067

— — 12,601

— — 37,271

— — 12

— — 2,700

— — 10,334
95,601 83,165 (315,176)

95,601 83,165 1,400,928

$§ 350644 87,128 2,080,822
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES:
Income Taxes . . .. ... ... . ... ... ...
Sales Taxes . ... .. . . ... ...
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . . . . ... .........
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . . . . . . . . ... ... ... ....
Other Taxes . . . ... . ... ... ... ..
Licenses, Permits and Fees . . . . . .. ... ... .......
Sales, Services and Charges . . ... ... ...........
Federal Government. . . . . . . . . . .. ... .. ... ... ..

EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education . . .. ... ... ..
Higher Education Support. . . . ... . ... ... .. ......
Public Assistance and Medicaid . . . . . .. ... .. ... ...
Health and Human Services . . . . . ... ... ... ......
Justice and Public Protection . . ... ... ... ... .....
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources . . . . . . . .
Transportation. . . . . . .. ... ... ... ... . ... ... .
General Government. . . . . . . ... . ... .. ... ... ..

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . . . . . ... ... ..........

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers-in. . . . . . .. ... ... ..........
Operating Transfers-out . . . . . ... ... ... ... ......

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . . . . ... ..
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING USES . . . . . . . .. .. .. ... . .........
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1. . . . . . . . ... ... . ... ......

DECREASE FOR CHANGES IN INVENTORIES. . . . . . . . . . ...

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30. ... .. ... ... ... ..

COMMUNITY
AND ECONOMIC HUMAN
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES HEALTH
$ 2964 § — —
9,636 _ —
313 — —
1,202 — —
15,329 — —
52,586 4,825 8,276
14,795 — 67
195,197 506,258 176,976
58,327 46,961 26,390
350,349 558,044 211,709
288 3,276 —
— 383,462 —
84 149,492 215,990
45,200 6,864 —
109 — —
2,230 — —
89,804 33 —
210,203 —_ —
w—— 7 —
395 12,744 —
348,313 555,872 215,990
2,036 2,172 (4,281)
7,144 4,051 7,366
(25,095) (1,222) (47)
(17,951) 2,829 7,319
(15,915) 5,001 3,038
386,113 29,496 11,435
$ 370,198 § 34,497 14,473
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MENTAL HEALTH

AND EMPLOYMENT STUDENT LOAN HIGHWAY HIGHWAY
RETARDATION SERVICES EDUCATION COMMISSION SAFETY OPERATING
$ — s — — - $ — s —
_ — — — — 243,143
— — - — — 33,557
1 — 266 — 79,077 7,646
— — 337 641 2,392 1,908
197,163 258,859 508,494 62,848 5,876 527,852
34,919 14,280 17,273 1,466 12,679 77,954
232,083 273,139 526,370 64,955 100,024 892,060
— — 1,176,724 — — —
—_ — 3,906 67,367 —_ —
28 — — — — —_
242,291 261,880 355 — 4,345 —
— — 8,423 — 195.908 —
— — — - — 1,249,422
— o 7 — — —
— 387 673 476 2,610 —
242,319 262,267 1,190,088 67,843 202,863 1,249,422
(10,236) 10,872 (663,718) (2,888) (102,839) (357,362)
— 1,445 585,132 — 103,968 459,330
(8,630) (1,030) (2,145) — (439) (109,156)
(8,630) 415 582,987 — 103,529 350,174
(18,866) 11,287 (80,731) (2,888) 690 (7,188)
48,940 39,224 223,827 31,506 70,071 311,666
— — — — — (230)
$ 30,074 $ 50,511 143,096 28618 § 70,761 $ 304,248

(continued)
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

{amounts expressed in thousands)

(contmued)
WILDLIFE AND
OHIO TURNPIKE NATURAL WATERWAY
COMMISSION RESOURCES SAFETY
REVENUES:
Income Taxes ... ... . .. . . . 3 - $ — $ -—
Sales Taxes .. .. ... ... .. .. . . .. . - —_ —
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . . . .. .. .. . . . . —_ 10,914 -—
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . . ... . ... .. . . . . . —_ —_ 5,263
Other Taxes . . .. . ... .. .. ... . .. . . .. —_ 9,400 —_
Licenses, Permits and Fees . . . . . . . . e, 90,045 30,391 25,527
Sales, Services and Charges . . . .. ... .. ... . . —_ 954 28
Federal Government. . . . .. .. .. .. . . . - 40,036 5,634
Other. . . ... ... ... 2,348 25,284 4,431
TOTAL REVENUES . . . . .. . .. . .. . .. . . 92,393 116,979 40,883
EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education . . . . .. .. —_— -— —
Higher Education Support. . .. . ... .. . . . . . — - -
Public Assistance and Medicaid . . . . .. .. .. . . . . —_ — —
Health and Human Services . . . . ... ... . . . . . -— — —
Justice and Public Protection . . . ... . .. . . . . —_ 939 —_
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources . . . . .. ., —_ 91,086 36,308
Transportation. . .. . ... ... .. .. . . . . 49,087 —_— —
General Government. . . . . .. ... .. .. - 4,135 —_
Community and Economic Development . . . . . . .. . .. . - 32,945 —_
INTERGOVERNMENTAL . . . . . .. . . . . . . -— _ —_—
CAPITAL OUTLAY . . . . ... ... .. ... ... .. .. . -— - 6,271
TOTAL EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . . ... ... ... .. 49,087 129,105 42,579
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . .. ... .. .. . . ... . 43,306 (12,126} (1,696)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers-in. . . . .. ... .. . . _ .. . . —_ 195 515
Operating Transfers-out. . . . . . .. .. .. .. . . . . (44,444) (2,794) (15)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . . . . . . (44,444) (2,599) 500
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES . . . . . .. . . . . . . . (1,138) (14,725) (1,196)
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1. . .. .. .. . .. .. . . . .. . 22272 144,910 25,563
DECREASE FOR CHANGES IN INVENTORIES. . . . . . . . . . — —_ —
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30. ... . .. . $ 21,134  § 130,185 § 24,367




LOCAL

REVENUE TRANSPORTATION
DISTRIBUTION IMPROVEMENTS TOTAL

$ 487,672 $ -_ 490,636
185,844 - 195,480

74,124 - 85,351
771,300 —_ 1,020,908

9,774 - 68,060
270,258 . 568,898

_— _ 21,122

— -_ 2,485,193

2,400 6,332 331,044
1,801,372 6,332 5,266,692

-— — 1,176,724

- 74,837

- - 383,490

- _— 874,437

- — 257,334

— _— 127,503

— -— 1,300,739

- _ 93,979

12,249 9 255,406
1,246,989 —_ 1,246,990

— 21,379 44,935
1,259,238 21,388 5,836,374
542,134 (15,056) (569,682)

6 52,998 1,222,150
(523,190) — (718,207)
(523,184) 52,998 503,943
18,950 37,942 (65,739)

76,651 45,223 1,466,897
— — (230)

$ 95,601 $ 83,165 1,400,928
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES:
Income Taxes

Other Taxes

BUDGETARY EXPEN' !TURES:

CURRENT:
Primarv “con . and Other Educatic
Higt  _ducatic . Surrort. . . . . ... .
= . Assistance ~ eaid ... L .

Health and Hum
Justice ard P 7

INTERCOVERNME . "5/

CPIT Yo
roTaL suL. DR
EXCESS (DEi "ENCY) : ~ RE 5
OVER (UNi: ) BUDGETAR - NDICGRES . ... .. ....
OTHER FINANCING SOL - ES):

Operating Transfers-in. . ... ... .....
Opeiating Transfers-out . e
Encumbrance Reversions . e

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING RCES (USES) . . . . . . ..

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE> AND OTHER FINANCING
SOQOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES. . . . . . . . ... .. ... ...

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 . . . . . . .. .. . ... . .. ...

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND
BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30 . . . . . .. ... ...

Sales Taxes . ... .. .. . . . ... ...
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . . . . . ... ... ...
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . . . . ... .. .. ... .....
Licenses, Permits an?d Fees . . . . ... . ... .......
Sales, Services anc :_.carges . . . .. ... [
Federal Government. . . . . . . .. ... .. .......

COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 2,976 2,976 $ -—
9,545 9,545 -
313 313 _
1,203 1,203 -_
15,330 15,330 -
53,043 53,043
7,427 7,427 -
192,353 192,353
87,607 87,607 —_
369,797 369,797 —
2 1 1
64,019 49,546 14,473
272 222 50
3,842 1,679 2,163
104,309 95,678 8,631
318,586 259,954 58,632
826 774 52
491,856 407,854 84,002
(122,059) (38,057) 84,002
1,691 1,691 _—
(13,977) (13,977) —
19,096 19,096 —_
6,810 6,810 —
$ (115,249) (31,247) § 84,002
53,173

21,926



HUMAN SERVICES HEALTH
VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ - $ - $ - $ — $ - $ —-_
5,034 5,034 - 14,314 14,314 —_—
— -_— - 2,111 2,111 —
522,392 522,392 —— 187,375 187,375 -
53,567 53,667 — 27,867 27,867 -
580,993 580,993 — 231,667 231,667 —
7,268 7,251 17 — — —_—
461,144 440,837 20,307 —_— —_ —_—
194,872 189,529 5,343 250,361 233,036 17,325
7,628 6,911 717 - — —_
69 38 31 516 -_ 516
—_— — —_ 78 37 41
1 1 -_— - -— —_
974 36 938 - - —
671,956 644,603 27,353 250,955 233,073 17,882
(90,963) (63,610) 27,353 (19,288) (1,406) 17,882
1,000 1,000 -_ 100 100 —
(2,223) (2,223) — (100) (100) —
16,119 16,119 - 3,041 3,041 —
14,896 14,896 — 3,041 3,041 -_
$ (76,067) (48,714) $ 27,353 5 (16,247) 1,635 3 171882
(42, 497) 9,289
$ (91,21 1) $ 10,924
(continued)
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

(continued)

MENTAL HEALTH AND RETARDATION
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUES:
Income Taxes . . . . . . o e $ — $ — $ —_—
Sales TAXES . . . . v i i e e e e _— —_— —
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . . . .. ... ...... - _ —
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . . . . . . . . . . . ... .. ... _ — —
Other TAXES . . . . .« © o e e e e e e e e —_ — —
Licenses, Permits and Fees . . . . . ... .. .. ... ... 1 1 —
Sales, Services and Charges . . . . .. ... ... ... .. —_— — _
Federal Government. . . . . . . . . 345,570 345,570 —_
Other. . . o o e e e e e 35,259 35,259 —_

TOTAL REVENUES . . . . . . . . . . .. ... 380,830 380,830 —

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:

CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education . ... ...... —_ —_
Higher Education Support. . . . . ... ... ... ... . - — —
Public Assistance and Medicaid . . . . . .. . .. ... ... 152,880 151,787 1,093
Health and Human Services . . . . . . . .. .. .. .. ... 259,591 243,230 16,361
Justice and Public Protection . . . .. ... ... ... ... —_—
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources . . . . . . —
Transportation. . . . . . . . . ... —_
General Government. . . . . . . . .. . oo e —_
Community and Economic Development . . . . . ... ... —_

INTERGOVERNMENTAL . . . . . . . . . . . .« 5

CAPITAL OQUTLAY . . . . . . i e e e e e e e —

DEBT SERVICE. . . . . . . . . o i i e e e e — —

TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . . . .. .. 412,476 395,017 17,459

LT

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . . ... ... (31,646) (14,187) 17,459

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers-in. . . . .. .. .............. 512 512 -
Operating Transfers-out . . . . .. ... ............ (9,142) (9,142) —
Encumbrance Reversions . . . . . . . . . .o 2,025 2,025 —

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) . . . . . . . . (6,605) (6,605) —

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES. . . . . . . .. . ... ... ... $ (38,251) {20,792) § 17,459

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 . . . . .. .. .. . 36,070

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND
BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30 . . . . . . ... .. .. $ 15,278
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EMPLOYMENT SERVICES EDUCATION
VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ - s - s - s - s - s —
5 5 - 266 266 -
8 8 - 337 337 -
230,044 230,044 - 516,612 516,612 -
10,254 10,254 — 26,302 26,302 -
240,311 240,311 —_ 543,517 543,517 —
- - - 1,231,501 1,227,310 4,191
- o - 4,850 4,144 706
297,123 238,852 58,271 1,571 1,169 402
_ - - 13,356 10,243 3,113
- - - 10 7 3
692 85 607 4,398 3,119 1,279
297,815 238,937 58,878 1,255,686 1,245,992 9,694
(57,504) 1,374 58,878 (712,169) (702,475) 9,694
- - b 682,760 682,760 -
— —_ -— (99,096) (99,096) -_
990 990 - 4,497 4,497 -
990 990 — 588,161 588,161 —-—
$ (56,514) 2,364 $ 58,878 5 (124,008) (114,314} § 9,694
25612 23,580
$ 27,976 $ (90, 734)
{continued)
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991
(amounts expressed in thousands)
(continued)

REVENUES:
Income Taxes . . . . . . . . . . . ... ...
Sales Taxes . . . . . . . . . e
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . . . ... ... ... ..
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . . . .. ... ... ... .....
Other Taxes . . . . . . . . v i ittt e e
Licenses, Permits and Fees . . . . ... ... ... .....
Sales, Services and Charges . . . . ... ..........
Federal Government. . . . . . . . . . . . ... .. .. ...,

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:

CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education . . .. .. . ...
Higher Education Support. . . . . . . .. . . ... .. ....
Public Assistance and Medicaid . . . . . ... ... .....
Health and Human Services . . . . . . . ... ... .. ...
Justice and Public Protection . . .. ... ..........
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources. . . . . .
Transportation. . . . . . . . . . . ... e
General Government. . . . . . . ... ... e
Community and Economic Development . . . . ... .. ..

INTERGOVERNMENTAL . . . . . . . . . . ... ... .. .....

CAPITAL QUTLAY . . . . . e e e e e

DEBT SERVICE. . . . . . . . . . . . i i e i e

TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . ... ...

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY)} OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . . ... ...

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers-in. . . . ... ... ... ... ......
Operating Transfers-out . . . . ... ... ... ........
Encumbrance Reversions . . . . .. .. ... ... ......

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) . . . . . . ..

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES. . . . . . . . ... ... .....

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 . . . . . i

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND
BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30 . . . . . .. ... ...

STUDENT LOAN COMMISSION

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
—_— — $ a—
10,750 10,750 —
2 2 —
38 38 —
10,790 10,790 —
11,572 10,845 727
11,572 10,845 727
(782) (55) 727
266 266 —
266 266 —
516 211§ 727
(644)
433



st
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HIGHWAY SAFETY

HIGHWAY OPERATING

VARIANCE

VARIANCE

FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -_
— _ —_ 244,850 244,850 —
—_ _ and 46,132 46,132 -
75,923 75,923 -_ 7,630 7,630 —
2,448 2,448 - 1,908 1,908 -
6,344 6,344 — 527,816 527,816 -—
20,097 20,097 — 85,200 85,200 —
104,812 104,812 -_— 913,536 913,536 -
4,776 4,622 154 — —
216,501 192,745 23,756 — — —
— _ _ 1,656,978 1,476,465 180,513
4,503 1,293 3,210 —_— —_ —_
— —_ —_ 10,000 10,000 —_
225,780 198,660 27,120 1,666,978 1,486,465 180,513
(120,968) (93,848) 27,120 (753,442) (572,929) 180,513
108,102 108,102 - 456,345 456,345 -—
(4,393) (4,393) —_ (103,708) (103,708) —
2,965 2,965 — 82,141 82 141 —_
106,674 106,674 — 434,778 434,778 —
$ (14,294) 12,826 $ 27,120 $ (318,664) (138,151) 3 180,513
41,935 (541,655)
$ 54,761 $ (679,806)
(continued)
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)
(continued)

REVENUES:
Income Taxes . .. ..........
Sales Taxes . ... ... .......
Corporate and Public Ulility Taxes .
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . . . ...
Other Taxes . .. .. .........
Licenses, Permits and Fees . . . . .
Sales, Services and Charges . . . .
Federal Government. . . . .. .. ..

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:

Primary, Secondary and Other Education . . .. ... ...

Higher Education Support. . . . . . .
Public Assistance and Medicaid . . .
Health and Human Services . . . . .
Justice and Public Protection . . . .

Environmental Protection and Natural Resources . . . . . .

Transportation. . . . . ... ......
General Government. . . . . ... ..

Community and Economic Development . . . . . ... ...

INTERGOVERNMENTAL . . . . . . .. ..
CAPITAL QUTLAY . . . . . .. ... ...
DEBT SERVICE. . . . . . . . ... ....

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . ... ... ..

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating Transfers-in. . . . ... ..
Operating Transfers-out . . . . .. ..
Encumbrance Reversions. . . . . ..

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER FINANCING USES. . . . . .

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES

(DEFICITS), JULY 1 . . . . ... ... ..

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND

BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30

NATURAL RESOURCES

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE)
$ — s — s —
10,914 10,914 —
9,461 9,461 —
30,626 30,626 —
954 954 —
42,104 42,104 —
28,676 28,676 —
122,735 122,735 —
913 873 40
118,998 94,346 24,652
10,370 3,960 6,410
33,537 28,059 5,478
163,818 127,238 36,580
(41,083) (4,503) 36,580
1,207 1,207 —
(2,356) (2,356) —
4,194 4,194 —
3,045 3,045 —
$ (38,038) (1,458) § 36,580
98,837
$ 97,379

S
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WILDLIFE AND WATERWAY SAFETY REVENUE DISTRIBUTION
VARIANCE VARIANCE

FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

$ — $ — $ — $ 484,717 8 484,717  § —

: — — — 185,838 185,838 —

— — - 73,912 73,912 —

5177 5177 — 755,628 755,628 —

— — — 9,699 9,699 —

25,519 25,519 —_ 348,731 348,731 —

y 28 28 — —_ — —

1 6,297 6,297 — — — —

‘ 5.340 5,340 — 2,545 2545 —

42,361 42,361 — 1,861,070 1,861,070 —

i 40,060 37,222 2,838 - —_ —
1 — — — 1,465,255 1,331,100 134,155

1 22,327 10,902 11,425 — — —
g 62,387 48,124 14,263 1,465,255 1,331,100 134,155
} (20,026) (5,763) 14,263 395,815 529,970 134,155

(16) (16) — (509,103) (509,103) —

296 296 — — — —

280 280 — (509,098) (509,098) —
$ (19,746) (5483) $ 14263 $  (113,283) 20872 § 134,155

21601 146275
§ 16118 § 167,147

(continued)
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)
(continued)

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS

BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE

(UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUES:
Income Taxes . . ... .. ... .. . _ . ... .. . . $ -_
Sales Taxes . . ... ... . ...... ... . ... . . . —
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . . . ... ... ... . —
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . ... ... .. . .. .. . . —
Other Taxes . . .. .............. . . ... .. —
Licenses, Permits and Fees . . . . . ... .. .. . ... .. —
Sales, Services and Charges . . .. ....... . ... . . —_
Federal Government. . . . . . ... .. ... ... ... .. . -—

6,455

$

6,455

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:

Justice and Public Protection . . .. ... ... . . ... . .
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources . . . . . .
Transportation. . . . .. ... ... .. ... ... . ... .. .

Community and Economic Development . . . . .. .. ...
INTERGOVERNMENTAL . . . . . . ... .. ... .. . .. ... .
CAPITAL OUTLAY . . . . . . . .. .. ... ... ... ... .. 111,193
DEBT SERVICE. . . . . . . . . ... .. ... ... ... .. ...

LETr e

TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . . . ... . .. .. 111,193

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . . ... . .. (104,738)

(11,258)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers-in. . . .. . ... ... ... ... . .. . 52,997
Operating Transfers-out . . . . ... ...... . .. . .. .. -
Encumbrance Reversions . . . . .. ... ... ... . .. .. —

52,997

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) . . . . .. . . 52,997

52,997

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES. . . . . . .. . . . ... ... . . &) (51,741)

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 . . . . .. ... ... ... .. .. ... ...

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND
BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30 . . . . . . . .. .. .

92

$

41,739

44,847

86,586

93,480
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TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE

VARIANCE

[

$ (364,089)

FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
} § 487693 § 487693 § —
195,383 195,383 —
85,139 85,139 —
] 1,006,858 1,006,858 -
x 80,622 80,622 —
571,842 571,842
15,223 15,223 —
1 2,576,907 2,576,907
389,207 389,207 —
\ 5,408,874 5,408,874 —
. 1,231,501 1,227,310 4,191
| 23,692 22,241 1,451
614,024 592,624 21,400
1,008,294 910,438 97,856
; 302,417 260,318 42,099
159,330 131,790 27,540
1,660,820 1,478,144 182,676
115,274 99,683 15,591
1 352,201 288,050 64,151
i 1,465,261 1,331,101 134,160
144,913 33,922 110,991
10,000 10,000 —
7,087,727 6,385,621 702,106
] (1,678,853) (976,747) 702,106
1,304,719 1,304,719 —
(744,114) (744,114) —
135,630 135,630 —
696,235 696,235 —
|
. §__ (982618) (260512) § 702,106
i
(83,577)
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The Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources for the payment
of general long-term debt principal and interest.

The Economic Development Bond Service Fund accounts for the payment of principal and
interest on revenue bonds issued to finance loans to individuals, corporations, and agencies
within the State, which cannot obtain conventional financing for economic development projects
that create or retain jobs in the State.

The Ohio Turnpike Commission Bond Service Fund accounts for the payment of principal and
interest on refunding revenue bonds issued in 1984 by the Ohio Turnpike Commission to refund
the remaining portion of the original 1952 bonds issued to finance the construction of the Ohio
Turnpike.

The Coal Research/Development Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of
principal and interest on general obligation bonds authorized by Section 15, Article VIII of the
Ohio Constitution to provide financing for coal research and development projects.

The Improvements Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of principal and interest
on general obligation bonds authorized by Section 2f, Article VIII of the Ohio Constitution to
provide financing for the improvement of higher education facilities, public schools, and natural
resources and for other purposes.

The Highway Improvements Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of principal
and interest on general obligation bonds authorized by Section 2g, Article VIII of the Ohio
Constitution to provide financing for the acquisition of ri ghts-of-way and for the construction and
reconstruction of the State's highways and urban extensions.

The Development Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of principal and interest
on general obligation bonds authorized by Section 2h, Article VIII of the Ohio Constitution to
provide financing for the construction, improvement, and development of higher education
facilities, public schools, and natural resources and for other purposes.

The Highway Obligations Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of principal and
interest on general obligation bonds authorized by Section 2i, Article VIII of the Ohio
Constitution to provide financing for construction of the State's highways.

The Public Improvements Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of principal and
interest on general obligation bonds authorized by Section 2i, Article VIII of the Ohio
Constitution to provide financing for the improvement of higher education facilities, water
pollution controls, parks and natural resources, and other projects.

o e
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (Coiilnned)

The Vietnam Conflict Compensation Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of
principal and interest on general obli gation bonds authorized by Section 2j, Article VIII of the
Ohio Constitution to provide compensation to Ohioans that served in the military during the
Vietnam Conflict.

The Local Infrastructure Improvements Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment
of principal and interest on general obligation bonds authorized by Section 2k, Article VIII of the
Ohio Constitution to provide financing for the cost of local government's public infrastructure
improvement projects.

The Ohio Public Facilities Commission Fund accounts for the payment of principal and
interest on special obligation bonds issued to finance the construction of mental health, higher
education, parks and recreation, and State park facilities.

The Ohio Building Authority Fund accounts for the payment of principal and interest on special
obligation bonds issued to finance the construction of State office buildings and rehabilitation
and correctional facilities and the costs of capital improvements for the Department of
Administrative Services, Department of Youth Services, and Department of Transportation.

The Salt Fork Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of principal and interest on
special obligation bonds issued to finance the cost of improvements at Salt Fork State Park.

The Enterprise Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of principal and interest on
revenue bonds issued to finance "eligible projects," as defined by Chapter 166.01, Ohio Revised
Code, that will create or retain jobs and employment opportunities in the State.
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DAL ol DHIO
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . . ... ... ... ....
Cash with Custodian . . . . . . . ... . ... ........
Investments. . . . .. .. ... ...

Receivables:

Taxes . . . . . . . e e e
Other . . . . . . . e e e
Due from Other Funds . . . . . . .. . ... ... ......

TOTAL ASSETS . . . . ... ... ... ... .. ....

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Deferred Revenues . . . . . . .. .. ... .. .. ......
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . . . ... ... ... .. ..

Total Liabilittes . . . . . . . .. .. ... ... .. .....

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

Debt Service . . . . . . . . .. ... e
Total Fund Balances. . . . . . ... ... ... ......
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES . .

COAL RESEARCH/

ECONOMIC OHIO TURNPIKE DEVELOPMENT
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION BOND
BOND SERVICE BOND SERVICE RETIREMENT
$ — $ - $ 4
49 206 —
38 — —_
$ 87 $ 206 $ 4
3 - $ - $ -
— 34 —
— 34 —
87 172 4
87 172
$ 87 $ 206 $

w il
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"VIETNAM

e i

HIGHWAY HIGHWAY PUBLIC CONFLICT
IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATIONS IMPROVEMENTS COMPENSATION
BOND BOND BOND BOND BOND BOND
RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT
$ 4,419 $ 2,561 13 109,505 $ 97 $ 298
722 310 670 1,435 1,682 445
800 — - 20,121 - —_
20 12 —_ 482 — 1
7 4 — 12,671 - —
$ 5,968 $ 2,887 $ 683 144,214 $ 1,779 $ 744
$ — 8 - $ — - $ - s —
522 60 445 1,185 1,482 195
522 60 445 1,185 1,482 195
5,446 2,827 238 143,029 297 549
5,446 2,827 238 143,029 297 549
3 5,968 $ 2,887 $ 683 144,214 $ 1,779 $ 744
(continued)
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1991

{amounts expressed in thousands)

(continued)
LOCAL
INFRASTRUCTURE
IMPROVEMENTS OHIO PUBLIC OHIO
BOND FACILITIES BUILDING
RETIREMENT COMMISSION AUTHORITY
ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . . . . .. .. ... .... 3 12 - —
Cash with Custodian . . . . . . .. .. . ... .. ...... — 851 165
Investments. . . . . . . . ... .. — 347,092 128,859
Receivables:
TAxes . . . . . . o e e e e e e — — —
Other . . . . . . . . i e e _ -— 2,838
Due from Other Funds . . . . . . . . ... .. .. ...... — e ~—
TOTAL ASSETS . . . . ... .. .. . . . . .. ..... $ 12 347,943 131,862
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Deferred Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . .. .. .. ...... $ — -_ 3,626
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . . . . . ... ... .. ... - 5,838 —
Total Liabilities . . . . . . . . . .. . ... ... ... — 5,838 3.626
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Debt Service . . . . . . . . ... ... .... . 12 342,105 128,236
Total Fund Balances. . . . . ... ... ... ....... 12 342,105 128,236
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES .. § 12 347,943 131,862

ag
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SALT FORK ENTERPRISE
BOND BOND
RETIREMENT RETIREMENT TOTAL
— - 116,909
- 358 6,893
2,054 24,963 503,006
- — 20,921
10 89 3,452
— — 12,682
2,064 25,410 663,863
—_ — 3,626
— — 9,761
— - 13,387
2,064 25,410 650,476
2,064 25410 650,476
2,064 25,410 663,863
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

R AR AT S AR
R

WA v N

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES:

Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . . . .. ... ... ... ... .....
Other Taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . e
Licenses, Permits and Fees . . . . . . . . .. .. ... .....
Federal Government. . . . . . . . . . . ... ... . . ......

EXPENDITURES:

DEBT SERVICE. . . . . . . . . . . .. . ... ... ... ... ...

TOTAL EXPENDITURES . . . . . . .. . . ... .........

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . .. . . . . ... ... .......

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Bond Proceeds . . . . . . . .. .. ... ... ...
Refunding Bond Proceeds . . . . . . ... . ... .. ......
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agents. . . ... .. ...
Operating Transfers-in. . . . . .. .. .. ... ... .......
Operating Transfers-out. . . . . . .. ... ... ... ......

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . . . . . . ...

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES . . . . . . . ... ... ... .. ........

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1. . . . . . . . ... ... ... ........

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30. . ... ... . ... .. .....

100

COAL RESEARCH/

ECONOMIC OHIO TURNPIKE DEVELOPMENT
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION BOND

BOND SERVICE BOND SERVICE RETIREMENT
$ - $ — $ —

87 16 8

87 16 8

18,108 409 6,752

18,108 409 6,752

(18,021) (393) (6,744)

17,995 393 6,747

17,995 393 6,747

(26) — 3

113 172 1

$ 87 § 172§ 4

.
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VIETNAM

HIGHWAY HIGHWAY PUBLIC CONFLICT
IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATIONS IMPROVEMENTS COMPENSATION
BOND BOND BOND BOND BOND BOND
RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT
$ -_ $ — $ -— $ 31,596 $ — $ —
12,292 — — 46,173 — —_
— — — 36,808 — —
362 226 87 10,283 90 25
12,654 226 87 124,860 90 25
16,282 — 18,982 96,457 18,032 —
16,282 — 18,962 96,457 18,032 —
(3,628) 226 (18,895) 28,403 (17,942) 25
3,563 — 18,908 — 17,968 —
3,563 — 18,908 — 17,968 —
(65) 226 13 28,403 26 25
5,511 2,601 225 114,626 271 524
$ 5446 § 2827 $ 238 $ 143,029 § 297 § 549

(continued)
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS )
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

(continued)
LOCAL
INFRASTRUCTURE }
IMPROVEMENTS OHIO PUBLIC OHIO
BOND FACILITIES BUILDING
RETIREMENT COMMISSION AUTHORITY }
REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . . . . . .. . . . . ... ...... $ —_ $ — $ —
Other TAXES . . . . o o i i e e e e e — —_ —_ }
Licenses, Permits and Fees . . . . . . . .. .. ... ...... —_ — e
Federal Government. . . . . . . . . . v e i i i - 448 —
OWter. . . . e e e 41 26,507 10,977
TOTAL REVENUES . . . . . . . . . . . i i it i 41 26,955 10,977 ]
EXPENDITURES: y
DEBT SERVICE. . . . . . . . o i i i i e e 23,611 348,888 102,615
TOTAL EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . . . . .. . ... .... 23,611 348,888 102,615
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES . . . . . . .« i e e e (23,570) (321,933) (91,638)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond Proceeds . . . . . . . . . e e e e — 3,443 — 1
Refunding Bond Proceeds . . . . ... .............. - _ 123,270 1
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agents. . . .. ... ... - . — (104,197) :
Operating Transfers-in. . . . .. . ... ... ... ....... 23,576 319,312 98,658
Operating Transfers-out . . . . . . .. . .. ... ......... — - (22,985) 3
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . . . . . . . .. 23,576 322,755 94,746 g
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES . . . . . ... ... .. ... ... . 6 822 3,108 y
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1. . . . . . . . . i i 6 341,283 125,128
N
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30.. ... .. ... ... ...... $ 12§ 342,105 § 128,236
1




SALT FORK ENTERPRISE
BOND BOND
RETIREMENT RETIREMENT TOTAL
$ — 31,596
— — 58,465
— 36,808
— - 448
138 1,604 50,451
138 1,604 177,768
611 1,462 652,209
611 1,462 652,209
(473) 142 (474,441)
— — 3,443
— — 123,270
— — (104,197)
597 5,404 513,121
— — (22,985)
597 5,404 512,652
124 5,546 38,211
1,940 19,864 612,265
2064 § 25,410 650,476
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

COAL RESEARCH / DEVELOPMENT
BOND RETIREMENT

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . . . . .. ... .. ... .. $ - $ — $ —
Othar Taxes . . . . . . . e _— - —_
L. -—ses, Permits e e e e e e e _ — —
Other. . . . . . e e e 6,755 6,755 —
TOTAL REYE -~ -5 . e 6,755 6,755 —
BUDGETARY EXPT
DEBT SE°. 13,852 6,752 7,100
e el iuRES . o 13,852 6,752 7,100
EXCESS ~~FE™™" "CY; Ti . IV iNUL
oV HCGETAS R (7,097) 3 7,100
OTHER FINANC.
Bond Proceeds . . e — -—_ —
TOT..L OTHER FINA. ~G SOURCES . ... .. .. .. .. - — -
EXCESS (" ¢ MEVEM!JES AND OTHER FINANCING .
SOUFL... .viri (WNDER) SUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . . $ (7,097) 3 $ 71100
UNRESERVED. ''NDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES,
JULY 1 . e 1
UNRESERVED, L 3UDGETARY FUND
gars T e e e e e e e e e $ 4
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IMPROVEMENTS
BOND RETIREMENT

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

BOND RETIREMENT

VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
— s — s — 8 - $
12,296 12,296 — —_ —_
3,961 3,961 244 244 —_—
16,257 16,257 - 244 244 —
16,284 16,282 2 —_— — —_
16,284 16,282 2 — _ —
(27) (25) 2 244 244 —
27 (25) § 2 244 244 $ —
4,444 2,317
$ 4,419 $ 2,561
(continued)
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

(continued)
DEVELOPMENT
BOND RETIREMENT
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . . . . ... . ... .. ...... $ - $ — $
Other TaX0S . . . . v v v v e e e e e e e e e e —_ _
Licenses, Permits and Fees . . . . . . . . .. .. ...... - —
OWtBE. . o o o e e e e e e e 18,994 18,994 —
TOTAL REVENUES . . . . . . . . . . i ittt 18,994 18,994 —_
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE. . . . . . . . i i it i iee i e 18,989 18,982 7
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . . . .. .. 18,989 18,982 7
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . . . . .. .. 5 12 7
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Bond Proceeds. . . . . . . . . . e e — —_ —_
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES . ... .. ... ... -_ — —
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . . $ 5 12 $ 7

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES,
JULY T . e e e e -_

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND
BALANCES, JUNE 30 . . . ... ... .. ..... ... $ 12
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HIGHWAY OBLIGATIONS

BOND RETIREMENT

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

BOND RETIREMENT

VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 28,634 $ 28,634 s —_ — $ — $
36,100 36,100 — — - e
24,297 24,297 —_ —_ _
11,086 11,086 — 18,058 18,058 -
100,117 100,117 - 18,058 18,058 —
114,035 96,925 17,110 18,032 18,032 —
114,035 96,925 17,110 18,032 18,032
(13,918) 3,192 17,110 26 26 -
468 468 — — — —
468 468 — - — —
$ (1 3,450) 3,660 $ 17,110 26 26 $ —
105,845 71
$ 109,505 $ 97
(continued)
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991
(amounts expressed in thousands)
(continued)

REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes .. . ... ... ... . . .. _ . .
Other Taxes . . .. .. ... ....... .. ... . . .

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE. . . . . . . .. .. ... .. ... .. .. ... ..

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . . .. . . . .

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Bond Proceeds. . . . .. ... .. .. . . ... . .. ... ..

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . .

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES,
JULY 1.

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND
BALANCES, JUNE 30 . . . .. .. ... .. .. .. ...

108

VIETNAM CONFLICT COMPENSATION

BOND RETIREMENT

$ 298

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

$ - $ - $ -
28 28 —

28 28 —

28 28 -

$ 28 28 ¢ —

270

e
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LOCAL INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

BOND RETIREMENT TOTAL DEBT SERVICE
VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
—  $ S - $ 28634 § 28634 § —
- — - 48,396 48,396 —
- —_ — 24,297 24,297 —
23,617 23,617 — 82,743 82,743 —
23617 23,617 — 184,070 184,070 —
30,617 23,611 7,006 211,809 180,584 31,225
30,617 23,611 7,006 211,809 180,584 31,225
(7,000) 6 7,006 (27,739) 3,486 31,225
— — — 468 468 —
— — — 468 468 —
7,000 6 § 7006 $ (27,271) 3954 § 31,225
6 112,954
$ 12 $ 116,908
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CAPTPAL PROJECTS KTTNDS

L4 e

The Capital Projects Funds account for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities and for major repairs and replacements other than those financed by
proprietary funds and trust funds.

The Ohio Turnpike Commission Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance capital outlay
and major repairs and replacements for the Ohio Turnpike.

The Higher Education Improvements Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance the
construction of facilities for State-assisted higher education institutions.

The Highway Obligations Construction Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance capital
outlay and major repairs and replacements for the State's highways.

The Mental Health/Mental Retardation Facilities Improvements Fund accounts for bond
proceeds that finance the construction of mental health/mental retardation facilities.

The Parks and Recreation Improvements Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance the
capital improvement of park and recreation facilities.

The Local Infrastructure Improvements Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance the
cost of local government's public infrastructure improvement projects.

The Ohio Building Authority Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance the construction
of State office buildings and rehabilitation and correctional facilities.

The Administrative Services Building Improvements Fund accounts for bond proceeds that
finance capital improvements for the Department of Administrative Services.

The Youth Services Building Improvements Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance
capital improvements for the Department of Youth Services.

The Transportation Building Improvements Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance
capital improvements for the Department of Transportation.

The Expositions Commission Fund accounts for proceeds from the certificate of participation
financing arrangement entered into for the construction of the Celeste Center at the Ohio State
Fairgrounds.



T YU NI N
STATR o o HTD

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . .. . ... ... ...
Cash with Custodian . . . . . . ... . ... .. ...
INVESIMENIS. . . . . v o v e i e e e e

Receivables:

Loans, Net . . . . . o o o v i
[0, 1 T R
Due from Other Funds . . . . . . . .« v o oot

TOTAL ASSETS . . . . . ... ... ...

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable . . . . . . . . ... .
Accrued Liabilities . . . . . . . . e
Intergovernmental Payable . . . ... .............
Due to Other Funds . . . . . . . . v v v
Refund and Other Liabilites . . . . . . ... . ... .....
Special Obligation Notes . . . . .. ..............

Total Liabilities . . . . . . . e

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

ENCUMDBIENCES . v v v v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
Noncurrent Portion of Loans Receivable . . . . . . . . ...

Qther:

Capital Outlay . . . . . . .«
Loan COMMIMENntS . . . . . o v« o v v oo v v o oo
Unreserved/Undesignated (Deficits) . . . . . . ........

Total Fund Balances. . . . . . . . . . .
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES . .

112

HIGHER HIGHWAY
OHMIO TURNPIKE EDUCATION OBLIGATIONS
COMMISSION IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTION
$ — $ 91,366 $ 602
2,997 — —
19,359 — —
— 443 15
288 147 5
$ 22,644 $ 91,956 $ 622
$ —_ $ 29,253 $ 1,770
17 - —
5,089 — —
5,106 29,253 1,770
- 177,605 128,392
17,538 — -
— (114,902) (129,540)
17,538 62,703 (1,148)
$ 22,644 $ 91,956 $ 622




MENTAL HEALTH/

MENTAL ADMINISTRATIVE YOUTH
RETARDATION PARKS AND LOCAL OHIO SERVICES SERVICES
FACILITIES RECREATION INFRASTRUCTURE BUILDING BUILDING BUILDING
IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS AUTHORITY IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS
$ 33,283 $ 6,395 $ 136,028 $ -_ $ 12,058 $ 5,281
- —— ———— 2 — .
—_ — - 132,467 e -_
- -_— 696 and _ —_
162 30 392 509 56 25
53 10 —_ — 19 8
$ 33,498 $ 6,435 $ 137,116 $ 132,978 $ 12,133 $ 5,314
$ 4,457 $ 1,064 $ 280 $ 19,287 $ 753 $ 828
— — 15,849 - — —
2 —_ 810 - — —_
-— — —_ 10,000 — —
4,459 1,064 16,939 29,287 753 828
49,2.3 5,080 —_ — 13,562 16,077
- -_ 696 - -_ —
— — 15,230 - hd —
(20,194} 291 104,251 103,691 (2,182) (11,591)
29,039 5371 120,177 103,691 11,380 4,486
$ 33,498 3 6,435 $ 137,116 $ 132,978 $ 12,133 $ 5,314
{continued)
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SN OF DHIO
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)
(continued)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . ... ... .. .. ...
Cash with Custodian . . . . . .. . . .. . ... ......
jnvestments. . . . . . .. ... e

Receivables:

Loans, Net . . . . . . . . . . ... e
Other . . . . . . e e e e e e e e
Due from Other Funds . . . . .. . . . . ... .. .....

TOTAL ASSETS . . . . .. . .. ... .. .. .....

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable . . . . . . ... ... ... . ... ...
Accrued Liabilites . . . . . . . ... ... ... . ...
Intergovernmental Payable . . . . . .. ... ... .. ...
Due to Other Funds . . . . . ... ... ... ... . ...
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . . . . .. ... ... ...
Special Obligation Notes . . . .. .. .. ... ... ....

Total Liabilittes . . . . ... ... ... ... .. ...,

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

Encumbrances . . . . . . . . 0 e e e e e e e e e e
Noncurrent Portion of Loans Receivable . . . . . . . . . ..

ther:

Capital Outlay . . . . . . . . . . . ..
Loan Commitments . . . . . . . . .. . ... .. ...
Unreserved/Undesignated (Deficits) . . . . . .. .. .. ...

Total Fund Balances. . . . . .. . .. . ... .. ....
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES . .

TRANSPORTATION
BUILDING
IMPROVEMENTS

EXPOSITIONS
COMMISSION

TOTAL

$ 24,805

117
39

1,554

308,818
4,553
151,826

696
1,749
569

$ 24,961

$

469,211

I

57,692
17
15,849
812
5,089
10,000

89,459

24,961

389,949
696

17,538
15,230
(43,661)

24,961

379,752

$ 24,961

$

$

469,211
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

HIGHER HIGHWAY
OHMIO TURNPIKE EDUCATION OBLIGATIONS
COMMISSION IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTION
REVENUES:
Other. . . . . . . . . e $ 1,630 $ 7,769 $ 4,322
TOTAL REVENUES . . . . . . . . . . . .. .. ... . ...... 1,630 7,769 4,322
EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:

Transportation. . . . . . . . . . ... .. 28,926 —_ —_
CAPITAL OUTLAY . . . . . . . . it i e e i, 19,167 213,160 80,590
DEBT SERVICE. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . i —_ — -_—

TOTAL EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . . . .. .. ... .. 48,093 213,160 80,590
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . . . ittt (46,463) (205,391) (76,268)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Bond and Certificate of Participation Proceeds . . . . . . . .. —_ 226,635 75,000

Operating Transfers-in. . . . . .. ... ... ... ........ 45,965 _ -

Operating Transfers-out . . . . . . ... ... ... ... ..... — — —_

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . . . . . . ... 45,965 226,635 75,000
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES . . . . . . . . . . ... i (498) 21,244 (1,268)
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1. . . . . . . . it 18,036 41,459 120

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30. ... ... .. $ 17,538  § 62,703 $ (1,148)
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MENTAL HEALTH/

MENTAL ADMINISTRATIVE YOUTH
RETARDATION PARKS AND LOCAL OHIO SERVICES SERVICES
FACILITIES RECREATION INFRASTRUCTURE BUILDING BUILDING BUILDING
IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS AUTHORITY IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS
$ 2267 § 927 $ 13,125  § 9,718 § 590 § 155
2,267 927 13,125 9,718 590 155
50,132 11,619 116,030 105,565 4,825 6,669
— — — 1,100 — -
50,132 11,619 116,030 106,665 4,825 6,669
(47,865) (10,692) (102,905) (96,947) (4,235) (6,514)
39,403 — 27,437 — -
— — —_ 22,139 15,615 11,000
— (609) (26,270) — —
39,403 — (609) 23,306 15,615 11,000
(8,462) (10,692) (103,514) (73,641) 11,380 4,486
37,501 16,063 223,691 177,332 — —
$ 29,039 § 5371 $ 120,177  $ 103,691 § 11,380 § 4,486

(continued)
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

(continued)
TRANSPORTATION
BUILDING EXPOSITIONS
IMPROVEMENTS COMMISSION TOTAL
REVENUES:
Other. . . . o e e $ 320 § 3 $ 40,826
TOTAL REVENUES . . . . . . . . . . . . 320 3 40,826
EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:

Transportation. . . . . . . .. . .. - - 28,926
CAPITAL OUTLAY . . . . . . . e i e e e - 4,310 612,067
DEBT SERVICE. . . . . . . i i ittt et - - 1,100

TOTAL EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... ... ... - 4,310 642,093
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES . . . . . .« . . ittt 320 (4,307) (601,267)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Bond and Certificate of Participation Proceeds . . . . . . . .. 24,641 5861 398,977

Operating Transfers-in. . . .. .. ... ... ... .. ...... - - 94,719

Operating Transfers-out . . . . .. ... ... . .. ........ — — (26,879)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . . . . . . . .. 24,641 5,861 466,817
EXCESS (PEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES . . . . . . . .. .. i 24,961 1,554 (134,450)
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1. . . . . . . . . oo — — 514,202
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30. . ... . ... $ 24961 § 1,554 § 379,752
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SN TERPRISE FUNDS

The Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises -- where the State's intent is that the cost
of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed
or recovered primarily through user charges; or where the State has decided that
periodic determination of net income is appropriate for accountability purposes.

The State Parking Commission Fund accounts for the operations of the State Parking
Commission.

The Liquor Control Fund accounts for the operations of the Department of Liquor Control.
The Ohio Lottery Commission Fund accounts for the operations of the State Lottery.

The Workers' Compensation Fund accounts for the operations of the Bureau of Workers'
Compensation and the Ohio Industrial Commission.

The Tuition Trust Authority Fund accounts for the operations of the Ohio Tuition Trust
Authority.

The Petroleum Underground Storage Tank Fund accounts for the operations of the Petroleum
Underground Storage Tank Release Compensation Board.
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ENTERPRISE FUND
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

P

4

STATE OHIO
PARKING LIQUOR LOTTERY
COMMISSION CONTROL COMMISSION
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . . . ... ... ... ... $ —_ $ 10,755 $ 8,429
Cash with Custodian . . . . . . ... . ... .. .. .. .. . 1,563 5,138 321
Investments. . . . . .. ... . ... ... ... ... . ... 2,383 —_ 11,551
Receivables:
Premiums and Assessments . . . . . . .. . . ... .. ... — — —_
Other . . . . . . . . .. 201 617 34,812
Due from Other Funds . . . . . . ... ... ... .. .. .. — 3 106
Inventories . . . . . .. . . ... ... ... . ... ... — 21,836 _—
Other Assets . . . . .. .. ... .. .. ... . . .... ... 266 388 2,781
Total Current Assets . . . . . .. .. . ... ...... .. 4,413 38,737 58,000
Restricted Assets:
Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . . . ... .. ..... .. — - 30,652
Cash with Custodian . . . .. .. ... . ... .. ...... _— _ —_
Dedicated Investments . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... .. — — 933,977
Total Restricted Assets . . . . .. ... ... ....... — — 964,629
Noncurrent Assets:
Investments. . . . . .. ... ... ... ... ... — — —_
Total Noncurrent Assets. . . .. ... ... ... ... .. — — —
Fixed Assets:
Fixed Assets . . . . ... ... ... .. .. ... ... ... 12,956 10,861 50,034
Less Accumulated Depreciation . . . . .. ... ... . . . . (4,217) (7.515) (31,071)
Total Fixed Assets . . . . .. ... ... ... .. ..... 8,739 3,346 18,963
TOTAL ASSETS . . . ... ... ... .. .... ... . 3 13,152 $ 42,083 $ 1,041,592
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable . . . . ... .. ... ... ... . .... . $ 215 $ 14,326 $ 6,522
Accrued Liabilittes . . . . ... .. .. ... ... ... .... 145 6,158 -
Intergovernmental Payable . . . . .. ... .. ... ... .. - 659 —_
Due to Other Funds . . ... ... ... .. . ... .. ... — 37 1,625
Deferred Revenues . . . . . ... ... . .. . ... ... .. —_ 5 538
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . . . . . .. ... ... .. . 99 2,991 14,149
Total Current Liabilities . . . . ... . .. ... ... .. . 459 24,176 22,834
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Deferred Prize Awards Payable. . . . .. . . .. ... .. . - — 960,002
Tuition Benefits Payable . . . .. ... ... ... .. ... . — — —
Total Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets . . . . . -— — 960,002
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Liabilittes . . . . .. .. ... ... .. ... . ... . — -— 1,134
Workers' Compensation Benefits Payable . . . . . . . . .. - — —
Revenue Bonds . . . . ... ... .. ... .. .. ... ... 2,793 —_— -
Total Noncurrent Liabilities . . . . . ... ... ... .. . 2,793 — 1,134
Total Liabilities . . . . ... ... . . ... ... ... ... 3,252 24,176 983,970
Fund Equity:
Net Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Investments. . . . . . . - — -
Retained Earnings:
Reserved . . . . . . . . ... ... - — 4,627
Unreserved (Deficits) . . . . . . . . . . .. . ... ... . .. 9,900 17,907 52,995
Total Fund Equity (Deficits). . . . . ... .. ... . .. 9,900 17,907 57,622
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY . . . .. 3 13,152 3 42,083 3 1,041,592
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PETROLEUM

TUITION UNDERGROUND
WORKERS’ TRUST STORAGE
COMPENSATION AUTHORITY TANK FUND TOTAL

$ 19,782  § 29 8 18 38,996
4,598 1,579 799 13,998
931,260 — 18,823 964,017
1,680,004 - 289 1,680,293
128,150 — — 163,780

— — —_ 109

— — — 21,836

93,152 — — 96,587
2,856,946 1,608 19,912 2,979,616

— — — 30,652

— 54 — 54

— 19,080 — 953,057
— 19,134 — 983,763 -
6,704,763 — — 6,704,763
6,704,763 — — 6,704,763
381,602 72 36 455,561
(46,499) (14) — (89,316)
335,103 58 36 366,245

$ 989,812 § 20800 § 19,948 § 11,034,387
$ 39,540 § 31§ 17 8 60,651
— 34 18 6,355

— — — 659

— 8 —_ 1,670

204,148 — 3,279 207,970
582,999 — — 600,238
826,687 73 3,314 877,543

— — — 960,002

— 18,800 — 18,800

— 18,800 — 978,802

— — — 1,134
10,676,924 —_ — 10,676,924
— — — 2,793
10,676,924 — — 10,680,851
11,503,611 18,873 3.314 12,537,196
798,921 (224) — 798,697
149,952 — — 154,579
(2,555,672) 2,151 16,634 (2,456.085)
(1.606,799) 1,927 16,634 (1,502,809

$ 9896812 § 20,800 19,948  § 11,034,387
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STATE OF OGHIG

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

STATE OHIO
PARKING LIQUOR LOTTERY
COMMISSION CONTROL COMMISSION
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and SErvICeS. . . . v e i e e e e $ 1,606 $ 353,941 $ 1,564,523
Premium and Assessment Income . . . .. .. ... —_— — —_
Investment INCOME . . . . . . . .« o e — —_ 95,837
OROE. . o o o e e e e — 610 3,818
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES. . . . . . . . ... .. ... . 1,606 354,551 1,664,178
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Costs of Sales and Services. . . . . .. ... .. 725 216,701 -
Administration. . . . . . . . . e 286 60,942 180,031
Prizes and Claims . . . . . . . . .o - — 842,620
Benefit Payments and Refunds . . . ... ............ — - —
Depreciation. . . . . . .. ..o 189 1,040 5,954
OMROI . o o o e e e e e e e e e 15 1 72,007
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES . . . . . . . . . - . .« 1,215 278,684 1,100,612
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) . . . . . .« o oo oo 391 75,867 563,566
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment INCOME. . . . . . . . o o c oo oo 340 -— —
OtHEE. .« o o o e e e e e e e 2 9 1
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES). . . . . . . . 342 g 1
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS . . . . . . . .. 733 75,876 563,567
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating Transfers-out . . . . .. .. .. ..o — (75,539) (583,664}
NET INCOME (LOSS) . . . . . .« . o oo oo e 733 337 (20,097)
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICITS), JULY 1 (as restated) . . . . . . .. 9,167 17,570 77,719
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICITS), JUNE 30. . . . .. $ 9900 $ 17,907 § 57,622
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1

PETROLEUM
TUITION UNDERGROUND
WORKERS’ TRUST STORAGE
COMPENSATION AUTHORITY TANK FUND TOTAL

$ — $ 2,921 $ 7,789  § 1,930,780
2,054,187 — - 2,054,187
618,362 828 - 715,027
29,205 — 3 33,636
2,701,754 3,749 7,792 4,733,630

— — - 217,426

10,964 789 379 253,391

— — -—_ 842,620
2,595,775 - - 2,595,775
15,947 14 —_ 23,144
327,044 315 13 399,395
2,949,730 1,118 392 4,331,751
(247,976) 2,631 7,400 401,879

- — 936 1,276

—_ 68 — 80

— 68 936 1,356

(247,976) 2,699 8,336 403,235
— — — (659,203)
(247,976) 2,699 8,336 (255,968)
(2,157,744) (548) 8,298 (2,045,538)
$ (24057200 § 2,151 $ 16,634 $  (2,301,506)
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The Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided
by a State department or agency to other agencies and to other government units, on
a cost-reimbursement basis.

The Ohio Building Authority Fund accounts for the revenues and operating expenses of State
office buildings and other government buildings owned by the Ohio Building Authority.

The Ohio Data Network Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses associated with
electronic data-processing goods and services provided to user State agencies and to local
government.

The Ohio Penal Industries Fund accounts for revenues and expenses associated with the
purchase of raw materials and labor costs that are incurred in the production of manufactured
goods and agricultural commodities sold to user State agencies.

The Support Services Fund accounts for revenues and expenses associated with the purchase
of food, medical, and other institutional supplies and the costs of services provided to user State
agencies.

The Telecommunications Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses related to
telecommunications services provided to State agencies and to local government.

The Water Pollution Control Loan Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the Water
Pollution Control Loan Program administered by the Ohio Water Development Authority, which
provides financial assistance to local governments for the construction of wastewater treatment
facilities.
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

OHIO OHIO OHIO
BUILDING DATA PENAL
AUTHORITY NETWORK INDUSTRIES
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . . e $ - $ 12,064 $ 5,225
Cash with Custodian . . . . . . . .« o 409 —_ -—
INVESHMENTS . « « o o o o o e e e e _ — —
Receivables:
Intergovernmental . . . . . . . ..o - 20 109
Loans, Nel . . . . o v o v i e — 958 —_
OEE .« o o o e e e e e e e e e 2,507 5 224
Due from Other Funds . . . . . . . . .« .- — 10,078 13,317
INVentories . . . . . . o o o e e e — 287 8,019
Other Assels . . . . . . . .« v oo v v v R 423 14 —
Total Current ASSelS . . . . . . . . .« « oo 3,339 23,426 26,894
Restricted Assels: '
Cash with Custodian . . . . . . . .« e — 9 —_
INVESIMENIS. « .« . o o e e e e e 16,748 2,388 —
Total Restricted Assels . . . . . . . . . ... 16,748 2,387 —
Noncurrent Assets:
Other Receivables. . . . . . . . . .« oo 49,692 —_ —
Loans, Net . . . . . . e — 65 —
Total Noncurrent ASSets. . . . . . . . . .« oo 49,692 65 —
Fixed Assels:
Fixed ASSEIS . . . o o o i e e e _ 63,939 6,464
Less Accumulated Depreciation . . . . . ... ... . ... — (30,141) (4,134)
Total Fixed ASSElS . . . . . .« v v v v i oo — 33,798 2,330
TOTAL ASSETS . . . . . . . . . v $ 69,779 3 59,686 $ 29,224
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable . . . . . . .. ... $ 1,464 $ 652 $ 3,646
Accrued Liabilities . . . . . . . ..o 1,059 7,761 2,550
Intergovernmental Payable . . . . . ... ... ... ... -— 3,250 —_
Due to Other Funds . . . . . . . . oo oo v o - 508 1,290
Deferred Revenues . . . . . .« o« oo oo 1,542 —_— 196
Revenue Bonds . . . . . . . . . . e 2,025 —_ —_
Certificates of Participation. . . . . . . .. .. ... .. ... — 1,599 —
Total Current Liabilities . . . . . . . . .. .. ... ... 6,090 13,770 7,682
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Certificates of Participation. . . . . . . .. . ... ... — 2,397 —
Total Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets . . . . . — 2397 —
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Liabilities . . . . . . . ..o — 14,132 _
Revenue Bonds . . . . . . . . .o 49,692 — —
Certificates of Participation. . . . . . .. ... ... .. —_ 5,705 e
Total Noncurrent Liabilities . . . . . . . . . ... .. .. 49,692 19,837 —
Total Liabilities . . . . .« . oo 55,782 36,004 7,682
Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital . . . . . . . . . ... —_ — —
Retained Earnings:
Unreserved . . . . o o e e e e e e e 13,997 23,682 21,542
Total Fund Equity . . . . .« 13,997 23,682 21,542
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY . . . .. $ 69,779 $ 59,686 3 29224
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WATER POLLUTION

SUPPORT TELE- CONTROL LOAN
SERVICES COMMUNICATIONS FUND TOTAL
2,943 1,105 - 21,337
— - 97 506
— — 10,188 10,188
479 448 — 1,056
- - 1,087 2,045
- 938 — 3,674
3,104 5316 — 31,815
6,127 - — 14,433
— 504 — 941
12,653 8,311 11,372 85,995
— 2,701 - 2710
— 3,013 - 22,149
— 5714 - 24,859
—_ - - 49,692
— — 45,824 45,889
- — 45,824 95,581
8,142 22,950 35 101,530
(3,694) (14,700) (4) (52,673)
4,448 8,250 31 48,857
17,101 22,275 57,227 255,292
2,110 1,329 901 10,102
648 263 — 12,281
— 631 - 3,881
34 35 88 1,955
- — - 1,738
- - - 2,025
— — — 1,599
2,792 2,258 989 33,581
— 5714 — 8111
— 5714 — 8,111
—_ — —_— 14,132
- - - 49,692
— 14,101 — 19,806
— 14,101 — 83,630
2,792 22,073 989 125,322
3,397 —_ — 3,397
10,912 202 56,238 126,573
14,309 202 56,238 129,870
17,101 22,275 57,227 255,292
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

OHIO OHIO OHIO
BUILDING DATA PENAL
AUTHORITY NETWORK INDUSTRIES
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and Services. . . . ... ... ... ..... $ 25342  $ 43,239  § 71,056
Investment Income. . . . . ... ... .. — —_— —_—
Other. . . . . . . e e 3,330 8 1,038
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES. . . . . . . . . . ... ... .. 28,672 43,247 72,094
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Costs of Sales and Services. . . . . . . . .. . ... ..... 17,333 654 18,615
Administration. . . . . . . .. .. 1,636 27,836 49,847
Depreciation. . . . . . .. .. . ... ... —_ 8,946 446
Other. . . . . . . e e e 3,630 2,905 257
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES . . . . . . . . ... .. .. ... 22,599 40,341 69,165
OPERATING INCOME . . . . . . . . ... . ... ....... 6,073 2,906 2,929
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment Income. . . . ... ... . 1,426 100 —
interest Expense . . . . . ... ... ... ... .. (4,517) (812) —
Federal Grants . . . . . . . . . .. ... ... ... ... ... - —_ —
Other. . . . . . . e — (1,574) 370
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES). . . . . . . . (3,091) (2,286) 370
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS . . . . . . . .. 2,982 620 3,299
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating Transfers-in. . . . . . . ... ... ... .. ...... 28,498 - -
Operating Transfers-out . . . . .. .. ... ... ... . .... (31,411) — —_
TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS-IN (QUT). . . . . . ... ... (2,913) - —
NET INCOME (LOSS) . . . . . . o oo oot 69 620 3,299
RETAINED EARNINGS, JULY 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . ... .. ..... 13,928 23,062 18,243
RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30. . ... ... ... .... $ 13,997 § 23682 § 21,542
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WATER POLLUTION

SUPPORT TELE- CONTROL LOAN
SERVICES COMMUNICATIONS FUND TOTAL

$ 47,025  $ 35364 § 885 222911
— — 892 892

889 115 — 5,380

47,914 35,479 1,777 229,183
38,376 27,488 — 102,466
8,915 4,846 — 93,080

438 2,066 4 11,900

162 — 1,420 8,374

47,891 34,400 1,424 215,820

23 1,079 353 13,363

— 671 — 2,197
— (1,978) —_— (7,307)

— — 32,894 32,894
(50) (436) — (1,690)

(50) (1,743) 32,894 26,094

(27) (664) 33,247 39,457

—_ — 11,896 40,394

— — — (31,411)

— — 11,896 8,983

(27) (664) 45,143 48,440

10,939 866 11,095 78,133

$ 10,912 § 202 § 56,238 126,573
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The Trust Funds account for assets held by the State in a trustee capacity. The Agency
Funds account for assets held by the State as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, other governments, and/or other funds.

Expendable Trust
The Employment Services Fund accounts for unemployment insurance benefit claims.

Pension Trust
The State Highway Patrol Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for pension benefit
payments to qualified employees who participate in the State Highway Patrol Retirement
System.

Agency
The Holding and Distribution Fund accounts for assets held until such time that a determination
has been made to refund amounts to the original owners or to distribute amounts to other State
funds.

The Payroll Withholding and Fringe Benefits Fund accounts for assets held to liquidate the
State's payroll withholding obligations.

The Tax Refunds Fund accounts for assets held to liquidate the State's tax refund obligations.

The Unclaimed Funds Fund accounts for assets held for owners of unclaimed intangible
property. Unclaimed property is property for which the owner has not taken some action to
indicate ownership interest over a certain period of time specified under Chapter 169, Ohio
Revised Code.

The Star Ohio Fund accounts for assets held for local government units that participate in the
State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAROhio), a pooled investment fund managed by the
Treasurer of State.

The Deferred Compensation Fund accounts for assets held for employees in accordance with
the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457.

The Retirement Systems Fund accounts for assets held in the custody of the Treasurer of State
for the Public Employees Retirement System, Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund,
School Employees Retirement System, and State Teachers Retirement System.

The Other Fund accounts for assets held for others, which are not accounted for in another
agency fund.
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

EXPENDABLE PENSION AGENCY
TRUST TRUST FUNDS
STATE
EMPLOYMENT HIGHWAY
SERVICES PATROL
ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . .. . . ... ... .... $ — $ — $ 198,852
Cash with Custodian . . . . .. .. ... ... ........ 136 50 49,992
Investments. . . . . .. .. ... —_ 213,079 42,482,382
Deposit with Federal Government. . . . . .. ... .. ... 754,289 —_ -
Receivables:
Employer Contributions . . . . . . .. . .. ... ... ... . 182,057 _— —_
Loans, Net . . . . . . . . . . . . e —_ -_ 13,628
Other . . . . e e -_ 3127 26,895
Due from Other Funds . . . . . . . . . . . . ... ... ... — 1,875 114
Deposit with Deferred Compensation Plan . . . . ... .. — — 318,394
Other Assels . . . . . . . . . ittt e — 53 —
Sureties . . . . . . .. e e 4,726 — 243,981
TOTAL ASSETS . . . . . ... . .. . ... .. ..... $ 941,208 3 218,184 $ 43,334,238
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabiiities:
Intergovernmental Payable . . . . . ... ... ........ $ — $ - $ 1,856,088
Due to Other Funds . . . ... ................ - - 65,826
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . . . . . ... ... ..... 38,249 97 41,093,916
Liability for Deferred Compensation. . . . .. .. ... ... — — 318,408
Total Liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . ... 38,249 97 43,334,238
Func Balances:
Heserved for:
Pension Benefits . . . . . . . . ... e e e —_ 218,087 —
Unreserved,Undesignated. . . . . . . ... ... ... .... 902,959 — —
Total Fund Balances . . . . . . . . .. ... ... ..... 902,959 218,087 —_

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES .. § 941,208 $ 218,184 $ 43,334,238
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TOTAL

$ 198,852
50,178
42,695,461
754,289

182,057
13,628
30,022
1,989
318,394
53
248,707

$ 44,493,630

$ 1,856,088
65,826
41,132,262
318,408

43,372,584

218,087
902,959

1,121,046

$ 44,493,630

137



SRV ICNPINPI (0

i L4

AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

HOLDING & DISTRIBUTION:

ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . .. ... ..
Cash with Custodian . . . .. . .. ... ....

Total Assets. .

LIABILITIES
Due to Other Funds . . . ... ... .. ....

PAYROLL WITHHOLDING & FRINGE BENEFITS:

Refund and Other
Total Liabilities

ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . .. ... ...
Cash with Custodian . . . .. ... .......

Other Receivables

Liabilities . . . . . ... ...

Due from Other Funds . . . . . ... ... ...

Total Assels. .
LIABILITIES

Intergovernmental Payable . . . . ... .. ...
Due to Other Funds . . .. ... ........

Refund and Other
Total Liabilities

TAX REFUNDS:

ASSETS

Liabilities . . . . . ... ...

Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . .. .. ...

Total Assets . .
LIABILITIES

Intergovernmental Payable . . . . . .. .. ...

Refund and Other
Total Liabilities

Liabilities . . . .. ... ...

UNCLAIMED FUNDS:

138

ASSETS

Cash with Custodian . . . . . ... ... ... ..

Investments. . . .
Loans Receivable,
Other Receivables

Total Assels . .

LIABILITIES
Refund and Other

Total Liabilities

Net..............

Liabilites . . . . . ... ...

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, 1990 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 1991

32,973 649,079 $ 637,073 44,979
5,546 447,394 441,747 11,193
38,519 1,096,473 $ 1,078,820 56,172
35,368 650,662 $ 632,431 53,599
3,151 4,064 4,642 2,573
38,519 654,726 $ 637,073 56,172
135,095 1,195,352 § 1,200,314 130,133
232 79,015 76,656 2,591
404 292 443 253
363 5,282 5,561 84
136,094 1,279,941 § 1,282,974 133,061
2,760 260,113 § 261,061 1,812
12,100 125,063 124,936 12,227
121,234 732,303 734,515 119,022
136,094 1,117,479 § 1,120,512 133,061
7,808 1,276,695 $ 1,276,743 7,760
7,808 1,276,695 $ 1,276,743 7,760
— 649,463 $ 649,463 —
7,808 627,232 627,280 7,760
7,808 1,276,695 $ 1,276,743 7,760
13,136 293,836 § 289,898 17,074
87,016 176,671 164,322 99,365
— 21,037 7,409 13,628
35,824 — 9,265 26,559
135,976 491,544 $ 470,894 156,626
135,976 42,949 § 22,299 156,626
135,976 42,949 § 22,299 156,626




STAR OHIO:
ASSETS

Investments. . . . ... . ... .. ... .....
Total Assets. . . . ... .. ..........

LIABILITIES

Intergovernmental Payable . . . . . .. ... ..
Total Liabilities . . . .. ... ... ......

DEFERRED COMPENSATION:
ASSETS

Due from Other Funds . . . . . ... ... ...
Deposit with Deferred Compensation Plan . .

Total Assets. . . . ... ... .........

LIABILITIES

Liability for Deferred Compensation. . . . . . .
Total Liabilites . . .. ... ... .......

RETIREMENT SYSTEMS:
ASSETS

Investments. . . . .. ... .. ... .......
Total Assets. . . . . ... ... ... .....

LIABILITIES
Refund and Other Liabilities:
Liability to:

Public Employees Retirement System . .

Police and Firemen’s Disability

and Pension Fund . . . ... .. .. ..
School Employees Retirement System . .
State Teachers Retirement System . . . .

Total Liabilities . . . ... .. ... ......

OTHER:
ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . ... ... ..
Cash with Custodian . . . . ... ........
Investments. . . . ... .. ... ... ......
Other Receivables. . . . . . .. .. ... ....
Due from Other Funds . . . . . ... ......
Sureties . . . . . .. ...

Total Assets. . . . ... .. ... ... ....

LIABILITIES

Intergovernmental Payable . . . . . . . ... ..
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . . .. ... ..
Due to Other Funds . . . .. ... .......

Total Liabilites . . . . . . .. ... .. ....

BALANCE BALANCE

JULY 1, 1990 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 1991
1,131,924 § 6,040,770 5,334,086 1,838,608
1,131,924 $ 6,040,770 5,334,086 1,838,608
1,131,924 $ 6,040,770 5,334,086 1,838,608
1,131,924 $ 6,040,770 5,334,086 1,838,608
28 45,024 45,012 14
265,204 70,707 17,517 318,394
265,206 $ 115,731 62,529 318,408
265,206 $ 70,721 17,519 318,408
265,206 $ 70,721 17,519 318,408
37,612,810 $ 41,801,743 38,875,202 40,539,351
37,612,810 $ 41,801,743 38,875,202 40,539,351
14,470,671 $ 19,067,847 18,498,198 15,040,320
2,861,093 4,425,774 4,189,633 3,097,234
2,515,833 3,196,750 2,993,511 2,719,072
17,765,213 15,111,372 13,193,860 19,682,725
37,612,810 § 41,801,743 38,875,202 40,539,351
8,105 $ 81,103 73,228 15,980
10,441 97,268,309 97,259,616 19,134
4,778 1,389 1,109 5,058
69 83 69 83
19 341 344 16
290,979 96,195 143,193 243,981
314,391 § 97,447,420 97,477,559 284,252
7,746 § 40,600 32,678 15,668
306,645 97,363,504 97,401,565 268,584

- 40,363 40,363 —
314,391 § 97,444,467 97,474,606 284,252
(continued)
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STAlY OF OHIO

AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

{continued)
BALANCE. . BALANCE
JULY 1, 1990 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 1991
TOTAL AGENCY:
ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . ... .... $ 183,981 § 3202229 § 3,187,358 $ 198,852
Cash with Custodian . . . . ... ... ..... 29,355 98,088,554 98,067,917 49,992
Investments. . . . . . . . . ... 38,836,528 48,020,573 44,374,719 42,482,382
Receivables:
Loans, Net. . . . ... ... ... ....... ; - 21,037 7,409 13,628
Other . . . o o o e e e e e 36,297 375 9,777 26,895
Due from Other Funds . . . . . ... ... ... 384 50,647 50,917 114
Deposit with Deferred Compensation Plan . . 265,204 70,707 17,517 318,394
SuretieS . . . . . . . e e e e e e 290,979 96,195 143,193 243,981
Total Assels. . . . . . . . . . ... .. ... $ 39,642,728 $ 149,550,317 $ 145,858,807 $ 43,334,238
LIABILITIES
Intergovernmental Payable . . . . . .. ... .. $ 1,142,430 $ 6,990,946 $ 6,277,288 $ 1,856,088
Due to Other Funds . . . .. ... ... .... 47,468 816,088 797,730 65,826
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . . . ... ... 38,187,624 140,571,795 137,665,503 41,093,916
Liability for Deferred Compensation. . . . . . . 265,206 70,721 17,519 318,408
Total Liabilities . . . . ... . ... ... ... $ 39,642,728 $§ 148,449,550 § 144,758,040 $ 43,334,238
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IR AL FINED ASSETY ACCOUNT GROUP

The General Fixed Assets Account Group accounts for fixed assets acquired or
constructed for use by the State for general governmental purposes. These include all
fixed assets except those accounted for in the proprietary and trust funds.
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SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

(amounts expressed in thousands)

BALANCE DELETIONS/ BALANCE
JULY 1, 1990 ADDITIONS NET TRANSFERS JUNE 30, 1991

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS:
Land . . . . . $ 145,687 $ 4,551 § 733 § 150,971
Buildings. . . . . . . e 1,591,875 28,255 10,835 1,630,965
Land Improvements . . . . ... . ... .. ... ... 97,678 1,700 3,681 103,059
Machinery and Equipment . . . . .. .. ... .... 153,361 19,972 (15,046) 158,287
State Vehicles . . . .. ... .. ... . 164,798 18,865 (9,705) 173,958
Construction-in-Progress. . . . . . . .. . ... .. .. 120,383 158,812 (45,524) 233,671

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS. . . . . . . .. ... ... $§ 2273782 § 232,155 § (55,026) § 2,450,911

INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS:
ACQUIRED BEFORE JULY 1, 1987. . . . . . .. .. ... $ 1342555 § 639 § (40,284) § 1,302,910
ACQUIRED ON OR AFTER JULY 1, 1987:

Capital Projects Funds:

Special Obligation Bonds . . . ... ........ 695,966 149,023 1,416 846,405
Certificates of Participation. . . . . . .. ... ... - 4,044 - 4,044
General Fund Revenues . . . ... . ... ...... 55,403 23,789 (183) 79,009
Special Revenue Fund Revenues . . . . .. ..... 179,424 54,515 (15,969) 217,970
Donations . . . . . . .. e e e 434 145 (6) 573
TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS . . . . . $ 2273782 § 232,155 $ (55,026) $ 2,450,911
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SCHEDULE OF VCHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION

NoArE OHTO

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1991

{amounts expressed in thousands)

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS:

Prim.
Higr--

Public Assistance and Medicaid
Health and “uman Services

Secondary and Other Education . . . . . .
Education Support

Jus? usblic Protection .. . . ... ... ...
Er @l Protection and Natural Resources
’ dOM. .o
Genera fiovernment. . . ... ... ...
Cor~—: ity and Economic Development . . . . . . .
TOTAL SENFRAL FIXED ASSETS
ALLOC" FUNCTIONS . . . . ... ... ......
o JCHOM-ui-F. gress. . . . . . . ... ... ...
TOTAL GENf TIVED TSL L

BALANCE DELETIONS/ BALANCE

JULY 1, 1990 ADDITIONS NET TRANSFERS JUNE 30, 1991
19,595 § 2,583 § (2212) § 19,966
3,748 514 (17) 4,245
1,959 126 92 2,177
496,130 1,646 9,686 507,462
666,436 14,752 (16,789) 664,399
236,639 24,825 3,367 264,831
367,710 18,365 (2,038) 384,037
330,695 9,937 (1,377) 339,255
30,487 595 (214) 30,868
2,153,399 73,343 (9,502) 2,217,240
120,383 158,812 (45,524) 233,671
2,273,782 $ 232,155 $ (55,026) $ 2,450,911
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STATE OF OHIO

Table 3

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE FOR GENERAL AND SPECIAL

BONDED DEBT (a) TO TOTAL REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(amounts expressed in thousands)

For the
Year Ended Total

June 30, Debt Service Revenues
1982 $288,202 $ 8,661,302
1983 328,074 9,807,683
1984 401,079 11,181,357
1985 415,892 12,264,882
1986 447,369 13,412,852
1987 486,838 13,636,238
1988 562,506 14,500,448
1989 562,195 15,704,545
1990 587,070 16,849,936
1991 632,230 17,637,200

Ratio Expenditures
3.33% $ 8,767,226
3.35% 10,003,303
3.59% 11,354,041
3.39% 12,485,514
3.34% 13,791,810
3.57% 14,318,350
3.88% 15,344,437
3.58% 16,253,253
3.48% 17,666,608
3.58% 19,334,015

Ratio

3.29%
3.28%
3.53%
3.33%
3.24%
3.40%
3.67%
3.46%
3.32%
3.27%

Note: This table includes revenues and expenditures for the General, special revenue, debt service and capital
projects funds. Data for fiscal years 1981 through 1987 is presented on a non-GAAP budgetary basis while data
for fiscal years 1988 through 1991 is shown on a GAAP basis. Amounts paid to the Ohio Building Authority
special obligations debt for fiscal years 1981 to 1987 are recorded on a non-GAAP budgetary basis as lease

rental payments. Thus, these amounts are not included above as debt service expenditures.

(2) Includes general and special obligation bonds for which debt service payments are made from the following
combining funds in the Debt Service Fund.

Vietnam Conflict Compensation Bond Retirement
Local Infrastructure Improvements Bond Retirement

Coal Research/Development Bond Retirement

Improvements Bond Retirement
Highway Improvements Bond Retirement
Development Bond Retirement

Highway Obligations Bond Retirement
Public Improvements Bond Retirement

Ohio Public Facilities Commission

Ohio Building Authority
Sait Fork Bond Retirement
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SE AR LR A R O
SN O D Table 4

NET GENERAL AND SPECIAL BONDED DEBT (a) PER CAPITA
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

General and Special Obligation Bonds

Less Amount Net
For the Total Available in Bonded Net
Year Ended Population Outstanding Debt Service Fund Debt Bonded Debt
June 30, (in 000s) (in 000s) (in 000s) (in 000s) Per Capita
1982 10,777 $2,537,550 $257,964 $2,279,586 $212
1983 10,761 2,824,483 302,058 2,522,425 234
1984 10,771 2,743,891 323,183 2,420,708 225
1985 10,736 3,011,183 360,553 2,650,630 247
1986 10,732 3,320,101 439,661 2,880,440 268
1987 10,762 3,580,128 481,726 3,098,402 288
1988 10,800 3,743,526 548,376 3,195,150 296
1989 10,829 4,009,894 625,526 3,384,368 313
1990 10,847 3,974,040 592,116 3,381,924 312
1991 10,847 (b) 4,045,661 624,807 3,420,854 315

(a) Includes general and special obligation bonds for which debt service payments are made from the following
combining funds in the Debt Service Fund:

Coal Research/Development Bond Retirement
Improvements Bond Retirement

Highway Improvements Bond Retirement
Development Bond Retirement

Highway Obligations Bond Retirement

Public Improvements Bond Retirement

Vietnam Conflict Compensation Bond Retirement
Local Infrastructure Improvements Bond Retirement
Ohio Public Facilities Commission

Ohio Building Authority

Salt Fork Bond Retirement

(b) An estimate for 1991 was not available.

Source:
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STALE OF OUID Table 5

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Ohio Turnpike Commission

Net
Revenue Current Fiscal Year's
Direct Available Debt Service Requirements
Fiscal Gross Operating ForDebt @ ———-—""" " ————————
Year (a) Revenue Expenditures (b) Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1982 $53,257 $27,969 $25,288 $6,092 $558 $6,650 3.80
1983 69,580 30,884 38,696 4,836 359 5,195 7.45
1984 74,685 32,844 41,841 4,787 263 5,050 8.29
1985 79,423 35,656 43,767 4,811 259 5,070 8.63
1986 81,828 36,985 44,843 409 409 109.64
1987 85,179 38,472 46,707 409 409 114.20
1988 86,979 40,548 46,431 409 409 113.52
1989 91,741 43,356 48,385 409 409 118.30
1990 93,446 47,550 45,896 409 409 112.22
1991 94,039 49,087 44,952 409 409 109.91

(a) Data for fiscal years 1982 and 1983 is presented on a non-GAAP, budgetary basis while data for fiscal years 1984
through 1991 is shown on a GAAP basis.
(b) Includes only the expenditures reported in the Ohio Turnpike Commission Special Revenue Fund.

Treasurer of State/
Economic Development Financing Division (Liquor Bonds)

Net
Revenue Current Fiscal Year's
Direct Available Debt Service Requirements
Fiscal Gross Operating ForDebt  ——7—Fm—mW—————"7"—r—_——————
Year(c) Revenue(d) Expenditures(e) Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1982 $391,811 $262,166 $129,645 $ - $ - $ -
1983 379,817 239,921 139,896 7,459 7,459 18.76
1984 359,879 212,721 147,158 695 12,511 13,206 11.14
1985 359,518 253,525 105,993 1,510 16,561 18,071 5.87
1986 336,192 278,213 57,979 1,695 16,383 18,078 3.21
1987 361,907 307,095 54,812 1,900 16,184 18,084 3.03
1988 350,376 280,215 70,161 2,130 15,962 18,092 3.88
1989 369,305 301,125 68,180 2,390 15,712 18,102 3.77
1990 347,551 274,771 72,780 12,030 6,073 18,103 4.02
1991 354,560 277,644 76,916 10,325 7,783 18,100 4.25

(c) Data for fiscal years 1982 through 1987 is presented on a non-GAAP, budgetary basis while data for fiscal years 1988
through 1991 is shown on a GAAP basis.

{d) Includes only the revenues reported in the Liquor Control Enterprise Fund.

(e) Includes only the expenses, exclusive of depreciation, reported in the Liquor Control Enterprise Fund.
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(Continued)
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Treasurer of State/
Economic Development Financing Division (Ohio Enterprise Bonds)
Net
Revenue Current Fiscal Year's
Direct Available Debt Service Requirements
Fiscal Gross Operating ForDet  ——r————""-""—">"m—-—--—-"————
Year Revenue (y Expenditures Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1989 $19,964 —ees $19,964 $---- $1,132 $1,132 17.64
1990 2,444 - 2,444 475 947 1,422 1.72
1991 7,008 7,008 520 899 1,419 4.94

(f) Includes only the revenues reported in the Enterprise Bond Retirement Debt Service Fund and operating transfers to the
debt service fund from the Community and Economic Development Special Revenue Fund.

State Parking Commission

Net
Revenue Current Fiscal Year's
Direct Available Debt Service Requirements
Fiscal Gross Operating ForDebt  ———"————————— e ——
Year (g) Revenue Expenses (h) Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1982 $1,253 $ 629 $ 624 $147 $74 $221 2.82
1983 1,281 832 459 148 64 212 217
1984 1,347 789 558 143 62 205 272
1985 1,724 869 855 29 58 87 9.83
1986 1,866 1,290 576 13 57 70 8.23
1987 1,983 1,407 576 57 57 10.11
1988 2,104 888 1,216 60 60 20.27
1989 2,524 1,067 1,457 691 42 733 1.99
1990 2,602 936 1,666 746 24 770 2.16
1991 1,948 1,011 937

(g) Data for fiscal years 1982 through 1987 is presented on a non-GAAP, budgetary basis while data for fiscal years 1988
through 1991 is shown on a GAAP basis.
(h) Excludes depreciation and amortization expense.
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(Continued)
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Ohio Building Authority
Net
Revenue Current Fiscal Year's
Direct Available Debt Service Requirements

Fiscal Gross Operating ForDebt  —7&>Ff7F7"—>77"">"7—>——————
Year (i) Revenue Expenses (j) Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1982 $6,224 $ 5,604 $ 620 $15,547 $ - $15,547 0.04
1983 10,030 6,296 3,734 2,685 2,685 1.39
1984 22,675 8,393 14,282 49,028 8,278 57,306 0.25
1985 19,585 9,274 10,311 732 5,622 6,354 1.62
1986 23,858 9,555 14,303 60,264 5,052 65,316 0.22
1987 18,596 10,215 8,381 1,462 4,903 6,365 1.32
1988 32,731 11,922 20,809 1,543 5,299 6,842 3.04
1989 39,899 16,881 23,018 1,653 5,056 6,709 3.43
1990 25,879 19,426 6,453 1,761 4,626 6,387 1.01
1991 30,098 22,599 7,499 1,662 4,764 6,426 1.17

(iy Data for fiscal years 1982 through 1987 is presented on a non-GAAP, budgetary basis while data for fiscal years 1988
through 1991 is shown on a GAAP basis.
{i) Excludes depreciation expense.
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PERSONAL INCOME
OHIO COMPARED TO THE UNITED STATES
FOR THE LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

Ohio's Total

Personal Per Capita Personal Income

Income Percent United
Calendar Year (in millions) Change Ohio States
1981 $ 113,969 + 8.5% $ 10,552 $ 10,949
1982 117,766 + 3.3% 10,928 11,481
1983 123,972 + 5.3% 11,521 12,098
1984 134,761 + 8.7% 12,512 13,114
1985 141,972 + 5.4% 13,224 13,942
1986 148,975 + 4.9% 13,882 14,654
1987 157,250 + 5.6% 14,612 15,494
1988 168,756 + 7.3% 15,625 16,598
1989 180,197 + 6.8% 16,640 17,731
1990 190,720 + 5.8% 17,564 18,691

Source: Survey of Current Business, U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis
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OHIO

Age Group

Under 5 years

5 through 19 years
20 through 44 years
45 through 64 years
65 years and over

ety FT Y LN Y
. P P
34 %1 iy LS ﬁ

JHIU

POPULATION BY AGE GROUP

1980

787,150
2,715,784
3,928,118
2,197,118
1,169,460

10,797,630

Percent

7.3%
25.2%
36.4%
20.3%
10.8%

100.0%

1990

785,149
2,526,016
4,036,040
2,092,949

1,406,961
10,847,115

Percent

7.2%
23.3%
37.2%
19.3%
13.0%

100.0%

Source: General Population Characteristics -- Ohio, 1990 Census of Population, U.S. Bureau of Census

(The most recent information available)

Table 8

UNITED STATES

Age Group

Under 5 years

5 through 19 years
*0 through 44 years
45 through 64 years
65 years and over

1980

16,348,254
56,110,209
84,035,253
44,502,662
25,549,427

226,545,805

Percent

7.2%
24.8%
37.1%
19.6%
11.3%

100.0%

1990

18,354,443
56,976,857
95,765,733
46,371,009
31,241,831

248,709,873

Percent

7.4%
22.9%
38.5%
18.6%
12.6%

100.0%

Source: General Population Characteristics -- United States Summary, 1990 Census of Population, U.S. Bureau of Census

(The most recent information available)

OHIO'S TOTAL POPULATION AS A PERCENTAGE OF
U.S. TOTAL POPULATION

1980
Ohio U.S.
10,797,630 226,545,805

248,709,873

1990
Ohio U.S. Percent
10,847,115 4.4%




STALE OF OHID Table?

AVERAGE MONTHLY UNEMPLOYMENT RATES
LASTTEN CALENDAR YEARS AND FIRST HALF OF CALENDAR 1991

Calendar Year Ohio United States
1981 9.6% 7.6%
1982 12.5% 9.7%
1983 12.2% 9.6%
1984 9.4% 7.5%
1985 8.9% 7.2%
1986 8.1% 7.1%
1987 7.0% 6.2%
1988 6.0% 5.5%
1989 5.6% 5.3%
1990 5.7% 5.5%
1991 (First Half) (a) 6.9% 6.9%

(a) Average subject to revision, not seasonally adjusted

Source: Ohio Bureau of Employment Services
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Table 10

List of Major Industrial Corporations That Maintain Headquarters in Ohio

American Greetings Corporation (Cleveland)
A. Schulman Incorporated (Akron)

B. F. Goodrich Company (Bath)

Chemed (Cincinnati)

Chiquita Brands International (Cincinnati)

Cincinnati Milacron Incorporated (Cincinnati)

Cooper Tire & Rubber (Findlay)
Dana Corporation (Toledo)

Eagel-Picher Industries Incorporated
(Cincinnati)

Eaton Corporation (Cleveland)

Ferro Corporation (Cleveland)

Figgie International (Willoughby)

Gencorp (Fairlawn)

Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company (Akron)
Lincoln Electric Company (Cleveland)
Lubrizol Corporation (Wickliffe)

M.A. Hanna Company (Cleveland)

Mead Corporation (Dayton)

NACCO Industries (Cleveland)

NCR Corporation (Dayton)
Owens-Coming Fiberglas Corporation (Toledo)
Owens-Illinois Incorporated (Toledo)
Parker-Hannifin Corporation (Cleveland)
Penn Central Corporation (Cincinnati)
Philips Industries Incorporated (Dayton)
Proctor & Gamble Company (Cincinnati)
Reliance Electric Company (Cleveland)
Reynolds & Reynolds Company (Dayton)
Rubbermaid Incorporated (Wooster)
Sealy Holdings (Cleveland)
Sherwin-Williams Company (Cleveland)
Standard Products Company (Cleveland)
Standard Register Company (Dayton)
Timken Company (Canton)

Trinova Corporation (Maumee)

TRW Incorporated (Cleveland)

Worthington Industries Incorporated (Columbus)

Source: The Fortune 500 Listing, Fortune Magazine, April 1991
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SALES OF RETAIL STORES
FOR THE LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

(amounts expressed in millions)

Retail Sales Per Capita

Calendar Ohio's Percent Retail Percent
Year Total Change Sales Change
1981 $46,390 3.9% $4,295 3.8%
1982 47,175 1.7% 4,377 1.9%
1983 50,438 6.9% 4,687 7.1%
1984 55,055 9.2% 5,111 9.1%
1985 60,515 9.9% 5,637 10.3%
1986 62,745 3.7% 5,847 3.7%
1987 64,217 2.3% 5,967 2.1%
1988 66,751 3.9% 6,181 3.6%
1989 70,491 5.6% 6,509 5.3%
1990 72,768 3.2% 6,709 3.1%

Source: Revised Monthly Retail Sales and Inventories, U.S. Department of Commerce
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STATE OF OHIO

Table 12

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS AND DATA

STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT:

Form of State Government

Executive, Legislative, Judicial

Number of Counties 88
Number of Incorporated Cities and Villages 943
Number of State Agencies, Boards, Commissions, and Elected Offices 100
Number of State Employees 60,911
Number of State Representatives 39
Number of State Senators 33
PARKS AND RECREATION:

Number of State Parks 79

Area of State Parks, Natural and Wildlife Areas 229,943.5 Acres
Area of State Forests 178,269.9 Acres
EDUCATION:

Number of State-Assisted Higher Education Institutions 40
1990-91 Student Enroliment at State-Assisted Higher Education Institutions 434,406
Number of Public School Districts 612
Number of Joint Vocational School Districts 49
MISCELLANEOUS:

State Capital Columbus

Date of Statehood March 1, 1803
State Motto With God, All Things are Possible

Total Land Acreage

Total Farm Acreage

Ohio's Three Largest Metropolitan Areas
Largest Source of Federal Financial Support

Sources: Ohio Department of Natural Resources, Land Inventory
Ohio Board of Regents

26.4 Million

15 Million
Cleveland, Cincinnati, Columbus
U.S. Department of Health
and Human Services



37

s

o

Total copies printed: 1,600
Unit cost: $4.537
Publication date: 12/91







	Scan001.PDF.pdf
	Scan002

